
 
 

 
 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 
21 March 2013 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
 
A Meeting of the Audit and Governance Committee will be held in Committee Room 1 - 
Marmion House on Thursday, 28th March, 2013 at 6.00 pm. Members of the 
Committee are requested to attend. 
 
 
Yours faithfully 
 

 
 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

NON CONFIDENTIAL 
 
 
1 Apologies for Absence  

2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 1 - 4) 

3 Declarations of Interest  

N0N-CONFIDENTIAL



 To receive any declarations of Members’ interests (pecuniary and non-
pecuniary) in any matters which are to be considered at this meeting. 

 
When Members are declaring a pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in 
respect of which they have dispensation, they should specify the nature of 
such interest.  Members should leave the room if they have a pecuniary or 
non-pecuniary interest in respect of which they do not have a dispensation.   
 

 
 

4 The Audit Plan for Tamworth Borough Council (Pages 5 - 24) 

 (Report of Grant Thornton (External Auditor)) 
 

5 Review of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement, Minimum Revenue 
Provision Policy Statement and Annual Investment Statement 2013/14 
(Pages 25 - 64) 

 (Report of the Executive Director Corporate Services) 
 

6 Final Accounts 2012/13 - Action Plan (Pages 65 - 74) 

 (Report of the Director of Finance) 
 

7 Risk Management Update (Pages 75 - 102) 

 (Report of the Head of Internal Audit Services) 
 

8 Fraud and Corruption Update Report (Pages 103 - 154) 

 (Report of the Head of Internal Audit Services) 
 

9 Internal Audit Charter and Plan 2013/14 (Pages 155 - 170) 

 (Report of the Head of Internal Audit Services) 
 

10 Self Assessment - Measuring the Effectiveness of the Audit & Governance 
Committee (Pages 171 - 176) 

 (Report of the Head of Internal Audit Services) 
 

11 Review of Members Allowance (Pages 177 - 212) 

 (Report of the Solicitor to the Council and Monitoring Officer) 
 

12 Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (Pages 213 - 214) 

 (Report of the Solicitor to the Council and Monitoring Officer) 
 

 
 



 
People who have a disability and who would like to attend the meeting should contact 
Democratic Services on 01827 709264 or e-mail committees@tamworth.gov.uk 
preferably 24 hours prior to the meeting.  We can then endeavour to ensure that any 
particular requirements you may have are catered for. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To Councillors: M Gant, J Garner, M Clarke, M Couchman, K Gant, P Seekings and M 
Thurgood 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

1  
 

 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

HELD ON 31st JANUARY 2013 
 
 

 
PRESENT: Councillor M Gant (Chair), Councillors J Garner, M Clarke, 

M Couchman and K Gant 

 
Officers John Wheatley (Executive Director Corporate Services), 

Jane Hackett (Solicitor to the Council and Monitoring 
Officer) and Angela Struthers (Head of Internal Audit 
Services) 

 

Visitors  James Cook (Grant Thornton) 

Joan Barnett (Grant Thornton) 

 
 
 

38 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors P Seekings and M 
Thurgood. 
 

39 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 25 October 2013 were approved and signed 
as a correct record. 
 
(Moved by Councillor M Gant and seconded by Councillor J Garner) 
 

40 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
There were no Declarations of Interest. 
 

41 ANNOUNCEMENT BY THE CHAIR  

 
The Chair moved that the order of the agenda be changed to bring the reports of 
the Solicitor of the Council and Monitoring Officer to the beginning. 
 
This was carried. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



Audit and Governance 
Committee 

31 January 2013 

 

 

2 
 

42 STANDARDS ALLEGATION COMPLAINT  

 
The Report of the Solicitor to the Council and Monitoring Officer advising 
Members on the number of complaints received in relation to alleged breaches of 
the Code of Conduct since local arrangements were put in place to deal with 
Standards allegations in terms on the Localism Act 2011 in June 2012 was 
considered. 
 
RESOLVED: That following discussion the findings of the contents of the 

report be received. 
 
 

43 REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT 2000  

 
The Report of the Solicitor to the Council and Monitoring Officer was considered. 
 
RESOLVED: That the quarterly RIPA monitoring report  be endorsed. 
 
 

44 EXTERNAL AUDITOR'S REPORT ON CERTIFICATION WORK IN 2011/12  

 
The Report of the External Auditor was considered following the amendment of 
the housing and council tax benefit scheme fee 2011/12 from £26,496 to £26,353 
on page 7 of the report and the subsequent amendment to the total fee 2011/12 
from £35,041 to £34,898 on page 8. 
 
RESOLVED: The report be received. 
 
 

45 GRANT THORNTON FEE LETTER FOR THE AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE 

COMMITTEE  

 
The Report of the External Auditor was considered 
 
RESOLVED: That the report was received. 
 
 

46 INTERNAL AUDIT QUARTERLY REPORT  

 
The Report of the Head of Internal Audit Services reporting on the outcome of 
Internal Audit’s review of the internal control, risk management and governance 
framework in the 3rd quarter of 2012/13 and providing Members with assurance of 
the ongoing effective operation of the internal audit function and enabling any 
particularly significant issues to be brought to the Committee’s attention was 
considered. 
 
RESOLVED: The Committee considered the quarterly report. 
 
 
 

Page 2



Audit and Governance 
Committee 

31 January 2013 

 

 

3 
 

47 PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS  

 
The Report of the Head of Internal Services informing members of the new Public 
Sector Internal Audit Standards that will be effective from 1 April 2013 was 
considered. 
 
RESOLVED: That the Committee supports Internal Audit’s commitment to 

and compliance with the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards. 

 
 

  

 Chair  
 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 |

T
h

e 
A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

fo
r 

T
am

w
o

rt
h

 B
o

ro
u
gh

 C
o

u
n

ci
l

Y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
e

d
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
3

 

J
a
m

e
s
 C

o
o

k

A
s
s
o
c
ia

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r

T
0
7
8
8
 0

4
5
 6

1
0
2

E
ja

m
e
s
.a

.c
o
o
k
@

u
k
.g

t.
c
o
m

J
o

a
n

 B
a
rn

e
tt

M
a
n
a
g
e
r

T
0
7
8
8
 0

4
5
 6

1
0
1

E
jo

a
n
.m

.b
a
rn

e
tt

@
u
k
.g

t.
c
o
m

Agenda Item 4

Page 5



T
h
e
co
n
te
n
ts

o
f
th
is
re
p
o
rt

re
la
te

o
n
ly

to
th
e
m
at
te
rs

w
h
ic
h
h
av
e
co
m
e
to

o
u
r
at
te
n
ti
o
n
,

w
h
ic
h
w
e
b
el
ie
v
e
n
ee
d
to

b
e
re
p
o
rt
ed

to
yo
u
as

p
ar
t
o
f
o
u
r
au
d
it
p
ro
ce
ss
.

It
is

n
o
t
a

co
m
p
re
h
en
si
v
e
re
co
rd

o
f
al
l
th
e
re
le
v
an
t
m
at
te
rs
,
w
h
ic
h
m
ay

b
e
su
b
je
ct

to
ch
an
ge
,
an
d
in

p
ar
ti
cu
la
r
w
e
ca
n
n
o
t
b
e
h
el
d
re
sp
o
n
si
b
le
to

yo
u
fo
r
re
p
o
rt
in
g
al
l
o
f
th
e
ri
sk
s
w
h
ic
h
m
ay

af
fe
ct

th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l
o
r
an
y
w
ea
k
n
es
se
s
in

yo
u
r
in
te
rn
al
co
n
tr
o
ls
.
T
h
is
re
p
o
rt
h
as

b
ee
n
p
re
p
ar
ed

so
le
ly

fo
r
yo
u
r
b
en
ef
it
an
d
sh
o
u
ld

n
o
t
b
e
q
u
o
te
d
in

w
h
o
le

o
r
in

p
ar
t
w
it
h
o
u
t
o
u
r
p
ri
o
r
w
ri
tt
en

co
n
se
n
t.
W
e
d
o
n
o
t
ac
ce
p
t
an
y
re
sp
o
n
si
b
ili
ty
fo
r
an
y
lo
ss
o
cc
as
io
n
ed

to
an
y
th
ir
d
p
ar
ty
ac
ti
n
g
,

o
r
re
fr
ai
n
in
g
fr
o
m

ac
ti
n
g
o
n
th
e
b
as
is
o
f
th
e
co
n
te
n
t
o
f
th
is
re
p
o
rt
,
as

th
is
re
p
o
rt
w
as

n
o
t

p
re
p
ar
ed

fo
r,
n
o
r
in
te
n
d
ed

fo
r,
an
y
o
th
er

p
u
rp
o
se
.

Page 6



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 |

C
o
n
te
n
ts

S
e
c
ti
o
n

1.
U
n
d
er
st
an
d
in
g 
yo
u
r 
b
u
si
n
es
s

2.
D
ev
el
o
p
m
en
ts
 r
el
ev
an
t 
to
 y
o
u
r 
b
u
si
n
es
s 
an
d
 t
h
e 
au
d
it

3.
O
u
r 
au
d
it
 a
p
p
ro
ac
h

4.
A
n
 a
u
d
it
 f
o
cu
se
d
 o
n
 r
is
ks

5.
S
ig
n
if
ic
an
t 
ri
sk
s 
id
en
ti
fi
ed

6.
O
th
er
 r
is
ks
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

7.
G
ro
u
p
 s
co
p
e 
an
d
 r
is
k 
as
se
ss
m
en
t

8.
R
es
u
lt
s 
o
f 
in
te
ri
m
 w
o
rk

9.
V
al
u
e 
fo
r 
M
o
n
ey

10
.
L
o
gi
st
ic
s 
an
d
 o
u
r 
te
am

11
.
F
ee
s 
an
d
 i
n
d
ep
en
d
en

ce

12
.
C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
at
io
n
 o
f 
au
d
it
 m

at
te
rs
 w
it
h
 t
h
o
se
 c
h
ar
ge
d
 w
it
h
 g
o
ve
rn
an
ce

Page 7



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 |

U
n
d
er
st
an
d
in
g 
yo
u
r 
b
u
si
n
es
s

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e
s
/o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s

1
. 

M
e
d

iu
m

 T
e
rm

  
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 (

M
T

F
S

)

�
T

h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 h

a
s
 e

n
a
b
le

d
 a

 

b
a
la

n
c
e
d
 M

T
F

S
to

 b
e
 

d
e
liv

e
re

d
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 

c
lo

s
in

g
 b

a
la

n
c
e
s
 o

v
e
r 

3
 

y
e
a
rs

 t
o
 b

e
 £

0
.5

m
 t
h
e
 

m
in

im
u
m

 a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 l
e
v
e
l.

2
. 

R
e
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
T

a
m

w
o

rt
h

 T
o

w
n

 

C
e
n

tr
e

•
T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 m

a
k
in

g
 p

la
n
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

re
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
.

3
. 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
S

ta
te

m
e
n

ts

�
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 d

ri
v
e
  

fo
r 

lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 t

o
 m

a
k
e
 

th
e
ir
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 e
a
s
ie

r 
to

 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 a

n
d
 t

o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 

u
n
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 d
is

c
lo

s
u
re

s
 .

4
. 

G
o

lf
 c

o
u

rs
e

•
T

a
m

w
o
rt

h
 G

o
lf
 C

e
n
tr

e
 L

td
 

h
a
s
 g

o
n
e
 i
n
to

 

a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

is
 l
o
o
k
in

g
 a

t 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

c
o
u
rs

e
.

•
T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

a
s
k
in

g
 t
h
e
 p

u
b
lic

 f
o
r 

th
e
ir
 

v
ie

w
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 f

u
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
o
u
rs

e
.

5
 I

c
e
la

n
d

ic
 B

a
n

k
s

�
A

s
 a

t 
3
1
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
, 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

is
 o

w
e
d
 £

1
.7

m
 f

ro
m

 

Ic
e
la

n
d
ic

 b
a
n
k
s
. 

It
 i
s
 

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
ti
n
g
 r

e
c
o
v
e
ry

 o
f 

1
0
0
%

 o
f 

th
e
 d

e
p
o
s
it
 i
n
 G

lt
n
ir
; 

a
n
d
 8

5
%

 o
f 

th
e
 d

e
p
o
s
it
s
 i
n
 

H
e
ri
ta

b
le

 a
n
d
 K

a
u
p
th

in
g

a
n
d
 

S
in

g
e
r 

&
 F

ri
e
d
la

n
d
e
r.

  
 

O
u

r 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e

�
W

e
 w

ill
 
re

v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 p

la
n
s
 i
n
 

p
la

c
e
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 M

T
F

S
to

 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

p
la

n
s
 r

e
m

a
in

 

re
a
lis

ti
c
 a

n
d
 a

c
h
ie

v
a
b
le

.

�
W

e
 w

ill
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 p

la
n
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 

th
e
y
 c

a
n
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 w

it
h
o
u
t 

d
e
tr

im
e
n
ta

l 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t

h
e
 M

T
F

S
.

�
W

e
 w

ill
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 y

o
u
r 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

  

to
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 i
f 
th

e
re

 a
re

 a
re

a
s
 i
n
 

y
o
u
r 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 w
h
e
re

 

d
is

c
lo

s
u
re

s
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 m

o
re

 

s
tr

e
a
m

lin
e
d
 w

it
h
 a

 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 

th
e
 e

x
p
la

n
a
to

ry
 f

o
re

w
o
rd

 t
o
 

c
h
e
c
k
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

b
e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 

e
x
a
m

p
le

s
.

�
W

e
 w

ill
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 t

re
a
tm

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 

g
o
lf
 c

o
u
rs

e
 i
n
 l
ig

h
t 
o
f 

th
e
 

c
o
u
rs

e
 g

o
in

g
 i
n
to

 

a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
.

�
W

e
 w

ill
 k

e
e
p
 a

 w
a
tc

h
in

g
 

b
ri
e
f 

a
s
 y

o
u
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 c

o
u
rs

e
's

 

fu
tu

re
 t

o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

w
h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
re

 i
s
 a

n
y
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t

h
e
 

M
T

F
S

.

�
W

e
 w

ill
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 t

re
a
tm

e
n
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 

re
m

a
in

in
g
 b

a
la

n
c
e
s
 t

o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 i
t 
re

fl
e
c
ts

 t
h
e
 l
a
te

s
t 

C
IP

F
A

u
p
d
a
te

s
.

In
 p
la
n
n
in
g 
o
u
r 
au
d
it
 w
e 
n
ee
d
 t
o
 u
n
d
er
st
an
d
 t
h
e 
ch
al
le
n
ge
s 
an
d
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s 
th
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l 
is
 f
ac
in
g.
  
W
e 
se
t 
o
u
t 
a 
su
m
m
ar
y 
o
f 
o
u
r 
u
n
d
er
st
an
d
in
g 
b
el
o
w
.

Page 8



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 |

D
ev
el
o
p
m
en
ts
 r
el
ev
an
t 
to
 y
o
u
r 
b
u
si
n
es
s 
an
d
 t
h
e 
au
d
it

In
 p
la
n
n
in
g 
o
u
r 
au
d
it
 w
e 
al
so
 c
o
n
si
d
er
 t
h
e 
im

p
ac
t 
o
f 
ke
y 
d
ev
el
o
p
m
en
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e 
se
ct
o
r 
an
d
 t
ak
e 
ac
co
u
n
t 
o
f 
n
at
io
n
al
 a
u
d
it
 r
eq
u
ir
em

en
ts
 a
s 
se
t 
o
u
t 
in
 t
h
e 
C
o
d
e 
o
f 
A
u
d
it
 P
ra
ct
ic
e 

an
d
 a
ss
o
ci
at
ed
 g
u
id
an
ce
.

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts

1
.F

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
re

p
o

rt
in

g

�
C

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

IP
F

A
C

o
d
e
 

o
f 

P
ra

c
ti
c
e
.

�
R

e
c
o
g
n
it
io

n
 o

f 
g
ra

n
t 

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
.

�
S

e
lf
 f
in

a
n
c
in

g
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
t.

2
. 

L
e
g

is
la

ti
o

n

�
L
o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 

s
e
tt

le
m

e
n
t 
2
0
1
2
/1

3
.

�
W

e
lf
a
re

 r
e
fo

rm
 A

c
t 
 2

0
1
2
.

3
. 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 g
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e

�
A

n
n
u
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 
(A

G
S

).

�
E

x
p
la

n
a
to

ry
 F

o
re

w
o
rd

.

4
. 

P
e
n

s
io

n
s

�
P

la
n
n
in

g
 f

o
r 

th
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

L
o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

p
e
n
s
io

n
 

S
c
h
e
m

e
 (

L
G

P
S

).

5
. 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
P

re
s
s
u

re
s

�
M

a
n
a
g
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 

w
it
h
 l
e
s
s
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
.

�
P

ro
g
re

s
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 

p
la

n
s
.

6
. 

O
th

e
r 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts

�
T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 

s
u
b
m

it
 a

 W
h
o
le

 o
f 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 p
a
c
k
 

o
n
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
 a

u
d
it
 

o
p
in

io
n
. 

�
T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

c
o
m

p
le

te
s
 g

ra
n
t 

c
la

im
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
tu

rn
s
 o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 

a
u
d
it
 c

e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
.

O
u

r 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e

W
e
 w

ill
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t

�
T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

c
o
m

p
lie

s
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 

C
IP

F
A

C
o
d
e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 o

u
r 

s
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
v
e
 

te
s
ti
n
g
.

�
G

ra
n
t 

in
c
o
m

e
 i
s
 r

e
c
o
g
n
is

e
d
 

in
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 c

o
rr

e
c
t 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

�
T

h
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
t 
is

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 

re
p
o
rt

e
d

�
W

e
 w

ill
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

th
e
 l
e
g
is

la
ti
v
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

th
ro

u
g
h
 o

u
r 

re
g
u
la

r 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w

it
h
 s

e
n
io

r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 t

h
o
s
e
 

c
h
a
rg

e
d
 w

it
h
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
, 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 a

 v
ie

w
 w

h
e
re

 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

.

�
W

e
 w

ill
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 A

G
S

.

�
W

e
 w

ill
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 A

G
S

  
a
n
d
 

th
e
 e

x
p
la

n
a
to

ry
 f

o
re

w
o
rd

 t
o
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

w
h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
y
 a

re
 

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
w

it
h
 o

u
r 

k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e
.

�
W

e
 w

ill
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

is
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 t

o
 d

e
a
l 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

th
e
 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 

o
u
r 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w

it
h
 s

e
n
io

r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.

�
W

e
 w

ill
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 b

u
d
g
e
t,

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

a
g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 p

la
n
.

�
W

e
 w

ill
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 a

 r
e
v
ie

w
 

o
f 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
R

e
s
ili

e
n
c
e
 a

s
 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

o
u
r 

V
F

M
c
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
.

�
W

e
 w

ill
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

w
o
rk

 o
n
 t

h
e
 

W
G

A
 p

a
c
k
 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

.

�
W

e
 w

ill
 c

e
rt

if
y
 g

ra
n
t 

c
la

im
s
 

a
n
d
 r

e
tu

rn
s
 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

.

Page 9



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 |

D
e

v
is

e
 a

u
d

it
 s

tr
a

te
g

y

(p
la

n
n

e
d

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 
re

li
a

n
c

e
?

)

O
u
r 
au
d
it
 a
p
p
ro
ac
h G

lo
b

a
l 
a
u

d
it

 t
e
c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
E

n
s
u

re
s
 c

o
m

p
li

a
n

c
e
 w

it
h

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 o

n
 A

u
d

it
in

g
 (

IS
A

s
)

C
re

a
te

s
 a

n
d

 t
a
il

o
rs

 

a
u

d
it

 p
ro

g
ra

m
s

S
to

re
s
 a

u
d

it

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

D
o

c
u

m
e
n

ts
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 

a
n

d
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls

U
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g
 

th
e

 e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 e

n
ti
ty

U
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t’
s
 

fo
c
u

s

U
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g
 

th
e

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s

E
v
a

lu
a

ti
n

g
 t
h

e
 

y
e

a
r’

s
 r

e
s
u

lt
s

In
h

e
re

n
t 

ri
s
k
s

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 

ri
s
k
s

O
th

e
r

ri
s
k
s

M
a

te
ri

a
l 

b
a

la
n

c
e

s

Y
e

s
N

o

�
T

e
s
t 

c
o

n
tr

o
ls

�
S

u
b

s
ta

n
ti
v
e

 

a
n

a
ly

ti
c
a

l 

re
v
ie

w

�
T

e
s
ts

 o
f 
d

e
ta

il

�
T

e
s
t 

o
f 
d

e
ta

il

�
S

u
b

s
ta

n
ti
v
e

 

a
n

a
ly

ti
c
a

l 

re
v
ie

w

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

C
o

n
c
lu

d
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

G
e

n
e

ra
l 
a

u
d

it
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s

ID
E

A

E
x
tr

a
c
t 

y
o

u
r 

d
a

ta

R
e

p
o

rt
 o

u
tp

u
t 

to
 t
e

a
m

s

A
n

a
ly

s
e

 d
a

ta
 

u
s
in

g
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

p
a

ra
m

e
te

rs

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
u

d
it

 p
la

n
 t

o
 

o
b

ta
in

 r
e

a
s

o
n

a
b

le
 

a
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
S

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 

a
s

 a
 w

h
o

le
 a

re
 f

re
e

 

fr
o

m
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 

m
is

s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 

p
re

p
a

re
d

 i
n

 a
ll

 

m
a

te
ri

a
la

re
s

p
e

c
ts

 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

 C
IP

F
A

 C
o

d
e

 

o
f 

P
ra

c
ti

c
e

 

fr
a

m
e

w
o

rk
 u

s
in

g
 o

u
r 

g
lo

b
a

l 
m

e
th

o
d

o
lo

g
y
 

a
n

d
 a

u
d

it
 s

o
ft

w
a

re

N
o

te
:

a
.

A
n

 i
te

m
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 

m
a

te
ri

a
l 
to

 t
h

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

if
, 
th

ro
u

g
h

 i
ts

 o
m

is
s
io

n
 o

r 
n

o
n

-

d
is

c
lo

s
u

re
, 
th

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

w
o

u
ld

 n
o

 l
o

n
g

e
r 

s
h

o
w

 a
 t

ru
e

 a
n

d
 

fa
ir

 v
ie

w
.

Page 10



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 |

A
n
 a
u
d
it
 f
o
cu
se
d
 o
n
 r
is
k
s

A
c

c
o

u
n

t
M

a
te

ri
a

l
(o

r 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

ll
y
 

m
a

te
ri

a
l)

 

b
a

la
n

c
e

?

T
ra

n
s

a
c

ti
o

n
 C

y
c

le
In

h
e

re
n

t 
ri

s
k

M
a

te
ri

a
l 

m
is

s
ta

te
m

e
n

t

ri
s

k
?

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
R

is
k

S
u

b
s

ta
n

ti
v
e

 

te
s

ti
n

g
?

C
o
s
t
o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 -

o
p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 e

x
p
e
n
s
e
s

Y
e
s

O
p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 e

x
p
e
n
s
e
s

M
e
d
iu

m
O

th
e
r

O
p
e
ra

ti
n
g

e
x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
te

d

�

C
o
s
t 
o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

–

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 

re
m

u
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

Y
e
s

E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 r

e
m

u
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

M
e
d
iu

m
 

O
th

e
r

R
e
m

u
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

e
x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 n

o
t 

c
o
rr

e
c
t

�

C
o
s
ts

 o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

–

H
o
u
s
in

g
 &

 c
o
u
n
c
il 

ta
x
 b

e
n
e
fi
t

Y
e
s

W
e
lf
a
re

 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

M
e
d
iu

m
O

th
e
r

W
e
lf
a
re

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

im
p
ro

p
e
rl
y
 

c
o
m

p
u
te

d

�

C
o
s
t 
o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 –

H
o
u
s
in

g
 r

e
v
e
n
u
e

Y
e
s

H
R

A
M

e
d
iu

m
O

th
e
r

H
o
u
s
in

g
 r

e
v
e
n
u
e

tr
a
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 

n
o
t 

re
c
o
rd

e
d

�

C
o
s
t 
o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 –

o
th

e
r 

re
v
e
n
u
e
s
 (

fe
e
s

&
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
)

Y
e
s

O
th

e
r 

re
v
e
n
u
e
s

L
o
w

N
o
n
e

�

(G
a
in

s
)/

 L
o
s
s
 o

n
 

d
is

p
o
s
a
l 
o
f

n
o
n
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

a
s
s
e
ts

Y
e
s

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
, 

P
la

n
t 
a
n
d
 

E
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t

L
o
w

N
o
n
e

�

P
re

c
e
p
ts

a
n
d
 L

e
v
ie

s
Y

e
s

C
o
u
n
c
il

T
a
x

L
o
w

N
o
n
e

�

W
e 
u
n
d
er
ta
ke
 a
 r
is
k 
b
as
ed
 a
u
d
it
 w
h
er
eb
y 
w
e 
fo
cu
s 
au
d
it
 e
ff
o
rt
 o
n
 t
h
o
se
 a
re
as
 w
h
er
e 
w
e 
h
av
e 
id
en
ti
fi
ed
 a
 r
is
k 
o
f 
m
at
er
ia
l 
m
is
st
at
em

en
t 
in
 t
h
e 
ac
co
u
n
ts
. T

h
e 

ta
b
le
 b
el
o
w
 s
h
o
w
s 
h
o
w
 o
u
r 
au
d
it
 a
p
p
ro
ac
h
 f
o
cu
se
s 
o
n
 t
h
e 
ri
sk
s 
w
e 
h
av
e 
id
en
ti
fi
ed
 t
h
ro
u
gh

 o
u
r 
p
la
n
n
in
g 
an
d
 r
ev
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e 
n
at
io
n
al
ri
sk
s 
af
fe
ct
in
g 
th
e 
se
ct
o
r.
 

D
ef
in
it
io
n
s 
o
f 
th
e 
le
ve
l 
o
f 
ri
sk
 a
n
d
 a
ss
o
ci
at
ed
 w
o
rk
 a
re
 g
iv
en
 b
el
o
w
:

S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t
–
S
ig
n
if
ic
an
t 
ri
sk
s 
ar
e 
ty
p
ic
al
ly
 n
o
n
-r
o
u
ti
n
e 
tr
an
sa
ct
io
n
s,
 a
re
as
 o
f 
m
at
er
ia
l 
ju
d
ge
m
en
t 
o
r 
th
o
se
 a
re
as
 w
h
er
e 
th
er
e 
is
 a
 h
ig
h
 u
n
d
er
ly
in
g 
(i
n
h
er
en
t)
 

ri
sk
 o
f 
m
is
st
at
em

en
t.
 W

e 
w
ill
 u
n
d
er
ta
ke
 a
n
 a
ss
es
sm

en
t 
o
f 
co
n
tr
o
ls
 (
if
 a
p
p
lic
ab
le
) 
ar
o
u
n
d
 t
h
e 
ri
sk
s 
an
d
 c
ar
ry
 o
u
t 
d
et
ai
le
d
 s
u
b
st
an
ti
ve
 t
es
ti
n
g.

O
th
e
r
–
O
th
er
 r
is
ks
 o
f 
m
at
er
ia
l 
m
is
st
at
em

en
t 
ar
e 
ty
p
ic
al
ly
 t
h
o
se
 t
ra
n
sa
ct
io
n
 c
yc
le
s 
an
d
 b
al
an
ce
s 
w
h
er
e 
th
er
e 
ar
e 
h
ig
h
 v
al
u
es
, l
ar
ge
 n
u
m
b
er
s 
o
f 
tr
an
sa
ct
io
n
s 

an
d
 r
is
ks
 a
ri
si
n
g 
fr
o
m
, f
o
r 
ex
am

p
le
, s
ys
te
m
 c
h
an
ge
s 
an
d
 i
ss
u
es
 id

en
ti
fi
ed
 f
ro
m
 p
re
vi
o
u
s 
ye
ar
s 
au
d
it
s.
 W

e 
w
ill
 a
ss
es
s 
co
n
tr
o
ls
an
d
 u
n
d
er
ta
ke
 s
u
b
st
an
ti
ve
 

te
st
in
g,
 t
h
e 
le
ve
l 
o
f 
w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 b
e 
re
d
u
ce
d
 w
h
er
e 
w
e 
ca
n
 r
el
y 
o
n
 c
o
n
tr
o
ls
.

N
o
n
e
–
O
u
r 
ri
sk
 a
ss
es
sm

en
t 
h
as
 n
o
t 
id
en
ti
fi
ed
 a
 r
is
k 
o
f 
m
is
st
at
em

en
t.
 W

e 
w
ill
 u
n
d
er
ta
ke
 s
u
b
st
an
ti
ve
 t
es
ti
n
g 
o
f 
m
at
er
ia
l 
b
al
an
ce
s.
  
W
h
er
e 
an
 i
te
m
 i
n
 t
h
e 

ac
co
u
n
ts
 i
s 
n
o
t 
m
at
er
ia
l 
w
e 
d
o
 n
o
t 
ca
rr
y 
o
u
t 
d
et
ai
le
d
 s
u
b
st
an
ti
ve
 t
es
ti
n
g.

Page 11



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 |

A
n
 a
u
d
it
 f
o
cu
se
d
 o
n
 r
is
k
s 
(c
o
n
ti
n
u
ed
)

A
c

c
o

u
n

t
M

a
te

ri
a

l
(o

r 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

ll
y
 

m
a

te
ri

a
l)

 

b
a

la
n

c
e

?

T
ra

n
s

a
c

ti
o

n
 C

y
c

le
In

h
e

re
n

t 
ri

s
k

M
a

te
ri

a
l 

m
is

s
ta

te
m

e
n

t

ri
s

k
?

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
R

is
k

S
u

b
s

ta
n

ti
v
e

 

te
s

ti
n

g
?

In
te

re
s
t 

p
a
y
a
b
le

 a
n
d
 

s
im

ila
r 

c
h
a
rg

e
s

N
o

B
o
rr

o
w

in
g
s

L
o
w

N
o
n
e

�

P
e
n
s
io

n
In

te
re

s
t 

c
o
s
t

Y
e
s

E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 r

e
m

u
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

L
o
w

N
o
n
e

�

In
te

re
s
t 

 &
 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
in

c
o
m

e

N
o

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
ts

L
o
w

N
o
n
e

�

R
e
tu

rn
 o

n
 P

e
n
s
io

n
 

a
s
s
e
ts

Y
e
s

E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 r

e
m

u
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

L
o
w

N
o
n
e

�

Im
p
a
ir
m

e
n
t
o
f 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
ts

N
o

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
ts

L
o
w

N
o
n
e

�

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
: 

In
c
o
m

e
 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

, 

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
, 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 &

 

g
a
in

 o
n
 d

is
p
o
s
a
l

N
o

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
, 

P
la

n
t 
&

 

E
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t

L
o
w

N
o
n
e

�

In
c
o
m

e
 f
ro

m
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

ta
x

Y
e
s

C
o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x

L
o
w

N
o
n
e

�

N
N

D
R

 D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n

Y
e
s

N
N

D
R

L
o
w

N
o
n
e

�

P
F

I 
re

v
e
n
u
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

g
ra

n
t&

 o
th

e
r 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

g
ra

n
ts

Y
e
s

G
ra

n
t 

In
c
o
m

e
L
o
w

N
o
n
e

�

C
a
p
it
a
l 
g
ra

n
ts

 &
 

C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
o
s
e

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 i
n
 a

d
v
a
n
c
e
)

Y
e
s

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
,

P
la

n
t 
&

 

E
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t

L
o
w

N
o
n
e

�

Page 12



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 |

A
n
 a
u
d
it
 f
o
cu
se
d
 o
n
 r
is
k
s 
(c
o
n
ti
n
u
ed
)

A
c

c
o

u
n

t
M

a
te

ri
a

l
(o

r 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

ll
y
 

m
a

te
ri

a
l)

 

b
a

la
n

c
e

?

T
ra

n
s

a
c

ti
o

n
 C

y
c

le
In

h
e

re
n

t 
ri

s
k

M
a

te
ri

a
l 

m
is

s
ta

te
m

e
n

t

ri
s

k
?

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
R

is
k

S
u

b
s

ta
n

ti
v
e

 

te
s

ti
n

g
?

(S
u
rp

lu
s
)/

 D
e
fi
c
it
 o

n
 

re
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
n
o
n
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

a
s
s
e
ts

Y
e
s

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
, 

P
la

n
t 
&

 

E
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t

L
o
w

N
o
n
e

�

A
c
tu

a
ri
a
l
(g

a
in

s
)/

 

L
o
s
s
e
s
 o

n
 p

e
n
s
io

n
 

fu
n
d
 a

s
s
e
ts

 &
 

lia
b
ili

ti
e
s

Y
e
s

E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 r

e
m

u
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

L
o
w

N
o
n
e

�

O
th

e
r 

c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 

(g
a
in

s
)/

L
o
s
s
e
s

N
o

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
/

O
p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 

e
x
p
e
n
s
e
s

L
o
w

N
o
n
e

�

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
,

P
la

n
t 
&

 

E
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t

Y
e
s

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
, 

P
la

n
t
&

 

E
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t

M
e
d
iu

m
O

th
e
r

P
P

E
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 n

o
t 

v
a
lid

�

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
,

P
la

n
t 
&

 

E
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t

Y
e
s

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
, 

P
la

n
t
&

 

E
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t

M
e
d
iu

m
 

O
th

e
r

R
e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n

m
e
a
s
u
re

m
e
n
ts

 n
o
t 

c
o
rr

e
c
t

�

H
e
ri
ta

g
e

a
s
s
e
ts

 &
 

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
p
ro

p
e
rt

y

Y
e
s

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
, 

P
la

n
t 
&

 

E
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t

L
o
w

N
o
n
e

�

In
ta

n
g
ib

le
 a

s
s
e
ts

N
o

In
ta

n
g
ib

le
 a

s
s
e
ts

L
o
w

N
o
n
e

�

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
ts

(l
o
n
g
 &

 

s
h
o
rt

 t
e
rm

)

Y
e
s

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
ts

L
o
w

N
o
n
e

�

D
e
b
to

rs
(l
o
n
g
 &

 s
h
o
rt

 

te
rm

)

Y
e
s

R
e
v
e
n
u
e

L
o
w

N
o
n
e

�

A
s
s
e
ts

 h
e
ld

 f
o
r 

s
a
le

N
o

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
, 

P
la

n
t 
&

 

E
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t

L
o
w

N
o
n
e

�

In
v
e
n
to

ri
e
s

N
o

In
v
e
n
to

ri
e
s

L
o
w

N
o
n
e

�

C
a
s
h

&
 c

a
s
h
 

E
q
u
iv

a
le

n
ts

Y
e
s

B
a
n
k

&
 C

a
s
h

L
o
w

N
o
n
e

�

Page 13



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 |

A
n
 a
u
d
it
 f
o
cu
se
d
 o
n
 r
is
k
s 
(c
o
n
ti
n
u
ed
)

A
c

c
o

u
n

t
M

a
te

ri
a

l
(o

r 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

ll
y
 

m
a

te
ri

a
l)

 

b
a

la
n

c
e

?

T
ra

n
s

a
c

ti
o

n
 C

y
c

le
In

h
e

re
n

t 
ri

s
k

M
a

te
ri

a
l 

m
is

s
ta

te
m

e
n

t

ri
s

k
?

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
R

is
k

S
u

b
s

ta
n

ti
v
e

 

te
s

ti
n

g
?

B
o
rr

o
w

in
g
 (

lo
n
g

&
 

s
h
o
rt

 t
e
rm

)

Y
e
s

D
e
b
t

L
o
w

N
o
n
e

�

C
re

d
it
o
rs

(l
o
n
g
 &

 

S
h
o
rt

 t
e
rm

)

Y
e
s

O
p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 E

x
p
e
n
s
e
s

M
e
d
iu

m
O

th
e
r

C
re

d
it
o
rs

 u
n
d
e
rs

ta
te

d
 o

r 
n
o
t 

re
c
o
rd

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
rr

e
c
t
p
e
ri
o
d

�

P
ro

v
is

io
n
s

(l
o
n
g
 &

 

s
h
o
rt

 t
e
rm

)

N
o

P
ro

v
is

io
n

L
o
w

N
o
n
e

�

P
e
n
s
io

n
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
Y

e
s

E
m

p
lo

y
e
e

re
m

u
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

L
o
w

N
o
n
e

�

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s

Y
e
s

E
q
u
it
y

L
o
w

N
o
n
e

�

Page 14



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 |

S
ig
n
if
ic
an
t 
ri
sk
s 
id
en
ti
fi
ed

'S
ig
n
if
ic
an
t 
ri
sk
s 
o
ft
en
 r
el
at
e 
to
 s
ig
n
if
ic
an
t 
n
o
n
-r
o
u
ti
n
e 
tr
an
sa
ct
io
n
s 
an
d
 j
u
d
gm

en
ta
l 
m
at
te
rs
. N

o
n
-r
o
u
ti
n
e 
tr
an
sa
ct
io
n
s 
ar
e 
tr
an
sa
ct
io
n
s 
th
at
 a
re
 u
n
u
su
al
, e
it
h
er
 d
u
e 
to
 s
iz
e 
o
r 

n
at
u
re
, a
n
d
 t
h
at
 t
h
er
ef
o
re
 o
cc
u
r 
in
fr
eq
u
en
tl
y.
 J
u
d
gm

en
ta
l 
m
at
te
rs
 m

ay
 i
n
cl
u
d
e 
th
e 
d
ev
el
o
p
m
en
t 
o
f 
ac
co
u
n
ti
n
g 
es
ti
m
at
es
 f
o
r 
w
h
ic
h
 t
h
er
e 
is
 s
ig
n
if
ic
an
t 
m
ea
su
re
m
en
t 

u
n
ce
rt
ai
n
ty
' (
IS
A
 3
15
).
 

In
 t
h
is
 s
ec
ti
o
n
 w
e 
o
u
tl
in
e 
th
e 
si
gn

if
ic
an
t 
ri
sk
s 
o
f 
m
at
er
ia
l 
m
is
st
at
em

en
t 
w
h
ic
h
 w
e 
h
av
e 
id
en
ti
fi
ed
.  
T
h
er
e 
ar
e 
tw

o
 p
re
su
m
ed
 s
ig
n
if
ic
an
t 
ri
sk
s 
w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 a
p
p
lic
ab
le
 t
o
 a
ll 
au
d
it
s 

u
n
d
er
 a
u
d
it
in
g 
st
an
d
ar
d
s 
(I
n
te
rn
at
io
n
al
 S
ta
n
d
ar
d
s 
o
n
 A
u
d
it
in
g 
–
IS
A
s)
  
w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 l
is
te
d
 b
el
o
w
:

S
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

ri
s

k
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

S
u

b
s

ta
n

ti
v
e

 a
u

d
it

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s

T
h

e
re

v
e

n
u

e
 c

y
c
le

in
c
lu

d
e

s
 

fr
a

u
d

u
le

n
t 
tr

a
n

s
a

c
ti
o

n
s

U
n

d
e

r 
IS

A
 2

4
0

 t
h

e
re

 i
s

a
 p

re
s
u

m
e

d
 r

is
k
 t
h

a
t 
re

v
e

n
u

e
 

m
a

y
 b

e
 m

is
s
ta

te
d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
ro

p
e

r 
re

c
o

g
n

it
io

n
 o

f 

re
v
e

n
u

e
.

W
o

rk
 p

la
n

n
e

d
:

�
R

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 t
e

s
ti
n

g
 o

f 
re

v
e

n
u

e
 r

e
c
o

g
n

it
io

n
 p

o
lic

ie
s

�
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 o
f 
a

tt
ri

b
u

te
 t
e

s
ti
n

g
 o

n
 m

a
te

ri
a

l r
e

v
e

n
u

e
 s

tr
e

a
m

s
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t
o

v
e

r-
ri

d
e

 o
f 
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

U
n

d
e

r
IS

A
 2

4
0

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 p
re

s
u

m
e

d
 r

is
k
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 r

is
k
 o

f 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
o

v
e

r-
ri

d
e

 o
f 
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 i
s
 p

re
s
e

n
t 
in

 a
ll 

e
n

ti
ti
e

s
.

W
o

rk
 p

la
n

n
e

d
:

�
R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
, 
ju

d
g

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 m

a
d

e
 b

y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

�
T

e
s
ti
n

g
 o

f 
jo

u
rn

a
l 
e

n
tr

ie
s

�
R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
u

n
u

s
u

a
l s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
tr

a
n

s
a

c
ti
o

n
s

Page 15



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 |

O
th
er
 r
is
k
s

T
h
e 
au
d
it
o
r 
sh
o
u
ld
 e
va
lu
at
e 
th
e 
d
es
ig
n
 a
n
d
 d
et
er
m
in
e 
th
e 
im

p
le
m
en
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e 
en
ti
ty
's
 c
o
n
tr
o
ls
, i
n
cl
u
d
in
g 
re
le
va
n
t 
co
n
tr
o
l 
ac
ti
vi
ti
es
, o

ve
r 
th
o
se
 r
is
ks
 f
o
r 
w
h
ic
h
, 
in
 t
h
e 

au
d
it
o
r'
s 
ju
d
gm

en
t,
 i
t 
is
 n
o
t 
p
o
ss
ib
le
 o
r 
p
ra
ct
ic
ab
le
 t
o
 r
ed
u
ce
 t
h
e 
ri
sk
s 
o
f 
m
at
er
ia
l 
m
is
st
at
em

en
t 
at
 t
h
e 
as
se
rt
io
n
 l
ev
el
 t
o
 a
n
 a
cc
ep
ta
b
ly
 l
o
w
 l
ev
el
 w
it
h
 a
u
d
it
 e
vi
d
en
ce
 o
b
ta
in
ed
 

o
n
ly
 f
ro
m
 s
u
b
st
an
ti
ve
 p
ro
ce
d
u
re
s 
(I
S
A
 3
15
).
 

O
th

e
r 

re
a

s
o

n
a

b
ly

 

p
o

s
s

ib
le

 

ri
s

k
s

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
W

o
rk

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 t

o
 d

a
te

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

w
o

rk
 p

la
n

n
e

d

O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 

e
x
p

e
n

s
e

s

O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
e

x
p

e
n

s
e

s
 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

te
d

�
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
o

u
r 

d
o

c
u

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

y
s
te

m
 a

n
d

 

p
e

rf
o

rm
e

d
 a

 w
a

lk
th

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls

�
W

e
 w

ill
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
te

s
ti
n

g
o

n
 a

 s
a

m
p

le
 o

f 
 p

u
rc

h
a

s
e

 in
v
o

ic
e

 

p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 

O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 

e
x
p

e
n

s
e

s

C
re

d
it
o

rs
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
te

d
 o

r 

n
o

t 
re

c
o

rd
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
rr

e
c
t 

p
e

ri
o

d

�
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 o

u
r

d
o

c
u

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

y
s
te

m
 a

n
d

 

p
e

rf
o

rm
e

d
 a

 w
a

lk
th

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls

�
W

e
 w

ill
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

 d
e

ta
ile

d
 t
e

s
ti
n

g
 o

f 
b

a
la

n
c
e

s
 a

s
p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
  

fi
n

a
l 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 a

u
d

it
.

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
 

re
m

u
n

e
ra

ti
o

n

R
e

m
u

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
e

x
p

e
n

s
e

s
 

n
o

t 
c
o

rr
e

c
t

�
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 o

u
r

d
o

c
u

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

y
s
te

m
�

W
e
 w

ill
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
a

 w
a

lk
th

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls

�
W

e
 w

ill
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
te

s
ti
n

g
o

n
 a

 s
a

m
p

le
 o

f 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
 r

e
m

u
n

e
ra

ti
o
n

 

p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 

W
e
lf
a

re
 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re

W
e
lf
a

re
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 

im
p

ro
p

e
rl

y
c
o

m
p

u
te

d

�
W

e
h

a
v
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 o

u
r 

d
o

c
u

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

y
s
te

m
 a

n
d

 

p
e

rf
o

rm
e

d
 a

 w
a

lk
th

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 

�
W

e
 a

re
 p

la
n

n
in

g
to

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

  
te

s
ti
n

g
 o

f 
b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 t
ra

n
s
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 

u
s
in

g
 t
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 H

B
C

o
u

n
t 
m

e
th

o
d

o
lo

g
y
 in

 J
u

n
e

 

2
0

1
3

H
o

u
s
in

g
 R

e
n

t

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 

A
c
c
o

u
n

t

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 t
ra

n
s
a

c
ti
o

n
s

n
o

t 

re
c
o

rd
e

d
.

�
W

e
h

a
v
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 o

u
r 

d
o

c
u

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

y
s
te

m
 a

n
d

 

p
e

rf
o

rm
e

d
 a

 w
a

lk
th

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 

�
W

e
 w

ill
 c

o
m

p
le

te
a

 p
re

d
ic

ti
v
e

 a
n

a
ly

ti
c
a

l 
re

v
ie

w
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 r

e
n

t
in

c
o

m
e

 i
s
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 o
u

r 
e

x
p

e
c
ta

ti
o

n
s

�
W

e
 w

ill
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

e
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 r

e
n

t 
s
y
s
te

m
 r

e
c
o

n
c
ile

s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 
s
y
s
te

m

Page 16



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 |

R
es
u
lt
s 
o
f 
in
te
ri
m
 a
u
d
it
 w
o
rk

S
c
o
p
e

A
s 
p
ar
t 
o
f 
th
e 
in
te
ri
m
 a
u
d
it
 w
o
rk
 a
n
d
 i
n
 a
d
va
n
ce
 o
f 
o
u
r 
fi
n
al
 a
cc
o
u
n
ts
 a
u
d
it
 f
ie
ld
w
o
rk
, w

e 
h
av
e 
co
n
si
d
er
ed
:

•
th
e 
ef
fe
ct
iv
en
es
s 
o
f 
th
e 
in
te
rn
al
 a
u
d
it
 f
u
n
ct
io
n

•
in
te
rn
al
 a
u
d
it
's
 w
o
rk
 o
n
 t
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l's
 k
ey
 f
in
an
ci
al
 s
ys
te
m
s

•
w
al
kt
h
ro
u
gh

 t
es
ti
n
g 
to
 c
o
n
fi
rm

 w
h
et
h
er
 c
o
n
tr
o
ls
 a
re
 i
m
p
le
m
en
te
d
 a
s 
p
er
 o
u
r 
u
n
d
er
st
an
d
in
g 
in
 a
re
as
 w
h
er
e 
w
e 
h
av
e 
id
en
ti
fi
ed
 a
 r
is
k 
o
f 
m
at
er
ia
l 
m
is
st
at
em

en
t

•
a 
re
vi
ew

 o
f 
In
fo
rm

at
io
n
 T
ec
h
n
o
lo
gy
 (
IT

) 
co
n
tr
o
ls

W
o

rk
p

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

C
o

n
c

lu
s

io
n

/
S

u
m

m
a

ry

In
te

rn
a

l
a

u
d

it
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 
a

 h
ig

h
 l
e

v
e

l 
re

v
ie

w
o

f
in

te
rn

a
l 
a

u
d

it
's

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
W

h
e
re

 t
h

e
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 d

e
e

m
e

d
 t
o

 b
e

 

a
d

e
q

u
a

te
, 
w

e
 c

a
n

 g
a

in
 a

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

w
o

rk
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 

b
y
 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
a

u
d

it
 a

n
d

 c
a

n
 c

o
n

c
lu

d
e

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 i
ts

e
lf
 i
s
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
ly

 t
o

 t
h

e
 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 w
it
h

in
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

O
v
e

ra
ll,

 w
e

 h
a

v
e

 c
o

n
c
lu

d
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 I
n

te
rn

a
l A

u
d

it
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

s
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 s
a

ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 t
o

 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n

d
 t
h

a
t 
w

e
 c

a
n

 t
a

k
e

 a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
ir

 w
o

rk
 i
n

 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 t
o

 a
n

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 
a

t 
th

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il.

 

W
a

lk
th

ro
u

g
h

te
s

ti
n

g
F

o
r 

o
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 e

x
p

e
n

s
e

s
, 
w

e
lf
a

re
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
a

n
d

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 r

e
n

t 

re
v
e

n
u

e
 s

y
s
te

m
s
, 
w

a
lk

th
ro

u
g

h
 t
e

s
ts

 w
e

re
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 in
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t
o

 

th
e

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 a

s
s
e

rt
io

n
 r

is
k
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

to
 p

re
s
e

n
t 
a

 

ri
s
k
 o

f 
m

a
te

ri
a

l m
is

s
ta

te
m

e
n
t 
to

 t
h

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

N
o

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
is

s
u

e
s
 w

e
re

 n
o

te
d

 a
n

d
 i
n

-y
e

a
r 

in
te

rn
a

l c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 

w
e

re
 o

b
s
e

rv
e

d
 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 in

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e
 w

it
h

 

o
u

r 
d

o
c
u

m
e

n
te

d
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
.

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

w
o

rk
 p

la
n

n
e

d
:

W
e
 w

ill
 w

a
lk

th
ro

u
g

h
 t
h

e
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
 r

e
m

u
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 s

y
s
te

m
 a

t 
th

e
 

e
n

d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 t
im

e
s
c
a

le
 p

re
fe

rr
e

d
 b

y
 y

o
u

r 

o
ff

ic
e

rs
.

W
e
 w

ill
re

p
o

rt
 t
h

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 o

f 
 t

h
e

 w
a

lk
th

ro
u

g
h

 t
o

 y
o

u
.

Page 17



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 |

R
es
u
lt
s 
o
f 
in
te
ri
m
 a
u
d
it
 w
o
rk
 (
co
n
ti
n
u
ed
)

W
o

rk
p

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

C
o

n
c

lu
s

io
n

/
S

u
m

m
a

ry

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 t
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g

y

(I
T

) 
c

o
n

tr
o

ls

T
h

is
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 f
o

r 
M

a
y
 2

0
1

3
.

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

w
o

rk
 p

la
n

n
e

d
:

O
u

r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 s

p
e

c
ia

lis
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g

 a
 h

ig
h

 

le
v
e

l 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 g

e
n

e
ra

l 
IT

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 
e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 
in

 M
a

y
 2

0
1

3
, 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 s
y
s
te

m
. 

W
e
 w

ill
 c

o
m

m
e

n
t 
o

n
 t

h
e

 e
x
te

n
t 

to
 w

h
ic

h
w

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

IT
 

c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 in

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 o
u

r 

d
o

c
u

m
e

n
te

d
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
. 

J
o

u
rn

a
l 
e

n
tr

y
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 j
o

u
rn

a
l 
e

n
tr

y
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d

 
p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
d

e
te

rm
in

in
g

 o
u

r 
jo

u
rn

a
l 
e

n
tr

y
 t
e

s
ti
n

g
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 

a
n

d
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

t 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
y
 m

a
te

ri
a

l w
e

a
k
n

e
s
s
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 
a

d
v
e

rs
e

ly
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
c
o

n
tr

o
l 
e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 
o

r 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
.

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

w
o

rk
 p

la
n

n
e

d
:

W
e
 w

ill
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

 d
e

ta
ile

d
te

s
ti
n

g
 o

n
 j
o

u
rn

a
l 
tr

a
n

s
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 

th
ro

u
g

h
o

u
t 
th

e
 y

e
a

r,
 b

y
 e

x
tr

a
c
ti
n

g
 'u

n
u

s
u

a
l' 

e
n

tr
ie

s
 f
o

r 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
. 

Page 18



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 |

V
al
u
e 
fo
r 
M
o
n
ey

In
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n

T
h
e 
C
o
d
e 
o
f 
A
u
d
it
 P
ra
ct
ic
e 
re
q
u
ir
es
 u
s 
to
 i
ss
u
e 
a 
co
n
cl
u
si
o
n
 o
n
 w
h
et
h
er
 t
h
e 

C
o
u
n
ci
l 
h
as
 p
u
t 
in
 p
la
ce
 p
ro
p
er
 a
rr
an
ge
m
en
ts
 f
o
r 
se
cu
ri
n
g 
ec
o
n
o
m
y,
 

ef
fi
ci
en
cy
 a
n
d
 e
ff
ec
ti
ve
n
es
s 
in
 i
ts
 u
se
 o
f 
re
so
u
rc
es
. T

h
is
 is
 k
n
o
w
n
 a
s 
th
e 
V
al
u
e 

fo
r 
M
o
n
ey
 (
V
fM

) 
co
n
cl
u
si
o
n
. 

2
0
1
2
/1
3
 V
F
M
 c
o
n
c
lu
s
io
n
 

O
u
r 
V
al
u
e 
fo
r 
M
o
n
ey
 c
o
n
cl
u
si
o
n
 w
ill
 b
e 
b
as
ed
 o
n
 t
w
o
 r
ep
o
rt
in
g 
cr
it
er
ia
 

sp
ec
if
ie
d
 b
y 
th
e 
A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
.

W
e 
w
ill
 t
ai
lo
r 
o
u
r 
V
fM

 w
o
rk
 t
o
 e
n
su
re
 t
h
at
 a
s 
w
el
l 
as
 a
d
d
re
ss
in
g 
h
ig
h
 r
is
k 

ar
ea
s 
it
 i
s,
 w
h
er
ev
er
 p
o
ss
ib
le
, f
o
cu
se
d
 o
n
 t
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l's
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 a
re
as
 a
n
d
 c
an
 

b
e 
u
se
d
 a
s 
a 
so
u
rc
e 
o
f 
as
su
ra
n
ce
 f
o
r 
m
em

b
er
s.
 W

h
er
e 
w
e 
p
la
n
 t
o
 u
n
d
er
ta
ke
 

sp
ec
if
ic
 r
ev
ie
w
s 
to
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
u
r 
V
fM

 c
o
n
cl
u
si
o
n
, w

e 
w
ill
 i
ss
u
e 
a 
T
er
m
s 
o
f 

R
ef
er
en
ce
 f
o
r 
ea
ch
 r
ev
ie
w
 o
u
tl
in
in
g 
th
e 
sc
o
p
e,
 m

et
h
o
d
o
lo
gy
 a
n
d
 t
im

in
g 
o
f 
th
e 

re
vi
ew

. T
h
es
e 
w
ill
 b
e 
ag
re
ed
 i
n
 a
d
va
n
ce
 a
n
d
 p
re
se
n
te
d
 t
o
 A
u
d
it
 a
n
d
 

G
o
ve
rn
an
ce
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e.

T
h
e 
re
su
lt
s 
o
f 
al
l 
o
u
r 
lo
ca
l 
V
fM

 a
u
d
it
 w
o
rk
 a
n
d
 k
ey
 m

es
sa
ge
s 
w
ill
 b
e 
re
p
o
rt
ed
 

in
 o
u
r 
A
u
d
it
 F
in
d
in
gs
 r
ep
o
rt
 a
n
d
 i
n
 t
h
e 
A
n
n
u
al
 A

u
d
it
 L
et
te
r.
 W

e 
w
ill
 a
gr
ee
 

an
y 
ad
d
it
io
n
al
 r
ep
o
rt
in
g 
to
 t
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l 
o
n
 a
 r
ev
ie
w
-b
y-
re
vi
ew

 b
as
is
.

C
o
d
e
 c

r
it

e
r
ia

W
o
r
k
 t

o
 b

e
 u

n
d
e
r
t
a
k
e
n

R
is
k-
b
as
ed
 w
o
rk
 f
o
cu
si
n
g 
o
n
 a
rr
an
ge
m
en
ts
 r
el
at
in
g 

to
 f
in
an
ci
al
 g
o
ve
rn
an
ce
, s
tr
at
eg
ic
 f
in
an
ci
al
 p
la
n
n
in
g 

an
d
 f
in
an
ci
al
 c
o
n
tr
o
l. 

S
p
ec
if
ic
al
ly
 w
e 
w
ill
:

•
u
n

d
er

ta
k
e 

a 
d

et
ai

le
d

 r
is

k
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t 
w

h
ic

h
 

w
il
l 
su

p
p

o
rt

 o
u
r 

o
ve

ra
ll
 c

o
n

cl
u
si

o
n

 

•
u
n

d
er

ta
k
e 

a 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 r
es

il
ie

n
ce

 r
ev

ie
w

W
e
 w

ill
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

w
h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
s
in

g
 i
ts

 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 w

it
h
 t

ig
h
te

r 
b
u
d
g

e
ts

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 

p
ro

p
e
r 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 
in

 p
la

c
e
 f

o
r:

•
s
e
c
u
ri
n
g

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
re

s
ili

e
n
c
e
 

•
c
h
a
lle

n
g

in
g

 h
o
w

 i
t 

s
e
c
u
re

s
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 in

 i
ts

 
u
s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s

Page 19



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 |

T
h
e
 a
u
d
it
 c
y
c
le

L
o
gi
st
ic
s 
an
d
 o
u
r 
te
am

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

/

re
p

o
rt

in
g

 
D

e
b

ri
e
f

in
te

ri
m

 a
u

d
it

v
is

it

F
in

a
l 
a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 

v
is

it

J
a

n
 a

n
d

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
3

J
u

ly
 2

0
1

3
S

e
p

 2
0

1
3

 
O

c
t 

2
0

1
3

K
e
y
 p
h
a
s
e
s
 o
f 
o
u
r 
a
u
d
it

2
0
1
2
-2

0
1
3

D
a
te

A
c
ti
v
it
y

J
a

n
 2

0
1

3
P

la
n

n
in

g
m

e
e

ti
n

g

J
a

n
/ 
a

n
d

 

M
a

rc
h

 

2
0

1
3

In
te

ri
m

 s
it
e

 w
o

rk
 

M
a

rc
h

2
0

1
3

T
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 p

la
n

 p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 t
o

 

A
u

d
it

C
o

m
m

it
te

e

A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1
3

P
la

n
n

in
g

 m
e

e
ti
n

g

M
a

y
 2

0
1

3
P

la
n

n
in

g
 m

e
e

ti
n

g

8
 J

u
ly

 2
0

1
3

Y
e

a
r

e
n

d
 f
ie

ld
w

o
rk

 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

s

6
 S

e
p

 2
0

1
3

A
u

d
it
 f
in

d
in

g
s
 c

le
a

ra
n

c
e

m
e

e
ti
n

g

2
6

 S
e

p

2
0

1
3

 

A
u

d
it

a
n

d
 G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 t
o

 

re
p

o
rt

 o
u

r 
fi
n

d
in

g
s

S
e

p
2

0
1

3
S

ig
n

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

ls
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

a
n

d
 V

fM
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n

O
c

t 
2

0
1

3
Is

s
u

e
 A

n
n

u
a

l
A

u
d

it
 L

e
tt

e
r

O
u
r 
te
a
m

J
a

m
e

s
 C

o
o

k

A
s

s
o

c
ia

te
 D

ir
e

c
to

r

T
  

0
1

2
1

 2
3

2
 5

3
4

3
 

M
 0

7
8

8
0

4
5

 6
1

0
2

E
ja

m
e

s
.a

.c
o

o
k
@

u
k
.g

t.
c
o

m

J
o

a
n

 B
a

rn
e

tt

M
a

n
a

g
e

r

T
 0

1
2

1
2

3
2

 5
3

3
7

M
 0

7
8

8
 0

4
5

 6
1

0
1

E
 j
o

a
n

.m
.b

a
rn

e
tt

@
u

k
.g

t.
c
o

m

M
a

tt
h

e
w

 B
e

rr
is

fo
rd

E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

T
 0

1
2

1
2

3
2

 5
3

5
2

E
 m

a
tt

h
e

w
.j
.b

e
rr

is
fo

rd
@

u
k
.g

t.
c
o

m

A
n

d
y
 D

a
v
ie

s

E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

T
 0

1
2

1
2

3
2

 5
4

1
7

E
 a

n
d

re
w

.d
a

v
ie

s
@

u
k
.g

t.
c
o

m

Page 20



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 |

F
e
e
s

£

C
ou

nc
il 

au
di

t
65

,5
50

G
ra

nt
 c

er
tif

ic
at

io
n

18
,8

00

T
o

ta
l

84
,3

50

F
ee
s 
an
d
 i
n
d
ep
en
d
en
ce

O
u
r 
fe
e
 a
s
s
u
m
p
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
:

�
O
u
r 
fe
es
 a
re
 e
xc
lu
si
ve
 o
f 
V
A
T
 

�
S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g 
sc
h
ed
u
le
s 
to
 a
ll 
fi
gu

re
s 
in
 t
h
e 
ac
co
u
n
ts
 

ar
e 
su
p
p
lie
d
 b
y 
th
e 
ag
re
ed
 d
at
es
 a
n
d
 i
n
 a
cc
o
rd
an
ce
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e 
ag
re
ed
 u
p
o
n
 i
n
fo
rm

at
io
n
 r
eq
u
es
t 
lis
t

�
T
h
e 
sc
o
p
e 
o
f 
th
e 
au
d
it
, a
n
d
 t
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l 
an
d
 i
ts
 

ac
ti
vi
ti
es
 h
av
e 
n
o
t 
ch
an
ge
d
 s
ig
n
if
ic
an
tl
y

�
T
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l 
w
ill
 m

ak
e 
av
ai
la
b
le
 m

an
ag
em

en
t 
an
d
 

ac
co
u
n
ti
n
g 
st
af
f 
to
 h
el
p
 u
s 
lo
ca
te
 i
n
fo
rm

at
io
n
 a
n
d
 

to
 p
ro
vi
d
e 
ex
p
la
n
at
io
n
s

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 e
th
ic
s

W
e 
co
n
fi
rm

 t
h
at
 t
h
er
e 
ar
e 
n
o
 s
ig
n
if
ic
an
t 
fa
ct
s 
o
r 
m
at
te
rs
 t
h
at
 i
m
p
ac
t 
o
n
 o
u
r 
in
d
ep
en
d
en
ce
 a
s 
au
d
it
o
rs
 t
h
at
 w
e 
ar
e 

re
q
u
ir
ed
 o
r 
w
is
h
 t
o
 d
ra
w
 t
o
 y
o
u
r 
at
te
n
ti
o
n
. 
W
e 
h
av
e 
co
m
p
lie
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e 
A
u
d
it
in
g 
P
ra
ct
ic
es
 B
o
ar
d
's
 E
th
ic
al
 

S
ta
n
d
ar
d
s 
an
d
 t
h
er
ef
o
re
 w
e 
co
n
fi
rm

 t
h
at
 w
e 
ar
e 
in
d
ep
en
d
en
t 
an
d
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 e
xp

re
ss
 a
n
 o
b
je
ct
iv
e 
o
p
in
io
n
 o
n
 t
h
e 

fi
n
an
ci
al
 s
ta
te
m
en
ts
.

F
u
ll 
d
et
ai
ls
 o
f 
al
l 
fe
es
 c
h
ar
ge
d
 f
o
r 
au
d
it
 a
n
d
 n
o
n
-a
u
d
it
 s
er
vi
ce
s 
w
ill
 b
e 
in
cl
u
d
ed
 i
n
 o
u
r 
A
u
d
it
 F
in
d
in
gs
 r
ep
o
rt
 a
t 
th
e 

co
n
cl
u
si
o
n
 o
f 
th
e 
au
d
it
.

W
e 
co
n
fi
rm

 t
h
at
 w
e 
h
av
e 
im

p
le
m
en
te
d
 p
o
lic
ie
s 
an
d
 p
ro
ce
d
u
re
s 
to
 m

ee
t 
th
e 
re
q
u
ir
em

en
t 
o
f 
th
e 
A
u
d
it
in
g 
P
ra
ct
ic
es
 

B
o
ar
d
's
 E
th
ic
al
 S
ta
n
d
ar
d
s.

F
e
e
s
 f
o
r 
o
th
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s

S
e

rv
ic

e
F

e
e

s
 £

N
o

n
e

 
N

il

Page 21



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 |

C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
at
io
n
 o
f 
au
d
it
 m
at
te
rs
 w
it
h
 t
h
o
se
 c
h
ar
g
ed
 w
it
h
 g
o
ve
rn
an
ce

O
u

r 
c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

 p
la

n

A
u

d
it

 

p
la

n

A
u

d
it

 

fi
n

d
in

g
s

R
e

s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 o

f 
a

u
d

it
o

r 
a

n
d

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t/

th
o

s
e

 c
h

a
rg

e
d

 

w
it
h

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

�

O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 s

c
o

p
e

 a
n

d
 t
im

in
g

 o
f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
. 
F

o
rm

, 
ti
m

in
g

 

a
n

d
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 g

e
n

e
ra

l 
c
o

n
te

n
t 
o

f 
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o
n

s

�

V
ie

w
s
 a

b
o

u
t 
th

e
 q

u
a

lit
a

ti
v
e

 a
s
p

e
c
ts

  
o

f 
th

e
 e

n
ti
ty

's
a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
, 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
m

a
tt

e
rs

 a
n

d
 i
s
s
u

e
 a

ri
s
in

g
 d

u
ri

n
g

 

th
e

 a
u

d
it
 a

n
d

 w
ri

tt
e

n
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

s
 t
h

a
t 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 s
o

u
g

h
t

�

C
o

n
fi
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
it
y

�
�

A
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
t 
th

a
t 
w

e
 h

a
v
e

 c
o

m
p

lie
d

 w
it
h

  
re

le
v
a

n
t 
e

th
ic

a
l 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 

re
g

a
rd

in
g

 in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c
e
, 
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

m
a

tt
e

rs
 w

h
ic

h
 m

ig
h

t 
 

b
e

 t
h

o
u

g
h

t 
to

 b
e

a
r 

o
n

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e
. 

D
e

ta
ils

 o
f 
n

o
n

-a
u

d
it
 w

o
rk

 p
e

rf
o

rm
e

d
 b

y
 G

ra
n

t 
T

h
o

rn
to

n
 U

K
 L

L
P

 a
n

d
 

n
e

tw
o

rk
 f
ir

m
s
, 
to

g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

  
fe

e
s
 c

h
a

rg
e

d
. 
 

D
e

ta
ils

 o
f 
s
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
s
 a

p
p

lie
d

 t
o

 t
h

re
a

ts
 t
o

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

�
�

M
a

te
ri

a
l 
w

e
a

k
n

e
s
s
e

s
 i
n

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
�

Id
e

n
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

r 
s
u

s
p

ic
io

n
 o

f 
fr

a
u

d
 i
n

v
o

lv
in

g
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

/o
r 

o
th

e
rs

 

w
h

ic
h

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 i
n

 m
a

te
ri

a
l 
m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

�

N
o

n
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h

 l
a

w
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

g
u

la
ti
o

n
s

�

E
x
p

e
c
te

d
 m

o
d

if
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
o

r'
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

, 
o

r 
e

m
p

h
a

s
is

 o
f 
m

a
tt

e
r

�

U
n

c
o

rr
e

c
te

d
 m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
�

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
m

a
tt

e
rs

 a
ri

s
in

g
 i
n

 c
o

n
n

e
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 r
e

la
te

d
 p

a
rt

ie
s

�

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
m

a
tt

e
rs

 in
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t
o

 g
o

in
g

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
�

In
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 o

n
 A

u
d

it
in

g
  
(I

S
A

) 
2

6
0

, 
a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 o

th
e

r 
IS

A
s
, 
p

re
s
c
ri

b
e

 m
a

tt
e

rs
 

w
h

ic
h

 w
e

 a
re

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 t
o

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

te
 w

it
h

 t
h

o
s
e

 c
h

a
rg

e
d

 w
it
h

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

, 
a

n
d

 w
h

ic
h

 

w
e

 s
e

t 
o

u
t 
in

 t
h

e
 t
a

b
le

 o
p

p
o

s
it
e

. 
 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t,

 T
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

, 
o

u
tl
in

e
s
 o

u
r 

a
u

d
it
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 a

n
d

 p
la

n
 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
, 

w
h

ile
 T

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 F

in
d

in
g

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 p
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
o

f 
th

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
  
a

n
d

 

w
ill

 p
re

s
e

n
t 
k
e

y
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

m
a

tt
e

rs
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
, 
to

g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

 a
n

 

e
x
p

la
n

a
ti
o

n
 a

s
 t
o

 h
o

w
 t

h
e

s
e

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 r
e

s
o

lv
e

d
.

W
e
 w

ill
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
te

 a
n

y
 a

d
v
e

rs
e

 o
r 

u
n

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 f
in

d
in

g
s
 a

ff
e

c
ti
n

g
 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 o

n
 a

 t
im

e
ly

 

b
a

s
is

, 
e

it
h

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a

lly
 o

r 
v
ia

 a
 r

e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

R
e
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
ie
s

T
h

is
 p

la
n

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

te
x
t 

o
f 
th

e
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 o

f 

A
u

d
it
o

rs
 a

n
d

 A
u

d
it
e

d
 B

o
d

ie
s
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 (

w
w

w
.a

u
d

it
-

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
.g

o
v
.u

k
).

 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
p

p
o

in
te

d
 a

s
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
e

x
te

rn
a

l 
a

u
d

it
o

rs
 b

y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
, 
th

e
 b

o
d

y
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f
o

r 
a

p
p

o
in

ti
n

g
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 
a

u
d

it
o

rs
 t
o

 l
o

c
a

l 
p

u
b

lic
 b

o
d

ie
s
 

in
 E

n
g

la
n

d
. 
A

s
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 
a

u
d

it
o

rs
, 
w

e
 h

a
v
e

 a
 b

ro
a

d
 r

e
m

it
 c

o
v
e

ri
n

g
 f
in

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 

g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 m
a

tt
e

rs
. 

O
u

r 
a

n
n

u
a

l 
w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 is

 s
e

t 
in

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
A

u
d

it
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 (
'th

e
 

C
o

d
e

')
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

lly
 p

re
s
c
ri

b
e

d
 a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

lly
 

d
e

te
rm

in
e

d
 w

o
rk

. 
O

u
r 

w
o

rk
 c

o
n

s
id

e
rs

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 k

e
y
 r

is
k
s
 w

h
e

n
 r

e
a

c
h

in
g

 o
u

r 

c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 C
o

d
e

. 

It
 i
s
 t
h

e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
p

ro
p

e
r 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 f
o

r 

th
e

 c
o

n
d

u
c
t 
o

f 
it
s
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
, 
a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 
p

u
b

lic
 m

o
n

e
y
 i
s
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

e
d

 a
n

d
 p

ro
p

e
rl

y
 

a
c
c
o

u
n

te
d

 f
o

r.
  
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 f
u

lf
ill

in
g

 t
h

e
s
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
. 

Page 22



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. 
A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

. 

'G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n'

 m
ea

ns
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
U

K
 L

LP
, 

a 
lim

ite
d 

lia
bi

lit
y

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p.

 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

is
 a

 m
em

be
r 

fir
m

 o
f 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
n

al
 L

td
 

(G
ra

nt
T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l).
 R

ef
er

en
ce

s 
to

 'G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n'

 a
re

 
to

 t
he

 b
ra

nd
 u

nd
er

 w
hi

ch
 t

he
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
m

em
be

r 
fir

m
s 

op
er

at
e 

an
d 

re
fe

r 
to

 o
ne

 o
r 

m
or

e 
m

em
be

r 
fir

m
s,

 a
s 

th
e 

co
nt

ex
t 

re
qu

ire
s.

 
G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l 

an
d 

th
e 

m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s 
ar

e 
no

t 
a 

w
or

ld
w

id
e 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p.

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 i

nd
ep

en
de

nt
ly

 b
y 

m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s,
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 n
ot

 r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 f
or

 t
he

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
or

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 

of
 o

ne
 a

no
th

er
. 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l 
do

es
 n

ot
 p

ro
vi

de
 

se
rv

ic
es

 t
o 

cl
ie

nt
s.

 

g
ra

n
t-

th
o

rn
to

n
.c

o
.u

k

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

28th March 2013 
 

Report of the Executive Director Corporate Services 
 

REVIEW OF THE TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT, MINIMUM 
REVENUE PROVISION POLICY STATEMENT & ANNUAL INVESTMENT STATEMENT 

2013/14  
 
Purpose 
 
To review the Treasury Management Strategy Statement, Minimum Revenue Provision 
Statement and Annual Investment Statement 2013/14 approved by Council on 26th February 
2013. 
 
Executive Summary 
 
At its meeting on 23rd February 2010, the Council approved the Treasury Management Strategy and 
Prudential Indicators including, as required by the Code, that the Audit & Governance Committee be 
given the opportunity to scrutinise the strategy and policies, as well as receiving regular monitoring 
reports. 
 

With regard to the appointment of a Committee to be responsible for ensuring effective scrutiny of the 
Treasury Management Strategy and Policies, the code suggests: 
 

• This involves reviewing the Treasury Management policy and procedures and making 
recommendations to the responsible body; 

 

• Public Service Organisations have a responsibility to ensure that those charged with 
governance have access to the skills and knowledge they require to carry out this role 
effectively; 

 

• Those charged with Governance also have a personal responsibility to ensure they have the 
appropriate skills and training in their role; 

 

• The procedures for monitoring Treasury Management activities through audit, scrutiny and 
inspection should be sound and rigorously applied, with an openness of access to information 
and well-defined arrangements for the review and implementation of recommendations for 
change; and 

 

• This includes the provision of monitoring information and regular review by Councillors in both 
executive and Scrutiny functions. 

 
In compliance with the above, a copy of the Treasury Management Strategy and Prudential Indicators 
for 2013/14 is attached at Appendix 1. 
 

Recommendations  
 

That  Members consider the report attached at Appendix 1 and highlight any changes for 
recommendation to Cabinet. 

Agenda Item 5

Page 25



Equalities implications 
 
There are no equalities implications arising from the report. 
 
Legal implications 
 
Approval of Prudential Indicators and an Annual Investment Strategy is a legal requirement of 
the Local Government Act 2003. Members are required under the CIPFA Code of Practice to 
have ownership and understanding when making decisions on Treasury Management matters. 
 
Resource and Value for Money implications 
 
All financial resource implications are detailed in the body of this report which links to the 
Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy. 
 
Risk implications 
 
Risk is inherent in Treasury Management and as such a risk based approach has been adopted 
throughout the report with regard to Treasury Management processes. 
 
Report Author:  
 
Please contact Phil Thomas, Financial Accountant or Stefan Garner, Director of Finance, 
extension 239 or 242. 
 
 

Background Papers:- Corporate Vision, Priorities Plan, Budget & Medium Term 
Financial Strategy 2013/14 to 2015/16 Including Treasury 
Management Strategy Statement, Minimum Revenue 
Provision Policy Statement and Annual Investment Statement 
2013/14. Council 24th February 2013. 

Annual Treasury Report 2011/12 Council 11th September 
2012. 
 

Treasury Management Strategy Statement, Minimum 
Revenue Provision Policy Statement and Annual Investment 
Statement 2012/13 Council 28th February 2012. 

Treasury Management Practices 2013/14 (Operational 
Detail). 
 

 

Page 26



 

  

APPENDIX 1 
 

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT, TREASURY MANAGEMENT 
POLICY STATEMENT, MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION POLICY STATEMENT AND 

ANNUAL INVESTMENT STATEMENT 2013/14 
 
Purpose 
 
To comply with the requirement of the Council’s Treasury Management Policy in reporting to 
Council the proposed strategy for the forthcoming year and the Local Government Act 2003 with 
the reporting of the Prudential Indicators. 
 
Executive Summary 
 
The Local Government Act 2003 (LGA 2003) requires the Council to produce prudential 
indicators in line with the Prudential Code.   
 
This report outlines the Council’s prudential indicators for 2013/14 – 2015/16 and sets out the 
expected Treasury operations for this period. This report and associated tables fulfil the 
statutory requirement of the LGA 2003 by: 
 

• Reporting the prudential indicators as required by the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local 
Authorities; 

 
• Setting the Council’s Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy, which defines how the 

Council will pay for capital assets through revenue contributions each year (as required 
by Regulation under the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007; 

 
• Setting the Treasury Management Strategy in accordance with the CIPFA Code of 

Practice on Treasury Management; 
 

• Adopting the Councils Treasury Management Policy Statement as recommended within 
the CIPFA Code of Practice 2011; 

 
• Setting the Investment Strategy (in accordance with the Department for Communities 

and Local Government (DCLG) investment guidance); 
 

• Affirming the effective management and responsibility for the control of risk and clearly 
identify our appetite for risk. The Authority’s risk appetite is low in order to give priority to 
Security, Liquidity then Yield (or return on investments). 

 

Page 27



 

  

The main issues for Members to note are: 
 
1. The CIPFA Code of Practice and associated Guidance Notes adopted by the Council in 

December 2012 require that: 
 

• Credit ratings should only be used as a starting point when considering risk. Use should 
also be made of market data and information, the quality financial press, information on 
government support for banks and the credit ratings of that government support; 

 
• There needs to be, at a minimum, a mid year review of Treasury Management Strategy and 

Performance. The review is intended to highlight any areas of concern that have arisen 
since the original strategy was approved; 

 
• Each Council must delegate the role of scrutiny of Treasury Management Strategy and 

policies to a specific named body – the Audit and Governance Committee has been given 
this role; 

 
• Members should be provided with access to relevant training – Members are also personally 

responsible for ensuring they have the necessary skills and training. 
 

The aim is for all Members to have ownership and understanding when making decisions on 
Treasury Management matters. 

 
2. With regard to Counterparty selection for investment, rather than adopt a Lowest Common 

Denominator (LCD) methodology, a broader counterparty evaluation criteria is used by 
Sector (the Council’s Treasury Management consultants). This methodology has been 
progressively enhanced over the last year and now uses a sophisticated modelling 
approach with credit ratings from all three rating agencies forming the core element – but in 
line with best practice/guidance also includes the following as overlays: -  

 

• credit watches and credit outlooks from credit rating agencies; 

• Credit Default Swap (CDS) spreads to give early warning of likely changes in credit ratings; 

• Sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most creditworthy countries. 

 
The adoption of the above approach will help mitigate risks associated with the investment 
portfolio. 

 
3. As agreed in past Treasury Management Strategies, it is proposed that the Council 

(following consultation with our advisors) will not use the approach suggested by CIPFA of 
using the lowest common denominator rating from all three rating agencies to determine 
creditworthy counterparties (as Moodys are currently very much more aggressive in giving 
low ratings than the other two agencies). The use of the Lowest Common Denominator 
rating would give the Authority a very restrictive/unworkable counterparty list which would 
result in a disproportional (high) level of investment in a few institutions which would as a 
consequence increase investment risk with the investments being held with a limited 
number of counterparties which would be counter-productive in not allowing the sharing / 
spreading of risk over a higher number of counterparties. This would therefore be 
unworkable and leave the Council with few banks on its approved lending list. 

 
The Sector creditworthiness service does though, use ratings from all three agencies, but 
by using a scoring system, does not give undue importance to just one agency’s ratings. 

Page 28



 

  

 
The approach taken in item 2 and 3 above allows officers charged with the Treasury responsibilities 
to have the most appropriate/market assessment to aid the investment decision making process 
and provides a broad methodology for identifying High Credit Quality counterparties. 
 
Equalities Implications 
 
There are no equalities implications arising from the report. 
 
Legal Implications 
 
Approval of Prudential Indicators and an Annual Investment Strategy is a legal requirement of 
the Local Government Act 2003. Members are required under the CIPFA Code of Practice to 
have ownership and understanding when making decisions on Treasury Management matters. 
 
Resource and Value for Money Implications 
 
All financial resource implications are detailed in the body of this report which links to the 
Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy. 
 
Risk Implications 
 
Risk is inherent in Treasury Management and as such a risk based approach has been 
adopted throughout the report with regard to Treasury Management processes. 
 
A Glossary of terms utilised within the report can be found at ANNEX 8. 
 
Report Author 

  
Please contact Phil Thomas, Financial Accountant, extension 239 or via email  
phil-thomas@tamworth.gov.uk 
 

Background Papers:- 
Local Government Act 2003 

CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management in Public 
Services 2011 

DCLG Guidance on Local Government Investments March 
2010 

Annual Treasury Report 2011/12 Council, 11/09/12 

Mid-year Treasury Report 2012/13 Council, 13/12/12 

Budget & Medium Term Financial Strategy 2013/14 

Treasury Management Practices 2013/14 (Operational 
Detail) 

 

Page 29



 

  

1.  Introduction 

1.1 The Treasury Management Policy Statement 
 
This Council defines its Treasury Management activities as: 
 

• The management of the Council’s investments and cash flows, its banking, money market 
and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those 
activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks.  

 
• This organisation regards the successful identification, monitoring and control of risk to be 

the prime criteria by which the effectiveness of its Treasury Management activities will be 
measured. Accordingly, the analysis and reporting of Treasury Management activities will 
focus on their risk implications for the organisation, and any financial instruments entered 
into to manage these risks. 

 
• This organisation acknowledges that effective Treasury Management will provide support 

towards the achievement of its business and service objectives. It is therefore committed to 
the principles of achieving value for money in Treasury Management, and to employing 
suitable comprehensive performance measurement techniques, within the context of 
effective risk management. 

 
• The Council is required to operate a balanced budget, which broadly means that cash raised 

during the year will meet cash expenditure.  Part of the Treasury Management operation is 
to ensure that this cash flow is adequately planned, with cash being available when it is 
needed. Surplus monies are invested in low risk counterparties or instruments 
commensurate with the Council’s low risk appetite, providing adequate liquidity initially 
before considering investment return. 

 
• The second main function of the Treasury Management service is the funding of the 

Council’s capital plans. These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of the 
Council, essentially the longer term cash flow planning to ensure that the Council can meet 
its capital spending obligations. This management of longer term cash may involve 
arranging long or short term loans, or using longer term cash flow surpluses. On occasion 
any debt previously drawn may be restructured to meet Council risk or cost objectives.  

 
1.2 Reporting Requirements 
 
The Council is required to receive and approve, as a minimum, three main reports each year, 
which incorporate a variety of polices, estimates and actuals. These reports are required to be 
adequately scrutinised by committee. This role is undertaken by the Audit and Governance 
Committee. 
 
Prudential and Treasury Indicators and Treasury Strategy (This report) - The first, and 
most important report covers: 
 

• the capital plans (including prudential indicators); 

• a Minimum Revenue Provision Policy (how residual capital expenditure is charged to revenue 
over time); 

• the Treasury Management Strategy (how the investments and borrowings are to be 
organised) including treasury indicators; and  

• an investment strategy (the parameters on how investments are to be managed). 

 

Page 30



 

  

A Mid Year Treasury Management Report – This will update members with the progress of 
the capital position, amending prudential indicators as necessary, and report whether the 
treasury strategy is meeting the strategy or whether any policies require revision. 
 
An Annual Treasury Report – This provides details of a selection of actual prudential and 
treasury indicators and actual treasury operations compared to the estimates within the 
strategy. 
 
1.3 Treasury Management Strategy for 2013/14 
 
The strategy for 2013/14 covers two main areas: 
 
a) Capital Issues 

 

• the capital plans and the prudential indicators (2.1, 2.2); 

• the MRP strategy (2.3). 
 

b) Treasury Management Issues 
 

• the current treasury position (2.4); 

• treasury indicators  which will limit the treasury risk and activities of the Council (3); 

• prospects for interest rates (3.3); 

• the borrowing strategy (3.4); 

• policy on borrowing in advance of need (3.5); 

• debt rescheduling (3.6); 

• the investment strategy (4.1); 

• creditworthiness policy (4.2); and 

• policy on use of external service providers (4.7). 
 

These elements cover the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, the CIFPA Prudential 
Code, the CLG MRP Guidance, the CIPFA Treasury Management Code and the CLG Investment 
Guidance. 

1.4 Training 

The CIPFA Code requires the responsible officer to ensure that members with responsibility for 
treasury management receive adequate training in treasury management. This especially applies to 
members responsible for scrutiny. Training has been undertaken by Members in February and 
October 2010 and September 2011. Further training will be arranged as required.   

The training needs of treasury management officers are periodically reviewed.  

1.5 Treasury Management Consultants 

The Council uses Sector as its external treasury management advisors. 
 
The Council recognises that responsibility for treasury management decisions remains with the 
organisation at all times and will ensure that undue reliance is not placed upon our external service 
providers.  
 
It also recognises that there is value in employing external providers of treasury management 
services in order to acquire access to specialist skills and resources. The Council will ensure that 
the terms of their appointment and the methods by which their value will be assessed are properly 
agreed and documented, and subjected to regular review.  

Page 31



 

  

2. The Capital Prudential Indicators 2013/14 – 2015/16 

The Council’s capital expenditure plans are the key driver of Treasury Management activity.  
The output of the capital expenditure plans are reflected in prudential indicators, which are 
designed to assist member’s overview and confirm capital expenditure plans. 

2.1 Capital Expenditure. This prudential Indicator is a summary of the Council’s capital 
expenditure plans, both those agreed previously, and those forming part of this budget cycle: 

 

Capital Expenditure 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 

 Actual 
£m 

Probable 
Outturn* 

£m 

Estimate** 
£m 

Estimate 
£m 

Estimate 
£m 

Non-HRA 0.627 2.366 0.505 2.723 0.425 

HRA 49.205 5.890 6.993 12.801 17.200 

Total 49.832 8.256 7.498 15.524 17.625 

* Projected at Period 9 

** excludes projected slippage from 2012/13 

• Other long term liabilities. The above financing need, excludes other long term liabilities, such 
as PFI and leasing arrangements which already include borrowing instruments. 

The table below summarises the above capital expenditure plans and how these plans are 
being financed by capital or revenue resources. Any shortfall of resources results in a funding 
need (borrowing).  

Capital Expenditure 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 

 Actual 
£m 

Probable 
Outturn 
£m 

Estimate 
£m 

Estimate 
£m 

Estimate 
£m 

Non-HRA 0.627 2.366 0.505 2.723 0.425 

HRA 49.205 5.890 6.993 12.801 17.200 

Total 49.832 8.256 7.498 15.524 17.625 

Financed by:           

Capital receipts 0.247 0.479 0.203 0.526 1.804 

Capital grants 0.378 1.228 0.169 2.307 0.169 

Capital reserves 0.119 2.010 0.083 0.015 - 

Revenue 4.420 4.539 7.043 9.089 9.835 

Net financing need for 
the year 44.668 - - 3.587 5.817 

2.2 The Council’s Borrowing Need (the Capital Financing Requirement) 

The second prudential indicator is the Council’s Capital Financing Requirement (CFR).  The 
CFR is simply the total historic outstanding capital expenditure which has not yet been paid for 
from either revenue or capital resources. It is essentially a measure of the Council’s underlying 
borrowing need. Any capital expenditure above, which has not immediately been paid for, will 
increase the CFR.   

The CFR does not increase indefinitely, as the minimum revenue provision (MRP) is a 
statutory annual revenue charge which broadly reduces the borrowing need in line with each 
assets life. 

Page 32



 

  

The CFR includes any other long term liabilities (e.g. PFI schemes, finance leases).  Whilst 
these increase the CFR, and therefore the Council’s borrowing requirement, these types of 
scheme include a borrowing facility and so the Council is not required to separately borrow for 
these schemes.  The Council currently has no such schemes within the CFR. 

The Council is asked to approve the CFR projections below: 

 

CFR Projections 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 

Actual    
£m 

Estimate  
£m 

Estimate  
£m 

Estimate  
£m 

Estimate  
£m 

Capital Financing Requirement           

CFR – non housing 1.605 1.552 1.500 1.449 1.399 

CFR - housing 68.063 68.063 68.063 71.650 77.467 

Total CFR 69.668 69.615 69.563 73.099 78.866 

Movement in CFR 42.440 (0.053) (0.052) 3.536 5.767 

            

Movement in CFR represented 
by 

          

Net financing need for the year 
(above) 44.668 - - 3.587 5.817 

Less MRP/VRP and other 
financing movements (2.228) (0.053) (0.052) (0.051) (0.050) 

Movement in CFR 42.440 (0.053) (0.052) 3.536 5.767 

 

2.3 Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy Statement 

The Council is required to pay off an element of the accumulated General Fund capital spend 
each year (the CFR) through a revenue charge, the Minimum Revenue Provision, although it is 
also allowed to undertake additional voluntary payments if required (voluntary revenue 
provision - VRP).   

CLG Regulations have been issued which require the full Council to approve an MRP 
Statement in advance of each year. A variety of options are provided to councils, so long as 
there is a prudent provision. The Council is recommended to approve the following MRP 
Statement: 

For capital expenditure incurred before 1 April 2008 or which in the future will be Supported 
Capital Expenditure, the MRP policy will be: 

• Existing practice - MRP will follow the existing practice outlined in former CLG 
regulations (option 1);  

These options provide for an approximate 4% reduction in the borrowing need (CFR) each 
year. 

From 1 April 2008 for all unsupported borrowing (including PFI and finance leases) the MRP 
policy will be: 

• Asset Life Method – MRP will be based on the estimated life of the assets, in 
accordance with the proposed regulations (this option must be applied for any expenditure 
capitalised under a Capitalisation Direction) (option 3); 

Page 33



 

  

These options provide for a reduction in the borrowing need over approximately the asset’s 
life.  

No revenue charge is currently required for the HRA. However under HRA reform the HRA is 
required to charge depreciation on its assets, which will have a revenue effect. In order to 
address any possible adverse impact, regulations allow the Major Repairs Allowance to be 
used as a proxy for depreciation for five years from 2012/13. 

2.4 Core Funds and expected Investment Balances 

The application of resources (capital receipts, reserves etc.) to either finance capital 
expenditure or other budget decisions to support the revenue budget will have an ongoing 
impact on investments unless resources are supplemented each year from new sources (asset 
sales etc.). Detailed below are estimates of the year end balances for each resource and 
anticipated day to day cash flow balances. 

Year End Resources 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 

 Actual    
£m 

Estimate  
£m 

Estimate  
£m 

Estimate  
£m 

Estimate  
£m 

Fund Balances/Reserves 16.516 17.526 12.769 10.643 6.949 

Capital Receipts 1.776 1.035 0.831 0.430 0.174 

Provisions 0.577 0.050 - - - 

Other 0.044 - - - - 

Total core funds 18.913 18.610 13.600 11.073 7.123 

Working Capital* 1.981 5.395 6.558 6.492 6.442 

(Under)/Over Borrowing (4.608) (4.555) (4.503) (4.452) (4.402) 

Expected investments 16.286 19.450 15.655 13.113 9.163 
 
*Working capital balances shown are estimated year end; these may be higher mid year.  
 

2.5 Affordability Prudential Indicators 

The previous sections cover the overall capital and control of borrowing prudential indicators, 
but within this framework prudential indicators are required to assess the affordability of the 
capital investment plans. These provide an indication of the impact of the capital investment 
plans on the Council’s overall finances. The Council is asked to approve the following 
indicators: 

2.6 Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream. 
 

This indicator identifies the trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other long term obligation 
costs net of investment income) against the net revenue stream. 
 

Fund 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 

Actual      
% 

Revised 
Estimate    

% 

Estimate    
% 

Estimate    
% 

Estimate    
% 

Non-HRA 21.94* (2.15) (2.28) (4.30) (3.07) 

HRA (inclusive of settlement) (3.48)** 16.60 15.67 15.36 16.10 

 

The estimates of financing costs include current commitments and the proposals in this budget 
report. 
* Included partial reversal of Icelandic capitalisation 
** Included HRA Self Financing 

Page 34



 

  

2.7 Incremental impact of capital investment decisions on Council Tax. 
 
This indicator identifies the revenue costs associated with proposed changes to the three year 
capital programme recommended in this budget report compared to the Council’s existing 
approved commitments and current plans. The assumptions are based on the budget, but will 
invariably include some estimates, such as the level of Government support, which is not published 
over a three year period. 
 
Incremental impact of capital investment decisions on the band D council tax 
 

Incremental Impact on 
Council Tax 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 

Actual 
£:p 

Estimate 
£:p 

Estimate 
£:p 

Estimate 
£:p 

Estimate 
£:p 

Band D 1.04 0.28 (0.05) (0.03) 0.13 

 
2.8 Estimates of the incremental impact of capital investment decisions on housing rent 
levels. 
 

Similar to the council tax calculation, this indicator identifies the trend in the cost of proposed 
changes in the housing capital programme recommended in this budget report compared to the 
Council’s existing commitments and current plans, expressed as a discrete impact on weekly rent 
levels.   
 

Incremental impact of capital investment decisions on housing rent levels 
 

Incremental Impact  2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 

Actual 
£:p 

Estimate 
£:p 

Estimate 
£:p 

Estimate 
£:p 

Estimate 
£:p 

Weekly housing rent 
levels 0.07 0.08 (0.01) 0.16 0.68 

 
This indicator shows the revenue impact on any newly proposed changes, although any discrete 
impact will be constrained by rent controls. 

 
3. Borrowing 

The capital expenditure plans set out in Section 2 provide details of the service activity of the 
Council. The Treasury Management function ensures that the Council’s cash is organised in 
accordance with the the relevant professional codes, so that sufficient cash is available to meet this 
service activity. This will involve both the organisation of the cash flow and, where capital plans 
require, the organisation of approporiate borrowing facilities. The strategy covers the relevant 
treasury / prudential indicators, the current and projected debt positions and the annual investment 
strategy. 
 
3.1 Current Portfolio Position 

The Council’s Treasury Portfolio position at 31st March 2012, with forward projections are  
summarised below. The table shows the actual external debt (the Treasury Management 
Operations), against the underlying capital borrowing need (the Capital Financing Requirement - 
CFR), highlighting any over or under borrowing. 

Page 35



 

  

 

 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 

Treasury Portfolio Actual    
£m 

Estimate     
£m 

Estimate     
£m 

Estimate     
£m 

Estimate     
£m 

External Debt           

Debt at 1st April  20.392 65.060 65.060 65.060 68.647 

Expected change in 
Debt 44.668 - - 3.587 5.817 

Actual gross debt at 
31st March  65.060 65.060 65.060 68.647 74.464 

The Capital Financing 
Requirement 69.668 69.615 69.563 73.099 78.866 

Under / (over) 
borrowing 4.608 4.555 4.503 4.452 4.402 

 

*Excludes investments ‘at risk’ with Icelandic Banks 

Within the prudential indicators there are a number of key indicators to ensure that the Council 
operates its activities within well defined limits. A key indicator is that the Council needs to 
ensure that its total borrowing, net of any investments, does not, except in the short term, exceed 
the total of the CFR in the preceding year plus the estimates of any additional CFR for 2013/14 and 
the following two financial years. This allows some flexibility for limited early borrowing for future 
years, but ensures that borrowing is not undertaken for revenue purposes.       

The Executive Director Corporate Services reports that the Council complied with this 
prudential indicator in the current year and does not envisage difficulties for the future. This 
view takes into account current commitments, existing plans, and the proposals in this budget 
report.   

3.2.  Treasury Indicators: Limits to Borrowing Activity 

The Operational Boundary - This is the limit beyond which external borrowing is not normally 
expected to exceed. In most cases, this would be a similar figure to the CFR, but may be lower 
or higher depending on the levels of actual borrowing. 

 

Operational Boundary 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 

Estimate     
£m 

Estimate     
£m 

Estimate     
£m 

Estimate     
£m 

Borrowing 72.268 72.268 75.855 81.672 

Other long term liabilities - - - - 

Total 72.268 72.268 75.855 81.672 
 

The Authorised Limit for external borrowing - A further key prudential indicator represents 
a control on the maximum level of borrowing. This represents a limit beyond which external 
borrowing is prohibited, and this limit needs to be set or revised by the full Council. It reflects 
the level of external borrowing which, while not desired, could be afforded in the short term, but 
is not sustainable in the longer term.   

1. This is the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local Government Act 
2003. The Government retains an option to control either the total of all councils’ plans, 
or those of a specific council, although this power has not yet been exercised. 

Page 36



 

  

2.  The Council is asked to approve the following Authorised Limit: 

Authorised limit 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 

Estimate     
£m 

Estimate     
£m 

Estimate     
£m 

Estimate     
£m 

Borrowing 89.112 89.112 89.112 89.112 

Other long term liabilities 3.000 3.000 3.000 3.000 

Total 92.112 92.112 92.112 92.112 
 

* Includes £79.407m HRA Self Financing Cap – Including Headroom of £11.344m. 

 
Separately, the Council is also limited to a maximum HRA CFR through the HRA self-financing 
regime. This limit is currently: 
 

HRA Debt Limit 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 

Estimate     
£m 

Estimate     
£m 

Estimate     
£m 

Estimate     
£m 

Total 79.407 79.407 79.407 79.407 

3.3. Prospects for Interest Rates 

The Council has appointed Sector as its treasury advisor and part of their service is to assist 
the Council to formulate a view on interest rates. ANNEX 1 draws together a number of current 
City forecasts for short term (Bank Rate) and longer fixed interest rates. The following table 
gives the Sector central view. 
 
Annual Average 
% 

Bank Rate PWLB Borrowing Rates 
(including certainty rate adjustment) 

  5 year 25 year 50 year 

Dec 2012 0.50 1.50 3.70 3.90 

March 2013 0.50 1.50 3.80 4.00 

June 2013 0.50 1.50 3.80 4.00 

Sept 2013 0.50 1.60 3.80 4.00 

Dec 2013 0.50 1.60 3.80 4.00 

March 2014 0.50 1.70 3.90 4.10 

June 2014 0.50 1.70 3.90 4.10 

Sept 2014 0.50 1.80 4.00 4.20 

Dec 2014 0.50 2.00 4.10 4.30 

March 2015 0.75 2.20 4.30 4.50 

June 2015 1.00 2.30 4.40 4.60 

Sept 2015 1.25 2.50 4.60 4.80 

Dec 2015 1.50 2.70 4.80 5.00 

March 2016 1.75 2.90 5.00 5.20 
 

The economic recovery in the UK since 2008 has been the worst and slowest recovery in recent 
history, although the economy returned to positive growth in the third quarter of 2012.  Growth 
prospects are weak and consumer spending, the usual driving force of recovery, is likely to remain 
under pressure due to consumers focusing on repayment of personal debt, inflation eroding 
disposable income, general malaise about the economy and employment fears. 

The primary drivers of the UK economy are likely to remain external.  40% of UK exports go to the 
Euozone  so the difficulties in this area are likely to continue to hinder  UK growth.  The US, the 
main world economy, faces similar debt problems to the UK, but urgently needs to resolve the fiscal 
cliff now that the the Presidential elections are out of the way.  The resulting US fiscal tightening 

Page 37



 

  

and continuing Eurozone problems will depress UK growth and is likely to see the UK deficit 
reduction plans slip. 

This challenging and uncertain economic outlook has several key treasury management 
implications: 

• The Eurozone sovereign debt difficulties provide a clear indication of  high counterparty 
risk.  This continues to suggest the use of higher quality counterparties for shorter time 
periods; 

• Investment returns are likely to remain relatively low during 2013/14 and beyond; 

• Borrowing interest rates continue to be  attractive and may remain relatively low for some 
time.  The timing of any borrowing will need to be monitored carefully; 

• There will remain a cost of carry – any borrowing undertaken that results in an increase in 
investments will incur a revenue loss between borrowing costs and investment returns. 

3.4  Borrowing Strategy  

The Council is currently maintaining an under-borrowed position. This means that the capital 
borrowing need (the Capital Financing Requirement), has not been fully funded with loan debt 
as cash supporting the Council’s reserves, balances and cash flow has been used as a 
temporary measure. This strategy is prudent as investment returns are low and counterparty risk 
is relatively high. 

Against this background and the risks within the economic forecast, caution will be adopted with 
the 2013/14 treasury operations. The Executive Director Corporate Services will monitor interest 
rates in financial markets and adopt a pragmatic approach to changing circumstances: 

 
• if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a sharp FALL in long and short term rates, 

(e.g. due to a marked increase of risks around relapse into recession or of risks of deflation) 
then long term borrowings will be postponed, and potential rescheduling from fixed rate 
funding into short term borrowing will be considered. 

 
• if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a much sharper RISE in long and short term 

rates than that currently forecast, perhaps arising from a greater than expected increase in 
world economic activity or a sudden increase in inflation risks, then the portfolio position will 
be re-appraised with the likely action that fixed rate funding will be drawn whilst interest rates 
were still relatively cheap. 

Any decisions will be reported to the appropriate decision making body at the next available 
opportunity. 

 
Treasury Management Limits on Activity 

There are three debt related treasury activity limits. The purpose of these are to restrain the 
activity of the treasury function within certain limits, thereby managing risk and reducing the 
impact of any adverse movement in interest rates. However, if these are set to be too 
restrictive they will impair the opportunities to reduce costs / improve performance. 

The indicators are: 

• Upper limits on variable interest rate exposure. This identifies a maximum limit 
for variable interest rates based upon the debt position net of investments;  

• Upper limits on fixed interest rate exposure. This is similar to the previous 
indicator and covers a maximum limit on fixed interest rates; 

Page 38



 

  

• Maturity structure of borrowing. These gross limits are set to reduce the Council’s 
exposure to large fixed rate sums falling due for refinancing, and are required for 
upper and lower limits. 

The Council is asked to approve the following treasury indicators and limits: 

Interest Rate Exposure 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 

£m £m £m 

 Limit: Upper Upper Upper 

Limits on Fixed Interest Rates based on net debt 49.409 52.828 63.271 

Limits on Variable Interest Rates based on net debt 6.506 6.685 7.156 

Limits on Fixed Interest Rates:       

Debt only 65.060 66.849 71.555 

Investments only 26.085 23.369 13.808 

Limits on Variable Interest Rates:       

Debt only 6.506 6.685 7.156 

Investments only 10.434 9.347 5.523 

 

Maturity structure of Fixed Interest Rate borrowing 2013/14 

 Lower Upper 

Under 12 months 0% 20% 

12 months to 2 years 0% 20% 

2 years to 5 years 0% 25% 

5 years to 10 years 0% 75% 

10 years and above 0% 100% 
 

Maturity structure of Variable Interest Rate borrowing 2013/14 

 Lower Upper 

Under 12 months 0% 20% 

12 months to 2 years 0% 20% 

2 years to 5 years 0% 25% 

5 years to 10 years 0% 75% 

10 years and above 0% 100% 

 

3.5  Policy on Borrowing in Advance of Need  

The Council will not borrow more than or in advance of its needs, purely in order to profit from the 
investment of the extra sums borrowed. Any decision to borrow in advance will be within forward 
approved Capital Financing Requirement estimates, and will be considered carefully to ensure that 
value for money can be demonstrated and that the Council can ensure the security of such funds.  
 
Risks associated with any borrowing in advance activity will be subject to prior appraisal and 
subsequent reporting through the mid-year or annual reporting mechanism.  

3.6. Debt Rescheduling 

As short term borrowing rates will be considerably cheaper than longer term fixed interest rates, 
there may be potential opportunities to generate savings by switching from long term debt to short 
term debt.  However, these savings will need to be considered in the light of the current treasury 
position and the size of the cost of debt repayment (premiums incurred).  
 
 
 

Page 39



 

  

The reasons for any rescheduling to take place will include:  
 

• the generation of cash savings and / or discounted cash flow savings; 

• helping to fulfil the treasury strategy; 

• to enhance the balance of the portfolio (amend the maturity profile and/or the balance of 
volatility). 

 

Consideration will also be given to identifying if there is any residual potential for making savings by 
running down investment balances to repay debt prematurely as short term rates on investments 
are likely to be lower than rates paid on current debt.   
 
All rescheduling will be reported to Council, at the earliest meeting following its action. 
 
4. Annual Investment Strategy  

4.1 Investment Policy 

The Council’s investment policy has regard to the CLG’s Guidance on Local Government 
Investments (“the Guidance”) and the 2011 revised CIPFA Treasury Management in Public 
Services Code of Practice and Cross Sectoral Guidance Notes (“the CIPFA TM Code”). The 
Council’s investment priorities will be security first, liquidity second, then return. 
 
In accordance with  guidance from the CLG and CIPFA, and in order to minimise the risk to 
investments, the Council has below clearly stipulated the minimum acceptable credit quality of 
counterparties for inclusion on the lending list. The creditworthiness methodology used to create the 
counterparty list fully accounts for the ratings, watches and outlooks published by all three ratings 
agencies with a full understanding of what these reflect in the eyes of each agency. Using the 
Sector ratings service, banks’ ratings are monitored on a real time basis with knowledge of any 
changes notified electronically as the agencies notify modifications. 
 
Further, the Council’s officers recognise that ratings should not be the sole determinant of the 
quality of an institution and that it is important to continually assess and monitor the financial sector 
on both a micro and macro basis and in relation to the economic and political environments in 
which institutions operate. The assessment will also take account of information that reflects the 
opinion of the markets. To this end the Council will engage with its advisors to maintain a monitor 
on market pricing such as “Credit Default Swaps” and overlay that information on top of the credit 
ratings. This is fully integrated into  the credit methodology provided by the advisors, Sector, in 
producing its colour codings which show the varying degrees of creditworthiness. 
 
Other information sources used will include the financial press, share price and other such 
information pertaining to the banking sector in order to establish the most robust scrutiny process 
on the suitability of potential investment counterparties. 
 
The aim of the strategy is to generate a list of highly creditworthy counterparties which will also 
enable diversification and thus avoidance of concentration risk. 
 
The intention of the strategy is to provide security of investment and minimisation of risk. 
 
Investment instruments identified for use in the financial year are listed in ANNEX 3  under the 
‘Specified’ and ‘Non-Specified’ Investments categories. Counterparty limits will be as set through 
the Council’s Treasury Management Practices – Schedules.  
 
Investment instruments identified for use in the financial year are listed in ANNEX 3  under the 
‘Specified’ and ‘Non-Specified’ Investments categories. Counterparty limits will be as set through 
the Council’s Treasury Management Practices – Schedules.  

Page 40



 

  

4.2 Creditworthiness Policy  

This Council applies the creditworthiness service provided by Sector. This service employs a 
sophisticated modelling approach utlilising credit ratings from the three main credit rating agencies - 
Fitch, Moodys and Standard and Poors.  The credit ratings of counterparties are supplemented with 
the following overlays:  
 

• credit watches and credit outlooks from credit rating agencies; 

• CDS spreads to give early warning of likely changes in credit ratings; 

• sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most creditworthy countries. 
 

This modelling approach combines credit ratings, credit watches and credit outlooks in a weighted 
scoring system which is then combined with an overlay of CDS spreads for which the end product 
is a series of colour coded bands which indicate the relative creditworthiness of counterparties.  
 
These colour codes are used by the Council to determine the duration for investments. The Council 
will therefore use counterparties within the following durational bands:  
 

• Yellow 5 years * 
• Purple  2 years 
• Blue  1 year (only applies to nationalised or semi nationalised UK Banks) 
• Orange 1 year 
• Red  6 months 
• Green  3 months  
• No Colour  not to be used  

 
* this category is for AAA rated Government debt or its equivalent; please also see collateralised deposits 
added into ANNEX 3 as an investment instrument. 
 

The Sector creditworthiness service uses a wider array of information than just primary ratings and 
by using a risk weighted scoring system, does not give undue preponderance to just one agency’s 
ratings. 
 
Typically the minimum credit ratings criteria the Council use will be a short term rating (Fitch or 
equivalents) of  Short Term rating F1, Long Term rating A-,  Viability ratings of  BB+, and a Support 
rating of 3.  There may be occasions when the counterparty ratings from one rating agency are 
marginally lower than these ratings but may still be used.  In these instances consideration will be 
given to the whole range of ratings available, or other topical market information, to support their 
use. 
 
All credit ratings will be monitored on a daily basis/as and when notified. The Council is alerted to 
changes to ratings of all three agencies through its use of the Sector creditworthiness service:  

• if a downgrade results in the counterparty / investment scheme no longer meeting the 
Council’s minimum criteria, its further use as a new investment will be withdrawn 
immediately; 

• in addition to the use of credit ratings the Council will be advised of information in 
movements in Credit Default Swap against the iTraxx benchmark and other market data on 
a weekly basis. Extreme market movements may result in downgrade of an institution or 
removal from the Council’s lending list. 

Sole reliance will not be placed on the use of this external service. In addition this Council will also 
use market data and market information, information on government support for banks and the 
credit ratings of that government support. 

Page 41



 

  

4.3 Country Limits 

The Council has determined that it will only use approved counterparties from countries with a 
minimum sovereign credit rating of AAA from Fitch (or equivalent). The list of countries that qualify 
using this credit criteria as at the date of this report are shown in ANNEX 4. This list will be added 
to, or deducted from, by officers should ratings change in accordance with this policy. 

Sector also recommends that no more than 20% of the Council’s investment portfolio should be 
placed with an individual counterparty, in order to spread risk. The approach at the Council is to set 
monetary limits of up to £4m with individual institutions, which equates approximately to Sector’s 
recommendation (based on current average investment levels). 
 
4.4 Investment Strategy 
 
In-house funds. Investments will be made with reference to the core balance and cash flow 
requirements and the outlook for short-term interest rates (i.e. rates for investments up to 12 
months).    
 
Investment returns expectations.  Bank Rate is forecast to remain unchanged at  0.5% before 
strating to rise from quarter 4 of 2014. Bank Rate forecasts for financial year ends (March) are:  
 

• 2012/ 2013 0.50% 

• 2013/ 2014 0.50% 

• 2014/ 2015 0.75% 

• 2015/ 2016 1.75% 

 

There are downside risks to these forecasts (i.e. start of increases in Bank Rate is delayed even 
further) if economic growth remains weaker for longer than expected.  However, should the pace of 
growth pick up more sharply than expected there could be upside risk, particularly if Bank of 
England inflation forecasts for two years ahead  exceed the Banks own 2% target rate. 
 
The budgeted investment earnings rates for returns on investments placed for periods up to one 
year during each financial year for the next five years are as follows:  
 

• 2012/2013 1.50%   

• 2013/2014 1.00%   

• 2014/2015 1.75%   

• 2015/2016 2.00% 

• 2016/2017 2.75% 
 

Invesment Treasury Indicator and Limit - total principal funds invested for greater than 364 days. 
These limits are set with regard to the Council’s liquidity requirements and to reduce the need for 
early sale of an investment, and are based on the availability of funds after each year-end. 

 
The Council is asked to approve the treasury indicator and limit: - 
 

Maximum principal sums invested > 364 days 

Treasury Indicator 2013/14    
£m 

2014/15       
£m 

2015/16     
£m 

Principal sums invested > 364 days 2.5 2.0 2.0 

Page 42



 

  

For its cash flow generated balances, the Council will seek to utilise its business reserve accounts, 
Call accounts, 15, 30 and 95 day notice accounts, money market funds and short-dated deposits 
(overnight to three months) in order to benefit from the compounding of interest.   
 
4.5  Icelandic Bank Investments  
 
Glitnir - £2.55m partial repayment of our deposits was received on the 15th March 2012. The 
balance due to the Authority is currently being held in Icelandic Krone (ISK) but release of these  
funds is dependent on a change in Icelandic Law which currently does not allow the distribution of 
ISK outside the country. Interest will accrue on these funds untill the date of final settlement. We are 
currently still receiving dividend distributions from the administrators of Heritable and Kaupthing 
Singer & Friedlander with anticpated total recoveries of around 85% for both banks. 
 
4.6  End of year investment report 
 
At the end of the financial year, the Council will report on its investment activity as part of its Annual 
Treasury Report.  

4.7 External Fund Managers 

The Council uses Sector as its external Treasury Management advisors. 
 
The Council recognises that responsibility for Treasury Management decisions remains with the 
organisation at all times and will ensure that undue reliance is not placed upon our external service 
providers.  
 
It also recognises that there is value in employing external providers of Treasury Management 
services in order to acquire access to specialist skills and resources. The Council will ensure that 
the terms of their appointment and the methods by which their value will be assessed are properly 
agreed and documented, and subjected to regular review.  

4.8  Scheme of delegation 

Please see ANNEX 5. 

4.9  Role of the Section 151 Officer 

Please see ANNEX  6. 
 

Page 43



 

  

10. Annex  
 

Table 

1. Interest Rate Forecasts 

2. Economic Background 

3. Specified and Non-Specified Investments 

4. Approved Countries for investments 

5. Treasury Management Scheme of Delegation 

6. The Treasury Management Role of the Section 151 Officer 

7. Treasury Management Practices 

8. Treasury Management Glossary of Terms 

 
 

 

Page 44



ANNEX 1 

Interest Rate Forecasts 2013 – 2016 

Sector's Interest Rate View

Now M ar-13 Jun-13 Sep-13 Dec-13 M ar-14 Jun-14 Sep-14 Dec-14 M ar-15 Jun-15 Sep-15 Dec-15 M ar-16

Sector's Bank Rate View 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.75% 1.00% 1.25% 1.50% 1.75%

3 M onth LIBID 0.39% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.60% 0.60% 0.70% 0.80% 1.10% 1.40% 1.70%

6 M onth LIBID 0.54% 0.70% 0.70% 0.70% 0.70% 0.70% 0.70% 0.80% 0.90% 1.00% 1.10% 1.30% 1.60% 1.90%

12 M onth LIBID 0.88% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.10% 1.10% 1.20% 1.30% 1.30% 1.50% 1.80% 2.10%

5yr PW LB Rate 1.85% 1.50% 1.50% 1.60% 1.60% 1.70% 1.70% 1.80% 2.00% 2.20% 2.30% 2.50% 2.70% 2.90%

10yr PW LB Rate 2.87% 2.50% 2.50% 2.60% 2.60% 2.70% 2.70% 2.80% 3.00% 3.20% 3.30% 3.50% 3.70% 3.90%

25yr PW LB Rate 4.02% 3.80% 3.80% 3.80% 3.80% 3.90% 3.90% 4.00% 4.10% 4.30% 4.40% 4.60% 4.80% 5.00%

50yr PW LB Rate 4.15% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.10% 4.10% 4.20% 4.30% 4.50% 4.60% 4.80% 5.00% 5.20%

Bank Rate

Sector's View 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.75% 1.00% 1.25% 1.50% 1.75%

UBS 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% - - - - -

Capital Econom ics 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% - - - - -

5yr PW LB Rate

Sector's View 1.85% 1.50% 1.50% 1.60% 1.60% 1.70% 1.70% 1.80% 2.00% 2.20% 2.30% 2.50% 2.70% 2.90%

UBS 1.85% - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Capital Econom ics 1.85% 1.55% 1.30% 1.30% 1.30% 1.30% 1.30% 1.50% 1.60% - - - - -

10yr PW LB Rate

Sector's View 2.87% 2.50% 2.50% 2.60% 2.60% 2.70% 2.70% 2.80% 3.00% 3.20% 3.30% 3.50% 3.70% 3.90%

UBS 2.87% 3.00% 3.10% 3.20% 3.40% 3.50% 3.60% 3.70% 3.80% - - - - -

Capital Econom ics 2.87% 2.55% 2.30% 2.30% 2.30% 2.30% 2.30% 2.30% 2.30% - - - - -

25yr PW LB Rate

Sector's View 4.02% 3.80% 3.80% 3.80% 3.80% 3.90% 3.90% 4.00% 4.10% 4.30% 4.40% 4.60% 4.80% 5.00%

UBS 4.02% 4.20% 4.30% 4.40% 4.50% 4.50% 4.50% 4.50% 4.50% - - - - -

Capital Econom ics 4.02% 3.70% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% - - - - -

50yr PW LB Rate

Sector's View 4.15% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.10% 4.10% 4.20% 4.30% 4.50% 4.60% 4.80% 5.00% 5.20%

UBS 4.15% 4.30% 4.40% 4.50% 4.60% 4.60% 4.60% 4.60% 4.60% - - - - -

Capital Econom ics 4.15% 4.00% 3.80% 3.80% 3.80% 3.80% 3.80% 3.80% 3.80% - - - - -  

Sectors Interest Rate Forecast 14/01/2013

P
age 45



 

  

ANNEX 2 

Economic Background 
 
The Global economy 

The Eurozone debt crisis has continued to cast a pall over the world economy and has depressed 
growth in most countries. This has impacted the UK economy which remained flat in 2012 and is 
creating a major headwind for recovery in 2013. Quarter 2 of 2012 was the third quarter of contraction 
in the economy; this recession is the worst and slowest recovery of any of the five recessions since 
1930.  A return to growth @ 0.9% in quarter 3 did little more than wash out the dip in the previous 
quarter before a return to negative growth in quarter 4 of – 0.3%; this leaves the overall growth in 2012 
close to zero and could lead into negative growth in quarter 1 of 2013, which would then mean that the 
UK was in its first triple dip recession since records began in 1955. 

The Eurozone Sovereign Debt Crisis abated following the ECB’s commitment to a programme of 
Outright Monetary Transactions i.e. a pledge to buy unlimited amounts of bonds of countries which ask 
for a bailout.  The immediate target for this statement was Spain which continues to prevaricate on 
making such a request, (for a national bailout), and so surrendering its national sovereignty to IMF 
supervision.  However, the crisis in Greece has subsided, for the time being, as a result of the 
Eurozone agreement to provide a further €50bn financial support package in December.  Many 
commentators, though, still view a Greek exit from the Euro as being likely in the longer term as 
successive rounds of austerity packages could make it more difficult to bring down the annual deficit 
and total debt as ratios of GDP due to the effect they have on shrinking the economy and reducing 
employment and tax revenues. However, another possible way out would be a major write down of total 
Greek debt; this has now been raised by the German Chancellor as a possible course of action, but not 
until 2014-15, and provided the Greek annual budget is in balance.    

Sentiment in financial markets has improved considerably since this ECB action and additional financial 
support for Greece to ensure that the Eurozone remained intact during 2012.  However, the foundations 
to this “solution” to the Eurozone debt crisis are still weak and do not address the huge obstacle of 
unemployment rates of over 25% in Greece and Spain.  It is also possible that the situations in Portugal 
and Cyprus could deteriorate further in 2013 and, although they are minor economies, such 
developments could unnerve financial markets. There are also general elections coming up in Italy and 
Germany which could potentially produce some upsets on the political scene.  It is, therefore, quite 
possible that sentiment in financial markets could turn during 2013 after the initial burst of optimism at 
the start of the year. While equity prices have enjoyed a strong start to 2013, the foundations for this 
stock market recovery are shallow given the economic fundamentals in western economies.  In 
addition, QE has to come to an end at some point in time and there is a distinct increase in doubt in the 
central banks of the US and UK as to the effectiveness of any further QE in stimulating economic 
growth. An end to central purchases of bonds may lead to a fall in bond prices. 

The US economy has only been able to manage weak growth in 2012 despite huge efforts by the 
Federal Reserve to stimulate the economy by liberal amounts of quantitative easing (QE) combined 
with a commitment to a continuation of ultra low interest rates into 2015.   Unemployment levels have 
been slowly reducing but against a background of a fall in the numbers of those available for work. The 
fiscal cliff facing the President at the start of 2013 has been a major dampener discouraging business 
from spending on investment and increasing employment more significantly in case there is a sharp 
contraction in the economy in the pipeline.  The fiscal cliff, and raising the total debt ceiling, still await 
final resolution by the end of February.  The housing market, though, does look as if it has, at long last, 
reached the bottom and house prices are now on the up.   

Hopes for a broad based recovery have, therefore, focused on the emerging markets. Recent news 
from China appears to indicate that the economy has returned to a healthier rate of growth.  However, 
there are still concerns around the unbalanced nature of the economy which is heavily dependent on 
new investment expenditure.  The potential for the bubble in the property sector to burst, as it did in 
Japan in the 1990s, could have a material impact on the economy as a whole.   

The UK economy 

The Government’s austerity measures, aimed at getting the public sector deficit into order, have now 
had to be extended, in the autumn statement, over a longer period than the original four years. 

Page 46



 

  

Achieving this new extended timeframe will still be dependent on the UK economy returning to a 
reasonable pace of growth towards the end of this period.   

Currently, the UK is enjoying a major financial benefit from some of the lowest sovereign borrowing 
costs in the world as the UK is seen as a safe haven from Eurozone debt.  However, the subsiding of 
market concerns over the Eurozone has unwound some of the attractiveness of gilts as a safe haven 
and led to a significant rise in gilt yields.  There is little evidence that UK consumer confidence levels 
are recovering, nor that the manufacturing sector is picking up.  The dominant services sector 
disappointed in December with the PMI survey indicating the first fall in activity in two years.  On the 
positive side, banks have made huge progress since 2008 in shrinking their balance sheets to more 
manageable levels and also in reducing their dependency on wholesale funding.  However, availability 
of credit remains tight in the economy and the Funding for Lending scheme, which started in August 
2012, has not yet had time to make a significant impact in respect of materially increasing overall 
borrowing in the economy. Finally, the housing market remains tepid and the outlook is for house prices 
to be little changed for a prolonged period.  

Economic Growth. Economic growth has basically flat lined since the election of 2010 and, worryingly, 
the economic forecasts for 2012 and beyond were revised substantially lower in the Bank of England 
Inflation quarterly report for August 2012 and were then further lowered in the November Report. 
Quantitative Easing (QE) increased by £50bn in July 2012 to a total of £375bn.  Many forecasters are 
expecting the MPC to vote for a further round of QE in early 2013 to try to stimulate economic activity. 
The announcement in November 2012 that £35bn will be transferred from the Bank of England’s Asset 
Purchase Facility to the Treasury (representing coupon payments to the Bank by the Treasury on gilts 
held by the Bank) was also effectively a further addition of QE. 

Unemployment. The Government’s austerity strategy has resulted in a substantial reduction in 
employment in the public sector.  Despite this, total employment has increased to the highest level for 
four years as over one million jobs have been created in the private sector in the last two years.   

Inflation and Bank Rate.  Inflation has fallen sharply during 2012 from a peak of 5.2% in September 
2011 to 2.2% in September 2012. However, inflation increased back to 2.7% by the end of the year, 
though it is expected to fall back to reach the 2% target level within the two year horizon. 

AAA rating. The UK continues to enjoy an AAA sovereign rating.  However, the three main credit rating 
agencies have stated that they will be reviewing this rating in early 2013; they will, thereafter, also be 
carefully monitoring the rate of growth in the economy as a disappointing performance in that area 
could lead to a major derailment of the plans to contain the growth in the total amount of Government 
debt over the next few years.    

Sector’s forward view  

Economic forecasting remains difficult with so many external influences weighing on the UK. There 
does, however, appear to be consensus among analysts that the economy remains relatively fragile 
and whilst there is still a broad range of views as to potential performance, expectations have all been 
downgraded during 2012. Key areas of uncertainty include: 

• the potential for the Eurozone to withdraw support for Greece at some point if the Greek 
government was unable to eliminate the annual budget deficit and the costs of further support 
were to be viewed as being prohibitive, so causing a worsening of the Eurozone debt crisis and 
heightened risk of the breakdown of the bloc or even of the currency itself.  The same 
considerations could also apply to Spain;  

• inter government agreement on how to deal with the overall Eurozone debt crisis could 
fragment;  

• the impact of the Eurozone crisis on financial markets and the banking sector;  

• the impact of the Government’s austerity plan on confidence and growth and the need to 
rebalance the economy from services to manufactured goods;  

Page 47



 

  

• the under-performance of the UK economy which could undermine the Government’s policies 
that have been based upon levels of growth that are unlikely to be achieved;  

• the risk of the UK’s main trading partners, in particular the EU and US, falling into recession;  

• stimulus packages failing to stimulate growth;  

• elections due in Italy and Germany in 2013;  

• potential for protectionism i.e. an escalation of the currency war / trade dispute between the US 
and China; 

• the potential for action to curtail the Iranian nuclear programme; 

• the situation in Syria deteriorating and impacting other countries in the Middle East. 

The focus of so many consumers, corporates and banks on reducing their borrowings, rather than 
spending, will continue to act as a major headwind to a return to robust growth in western economies.   
 
Given the weak outlook for economic growth, Sector sees the prospects for any changes in Bank Rate 
before 2015 as very limited.  There is potential for the start of Bank Rate increases to be even further 
delayed if growth disappoints. 

Sector believes that the longer run trend is for gilt yields and PWLB rates to rise due to the high volume 
of gilt issuance in the UK, and the high volume of debt issuance in other major western countries.  The 
interest rate forecast in this report represents a balance of downside and upside risks.  The downside 
risks have already been commented on.  However, there are specific identifiable upside risks as follows 
to PWLB rates and gilt yields, and especially to longer term rates and yields: - 

• UK inflation being significantly higher than in the wider EU and US causing an increase in the 
inflation premium in gilt yields; 

• Reversal of QE; this could initially be allowing gilts held by the Bank to mature without 
reinvesting in new purchases,  followed later by outright sale of gilts currently held; 

• Reversal of Sterling’s safe haven status on an improvement in financial stresses in the 
Eurozone; 

• Investors reverse de-risking by moving money from government bonds into shares in 
anticipation of a return to worldwide economic growth; 

• The possibility of a UK credit rating downgrade. 

 

 

 

Page 48



 

  

ANNEX 3  
Specified and Non-Specified Investments: 
 

Specified Investments: 
 

These investments are sterling denominated investments of not more than one-year maturity, 
meeting the minimum ‘high’ quality criteria where applicable. They are of relatively high security, 
high liquidity and are low risk assets where the possibility of loss of principal or investment income 
is small, they could be for a longer period but where the Council has the right to be repaid within 12 
months if it wishes. The investments could be managed In-House or by Fund Managers. 
 

These would include investments with: 
 

• The UK Government (such as the Debt Management Office, UK Treasury Bills or Gilts 
with less than one year to maturity). To facilitiate use of such instruments a Custodian 
account was opened during 2012/13 with King & Shaxson Ltd (a primary participant 
authorised to bid at Treasury bill tenders on behalf of investors regulated by the Financial 
Services Authority (FSA) and subject to its rules and guidance in their activities); 

• A Local Authority, Parish Council or Community Council; 

• Pooled investment vehicles or Collective Investment Schemes structured as Open 
Ended Investment Companies (OEIC’s) such as Money Market Funds (MMF’s) 
Government Liquidity Funds, Enhanced Cash Funds, Bond Funds (but not Corporate 
Bonds) and Gilt Funds, that have a high credit quality and been awarded a high credit 
rating of AAA by Standard and Poor’s, Moody’s or Fitch rating agencies and a Low Long 
Term Volatility rating; 

• A body that has a high credit quality and been awarded a high credit rating by a credit 
rating agency (such as a bank or building society) and complies with the Sector Credit 
Worthiness service;  

• A body which has been provided with a government issued guarantee for wholesale 
deposits within specific timeframes and/or is part or wholly nationalised by that 
Government. Where these guarantees are in place and the government has an AAA 
sovereign long term rating these institutions will be included within the Council’s criteria 
temporarily until such time as the ratings improve or the guarantees are withdrawn. 
Monies will only be deposited within the timeframe of the guarantee. 

 

SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS  Minimum ‘High’ Credit Criteria Limits 

UK Government/ Debt 
Management Agency Deposit 
Facility 

Defined by Regulation UK 
Treasury (AAA) 

£4m 

Term deposits – Local Authorities   
Defined by Regulation (Sec 23 of 
the 2003 act) 

£4m 

Treasury Bills 
Defined by Regulation UK 
Treasury (AAA) 

£4m 

Term deposits and Callable 
deposits – Banks and Building 
Societies  

In accordance with Sector’s 
Creditworthiness  Service up to 
‘Orange’ or  ‘Blue’ 

£4m individual 
institutions 

 £6m Group limit 

Pooled investment vehicles 
*(OEIC’s, MMF’s etc) 

AAA (Moody’s MR1, Fitch MMF 
and S&P M). 

£4m 

Banks and Building Societies – 
Forward deals up to 1 year from 
arrangement to maturity 

In accordance with Sector’s 
Creditworthiness  Service up to 
‘Orange ‘or  ‘Blue’ 

£4m 

 

*For pooled investment vehicles or Collective Investment Schemes (such as MMF’s) that have a high credit quality and 
have been rated AAA by Standard and Poor’s, Moody’s or Fitch rating agencies and have a Constant Net Asset Value 
(CNAV). 

Page 49



 

  

Non-Specified Investments:  
 
Non-specified investments are any other type of investment (i.e. not defined as Specified above) 
and could be managed In-House or by Fund Managers. The identification and rationale supporting 
the selection of these other investments and the maximum limits to be applied are set out below. 
Non specified investments would include any sterling investments with: 
 

 Non Specified Investment Categories  Credit Rating Comment 

1 Supranational Bonds greater than 1 year to 
maturity 
• Multilateral development bank bonds – 

These are bonds defined as an international 
financial institution having as one of its 
objects economic development, either 
generally or in any region of the world (e.g. 
European Investment Bank etc.).   

• A financial institution that is guaranteed 
by the United Kingdom Government (e.g. 
The Guaranteed Export Finance Company 
{GEFCO}) 
The security of interest and principal on 
maturity is on a par with the Government 
and so very secure, and these bonds 
usually provide returns above equivalent gilt 
edged securities. However the value of the 
bond may rise or fall before maturity and 
losses may accrue if the bond is sold before 
maturity.   

AAA 

Would not use in-
house due to size 
of investment 
portfolio limiting 

benefit to authority. 
 

2 UK Gilt edged securities with a maturity of 
greater than one year. These are Government 
bonds and so provide the highest security of 
interest and the repayment of principal on 
maturity. Similar to category (1) above, the 
value of the bond may rise or fall before 
maturity and losses may accrue if the bond is 
sold before maturity. 

AAA Sovereign Rated 

Custodian Account 
opened with King & 
Shaxson to trade 
on our behalf 

3 
Certificates of Deposit with credit rated 
deposit takers (Banks and Building Societies) 

Sector Minimum Credit 
Worthiness rating 

Custodian Account 
opened with King & 
Shaxson to trade 
on our behalf 

4 Term deposit with a body which has been 
nationalised/part nationalised by high credit 
rated (sovereign rating AAA) countries and 
provided with a Government issued 
guarantee for wholesale deposits within 
specific timeframes. Where these guarantees 
are in place and the government has an AAA 
sovereign long term rating these institutions will 
be included within the Council’s criteria 
temporarily until such time as the ratings 
improve or the guarantees are withdrawn. 
Monies will only be deposited within the 
timeframe of the guarantee. 

AAA Sovereign Rated 
 

Sector Credit 
Worthiness rating ‘Blue’ 

Under the current 
criteria this applies 
in the UK to Lloyds 
Banking Group plc 
and Royal Bank of 
Scotland Group 
institutions 

Page 50



 

  

 

 Non Specified Investment Categories  Credit Rating Comment 

5 A Term Deposit with a body which is an 
Eligible Institution for the HM Treasury 
Credit Guarantee Scheme initially announced 
on 13th October 2008(1). The Credit 
Guarantee Scheme forms part of the 
Government’s measures to ensure the 
stability of the financial system and protect 
ordinary savers, depositors, businesses and 
borrowers, by; a) providing sufficient liquidity 
in the short term, b) making available new 
capital to UK banks and Building Societies to 
strengthen their resources c) ensuring the 
banking system has the funds necessary to 
maintain lending in the medium term. 

In accordance with Sector 
Credit Worthiness rating  

Use restricted by 
Sector Credit 

Worthiness rating  

6 Government guarantee on ALL deposits by 
high credit rated (AAA sovereign rating non 
UK) countries. 

AAA Sovereign Rated 

Not in Use, 
currently restricting 
investments to UK 

only 

7 The Council’s Own Banker if it fails to meet 
the basic credit criteria. In this instance 
balances will be minimised as far as possible. Out of range 

Currently fails to 
meet criteria, 

balances reviewed 
and minimised on 

daily basis 

8 Any Bank or Building society that has at 
minimum a long term credit rating of A-, an 
Individual Rating of B/C and a Support rating 
of 3 or above, or equivalent, for deposits with 
a maturity of greater than one year (including 
forward deals in excess of one year from 
inception to repayment). 

In accordance with Sector 
Credit Worthiness rating  

Use restricted by 
Sector Credit 

Worthiness rating 

9 Callable Deposits with a Bank  or Building 
society that has at minimum a long term 
credit rating of A-, an Individual Rating of B/C 
and a Support rating of 3 or above, or 
equivalent. 

In accordance with Sector 
Credit Worthiness rating 

Use restricted by 
Sector Credit 

Worthiness rating 

10 Share capital or loan capital in a body 
corporate – The use of these instruments will 
be deemed to be capital expenditure, and as 
such will be an application (spending) of 
capital resources.  Revenue resources will not 
be invested in corporate bodies. 

N/A 

Unlikely to use due 
to size of portfolio 
and high risk 

associated.  Also 
requires additional 

approval as 
deemed as capital 

expenditure. 

 
Within categories 3, 4, 5 and 6, and in accordance with the Code, the Council has developed 
additional criteria to set the overall amount of monies which will be invested in these bodies. All 
investments will be made in sterling to eliminate exchange rate risk.  
 
 
 
 

Page 51



 

  

The criteria are detailed in the table below and will be used in conjunction with Sector’s 
Creditworthiness service. 
 

Counterparty Type (TBC’s minimum credit 
ratings for approved lending list) 

Minimum 
Credit 
Criteria 

Limits* 

Bank or Building Society (a minimum Long Term 
Credit Rating of AAA, an Individual Rating of B/C 
and a Support rating of 3 (or equivalent)) 

Sector 
‘Yellow’ 

5 yrs £4m 

Bank or Building Society (a minimum Long Term 
Credit Rating of AA-, an Individual Rating of B/C 
and a Support rating of 3 (or equivalent)) 

Sector 
‘Yellow’ 

4 yrs £4m 

Bank (a minimum Long Term Credit Rating of A-, 
an Individual Rating of B/C and a Support rating of 
3 (or equivalent)) 

Sector 
‘Yellow’ 

3 yrs £4m 

Banks Nationalised/Part nationalised by high credit 
rated (sovereign rating AAA) countries (a) 

Sector 
‘Blue’ (UK) 

Specified in 
Guarantee 

£4m 

An Eligible Institution eligible under the HM 
Treasury Credit Guarantee Scheme (C) 

Sector 
‘Blue’ 

Specified in 
Guarantee 

£4m 

Government guarantee on ALL deposits by high 
credit rated (AAA sovereign rating) countries (b). 

Sector 
‘Blue’ 

Specified in 
Guarantee 

£4m 

The Council’s own Banker - if it fails to meet basic 
criteria 

n/a Overnight £2m 

Building Society (a minimum Long Term Credit 
Rating of A- an Individual Rating of B/C and a 
Support rating of 3 (or equivalent /if applicable) 
AND assets > £4bn) 

Sector 
‘Yellow’ 

3 yrs £4m 

Building Society (a Long Term Credit Rating of A- 
an Individual Rating of B/C and a Support rating of 
3 (or equivalent/if applicable) AND assets < £4bn 
but > £1bn) 

Sector 
‘Purple’ 

2 yrs £4m 

Group Limits - Maximum investments in 
Institutions within the same financial group  

As above for 
individual 
investment 

As above for 
individual 
investment 

£6m 

Territory Limits - Maximum investments in 
Institutions within the same Country (Approx 15% 
of investment programme) Non- UK 

As above for 
individual 
investment 

As above for 
individual 
investment 

£2m 

Territory Limits - Maximum investments in 
Institutions within the same Continent (Approx 
30% of investment programme) Non UK  

As above for 
individual 
investment 

As above for 
individual 
investment 

£4m 

 
* Under current Sector credit worthiness criteria, only institutions with a rating of ‘Purple’ or ‘Yellow’ 
are suggested as appropriate counterparties for investments over 1 year, with limit ranges of 2 
years and 5 years respectively. 
 
(a) Nationalised/Part Nationalised Banks in the UK have credit ratings which do not conform to 
the credit criteria usually used by local authorities to identify banks which are of high 
creditworthiness. In particular, as they no longer are separate institutions in their own right, it is 
impossible for Fitch to assign them an individual rating for their stand alone financial strength. 
Accordingly, Fitch has assigned an F rating which means that at a historical point of time, this bank 
failed and is now owned by the Government. 

Page 52



 

  

However, these institutions are now recipients of an F1+ short term rating as they effectively take 
on the creditworthiness of the Government itself i.e. deposits made with them are effectively being 
made to the Government. They also have a support rating of 1; in other words, on both counts, they 
have the highest ratings possible. 

 
(b) Blanket (explicit) guarantees on all deposits. Some countries have supported their banking 
system by giving a blanket guarantee on ALL deposits e.g. Ireland and Singapore. Authorities may 
view that the sovereign rating of that country then takes precedence over the individual credit 
ratings for the banks covered by that guarantee.   
 
(c) UK banking system support package (implicit guarantee). It should be noted that the UK 
Government did NOT give a blanket guarantee on all deposits but underlined its determination to 
ensure the security of the UK banking system by supporting eight named banks with a £500bn 
support package. The Council will need to decide if we wish to authorise lending to those named 
banks on the basis of that implicit guarantee on local authority deposits placed with these eight 
banks or to rely on the credit ratings of the individual banks.   

 
The original list of banks covered when the support package was initially announced was: - 
 
• Abbey (now part of Santander)   
• Barclays 
• HBOS (now part of the Lloyds Group) 
• Lloyds TSB  
• HSBC  
• Nationwide Building Society 
• RBS 
• Standard Chartered 

 
Banks eligible for support under the UK bail-out package and which have issued debt guaranteed 
by the Government are eligible for a continuing Government guarantee when debt issues 
originally issued and guaranteed by the Government mature and are refinanced.  However, no 
other institutions can make use of this support as it closed to new issues and entrants on 28.2.10. 
The banks which have used this explicit guarantee are as follows: -  
 

• Bank of Scotland   
• Barclays 
• Clydesdale 
• Coventry Building Society 
• Investec bank 
• Nationwide Building Society 
• Rothschild Continuation Finance plc 
• Standard Life Bank 
• Tesco Personal Finance plc 
• Royal Bank of Scotland 
• West Bromwich Building Society 
• Yorkshire Building Society 
 
(d) Other countries. The US, countries within the EU and Switzerland (and other countries) are 
currently providing major support packages to their banking systems. 

Page 53



 

  

ANNEX 4 

Approved Countries for investments 

AAA                   
• Australia 

• Canada 

• Denmark 

• Finland 

• Germany 

• Luxembourg 

• Netherlands 

• Norway 

• Singapore 

• Sweden 

• Switzerland 

• U.K.* 

 

* At its meeting of the 15th September 2009, full Council approved a recommendation that; 

 

‘authorises the use of institutions currently supported by the UK Government should its 
Sovereign rating be downgraded below the current requirement for a ‘AAA’ rating by all 
three rating agencies’ 

  

this approval continues to form part of the strategy in 2013/14. 

 

Page 54



 

  

ANNEX 5 

Treasury Management Scheme of Delegation 

(i) Full Council 

 

• receiving and reviewing reports on Treasury Management policies, practices and activities, 

• approval of annual strategy. 

• approval of/amendments to the organisation’s adopted clauses, Treasury Management 
Policy statement and Treasury Management practices. 

• budget consideration and approval. 

• approval of the division of responsibilities. 

• receiving and reviewing regular monitoring reports and acting on recommendations. 

 

(ii) Cabinet 

 

• receiving and reviewing Treasury Management policy statement and Treasury Management 
practices and making recommendations to the full Council. 

• receiving and reviewing regular monitoring reports and making recommendations to the full 
Council. 

• approving the selection of external service providers and agreeing terms of appointment. 

 

(iii) Audit and Governance Committee 

 

• reviewing the Treasury Management policy and procedures and making recommendations 
to the Cabinet. 

• receiving and reviewing regular monitoring (quarterly/half yearly) and making 
recommendations to the Cabinet. 

 

Page 55



 

  

ANNEX 6 

The Treasury Management Role of the Section 151 Officer 

The S151 (responsible) Officer 

• recommending clauses, Treasury Management policy/practices for approval, reviewing 
the same regularly, and monitoring compliance; 

• submitting regular Treasury Management policy reports; 

• submitting budgets and budget variations; 

• receiving and reviewing management information reports; 

• reviewing the performance of the Treasury Management function; 

• ensuring the adequacy of Treasury Management resources and skills, and the effective 
division of responsibilities within the Treasury Management function; 

• ensuring the adequacy of internal audit, and liaising with external audit; 

• recommending the appointment of external service providers.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 56



 

  

  ANNEX 7 
TREASURY MANAGEMENT PRACTICES  
 
The Treasury Management Practices document (TMP’s) forms detailed operational procedures and 
processes for the Treasury Management function. This document can be found on the Council’s 
Internet by following the following link; 
 
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/council_and_democracy/council_budgets_and_spending/treasury_ma
nagement.aspx 
 
 and clicking on the TMP’s folder. 
 
The items below are summaries of the individual TMP’s which the Council has to produce and 
adopt under the Treasury Code of Practice. 
 
TMP1 : RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
General Statement 
 
The Section 151 Officer will design, implement and monitor all arrangements for the identification, 
management and control of Treasury Management risk; will report at least annually on the 
adequacy / suitability of the arrangements and will report, as a matter of urgency, the 
circumstances of any actual or likely difficulty in achieving the Council’s objectives. The reports will 
be in accordance with the procedures contained in TMP6. 
 
1.1 Credit and Counterparty Risk Management 
 
Credit and counter-party risk is the risk of failure by a counterparty to meet its contractual 
obligations to the organisation under an investment, borrowing, capital project or partnership 
financing, particularly as a result of the counterparty’s diminished creditworthiness, and the resulting 
detrimental effect on the organisation’s capital or current (revenue) resources. 

 
This organisation regards a key objective of its Treasury Management activities to be the 
security of the principal sums it invests. Accordingly, it will ensure that its counterparty lists and 
limits reflect a prudent attitude towards organisations with which funds may be deposited, and 
will limit its investment activities to the instruments, methods and techniques referred to in 
TMP4 Approved Instruments Methods and Techniques and are detailed in the TMP 
Operational document. 
 
It also recognises the need to have, and will therefore maintain, a formal counterparty policy in 
respect of those organisations from which it may borrow, or with whom it may enter into other 
financing arrangements. 
 
1.2 Liquidity Risk Management 

 
This is the risk that cash will not be available when it is needed, that ineffective management of 
liquidity creates additional unbudgeted costs, and that the organisation’s business/service 
objectives will be thereby compromised. 

 
This organisation will ensure it has adequate though not excessive cash resources, borrowing 
arrangements, overdraft or standby facilities to enable it at all times to have the level of funds 
available to it which are necessary for the achievement of its business/service objectives. This 
organisation will only borrow in advance of need where there is a clear business case for doing so 
and will only do so for the current capital programme or to finance future debt maturities. 

Page 57



 

  

1.3 Interest Rate Risk Management 
 

The risk that fluctuations in the levels of interest rates create an unexpected or unbudgeted burden 
on the organisation’s finances, against which the organisation has failed to protect itself adequately. 
 
This organisation will manage its exposure to fluctuations in interest rates with a view to containing 
its interest costs, or securing its interest revenues, in accordance with the amounts provided in its 
budgetary arrangements as amended in accordance with TMP6 Reporting requirements and 
management information arrangements. 
It will achieve this by the prudent use of its approved financing and investment instruments, 
methods and techniques, primarily to create stability and certainty of costs and revenues, but at the 
same time retaining a sufficient degree of flexibility to take advantage of unexpected, potentially 
advantageous changes in the level or structure of interest rates. This should be the subject to the 
consideration and, if required, approval of any policy or budgetary implications. 
 
1.4 Exchange Rate Risk Management 

 
The risk that fluctuations in foreign exchange rates create an unexpected or unbudgeted burden on 
the organisation’s finances, against which the organisation has failed to protect itself adequately. 

 
It will manage its exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates so as to minimise any detrimental 
impact on its budgeted income/expenditure levels. 
 
1.5 Refinancing Risk Management 

 
The risk that maturing borrowings, capital, project or partnership financings cannot be refinanced on 
terms that reflect the provisions made by the organisation for those refinancing, both capital and 
current (revenue), and/or that the terms are inconsistent with prevailing market conditions at the 
time. 
 
This organisation will ensure that its borrowing, private financing and partnership arrangements are 
negotiated, structured and documented, and the maturity profile of the monies so raised are 
managed, with a view to obtaining offer terms for renewal or refinancing, if required, which are 
competitive and as favourable to the organisation as can reasonably be achieved in the light of 
market conditions prevailing at the time. 
 
It will actively manage its relationships with its counterparties in these transactions in such a 
manner as to secure this objective, and will avoid over reliance on any one source of funding if this 
might jeopardise achievement of the above. 
 
1.6 Legal and Regulatory Risk Management 
 
The risk that the organisation itself, or an organisation with which it is dealing in its Treasury 
Management activities, fails to act in accordance with its legal powers or regulatory requirements, 
and that the organisation suffers losses accordingly. 
 
This organisation will ensure that all of its Treasury Management activities comply with its statutory 
powers and regulatory requirements. It will demonstrate such compliance, if required to do so, to all 
parties with whom it deals in such activities. In framing its credit and counterparty policy under 
TMP1[1] credit and counterparty risk management, it will ensure that there is evidence of 
counterparties’ powers, authority and compliance in respect of the transactions they may effect with 
the organisation, particularly with regard to duty of care and fees charged. 

Page 58



 

  

This organisation recognises that future legislative or regulatory changes may impact on its 
Treasury Management activities and, so far as it is reasonably able to do so, will seek to minimise 
the risk of these impacting adversely on the organisation. 
 
1.7 Fraud, Error and Corruption, and Contingency Management 

 
The risk that an organisation fails to identify the circumstances in which it may be exposed to the 
risk of loss through fraud, error, corruption or other eventualities in its Treasury Management 
dealings, and fails to employ suitable systems and procedures and maintain effective contingency 
management arrangements to these ends. It includes the area of risk commonly referred to as 
operational risk. 
 
This organisation will ensure that it has identified the circumstances which may expose it to the risk 
of loss through fraud, error, corruption or other eventualities in its Treasury Management dealings. 
Accordingly, it will employ suitable systems and procedures, and will maintain effective contingency 
management arrangements, to these ends. 

 
The Council will therefore:- 

a) Seek to ensure an adequate division of responsibilities and maintenance at all times of an 
adequate level of internal check which minimises such risks.   

b) Fully document all its Treasury Management activities so that there can be no possible 
confusion as to what proper procedures are.   

c) Staff will not be allowed to take up Treasury Management activities until they have had proper 
training in procedures and are then subject to an adequate and appropriate level of 
supervision.   

Records will be maintained of all Treasury Management transactions so that there is a full audit trail 
and evidence of the appropriate checks being carried out. 
 
1.8 Market Risk Management 
 
The risk that, through adverse market fluctuations in the value of the principal sums an organisation 
borrows and invests, its stated Treasury Management policies and objectives are compromised, 
against which effects it has failed to protect itself adequately. 
 
This organisation will seek to ensure that its stated Treasury Management policies and objectives 
will not be compromised by adverse market fluctuations in the value of the principal sums it invests, 
and will accordingly seek to protect its self from the effects of such fluctuations. 
 
TMP2 : BEST VALUE AND PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT 
 
The Borough Council is committed to the pursuit of best value in its Treasury Management 
activities, and to the use of performance methodology in support of that aim, within the 
framework set out in the Treasury Management Policy Statement. 
 
The Treasury Management function will be the subject of ongoing analysis of the value it adds 
in support of the Council’s stated service objectives.  It will be the subject of regular 
examination of alternative methods of service delivery, of the availability of fiscal, grant or 
subsidy incentives, and the scope for other potential improvements.  The performance of the 
Treasury Management function will be measured using the criteria set out in the detailed TMP 
Operational document. 
 

Page 59



 

  

TMP3 : DECISION-MAKING AND ANALYSIS 
 

The Council will maintain full records of its Treasury Management decisions, and of the 
processes and practices applied in reaching those decisions, both for the purposes of learning 
from the past, and for demonstrating that reasonable steps were taken to ensure that all issues 
relevant to those decisions were taken into account at the time. The issues to be addressed 
and processes and practices to be pursued in reaching decisions are set out in the detailed 
TMP Operational document. 
 
TMP4 : APPROVED INSTRUMENTS, METHODS AND TECHNIQUES 
 
The Council will undertake its Treasury Management activities by employing only those 
instruments, methods and techniques are set out in the detailed TMP Operational document 
and within the limits and parameters defined in TMP1. 
 
TMP5 : ORGANISATION, CLARITY AND SEGREGATION OF RESPONSIBILITIES, AND 
DEALING ARRANGEMENTS 
 
The Council considers it essential, for the purposes of the effective control and monitoring of 
its Treasury Management activities, for the reduction of risk of fraud or error, and for the 
pursuit of optimum performance, that these activities are structured and managed in a fully 
integrated manner, and that there is at all times clarity of Treasury Management 
responsibilities. 
 
The principle, on which this will be based is the clear distinction between those charged with 
setting Treasury Management policies and those charged with implementing and controlling 
these policies, particularly with regard to the execution and transmission of funds, the 
recording and administering of Treasury Management decisions and the audit and review of 
the Treasury Management function. 
 
If and when this organisation intends, as a result of lack of resources or other circumstances, 
to depart from these principals, the Section 151 Officer will ensure that the reasons are 
properly reported in accordance with TPM6 and the implications properly considered and 
evaluated. 
 
The Section 151 Officer will ensure that there are clear written statements of the 
responsibilities for each post engaged in Treasury Management, and the arrangements for 
absence cover. He will also ensure that at all times those engaged in Treasury Management 
will follow the policies and procedures set out. The present arrangements are set out in the 
detailed TMP Operational document. 
 
The Section 151 Officer will ensure that there is proper documentation for all deals and 
transactions, and that procedures exist for the effective transmission of funds. The present 
arrangements are set out in the detailed TMP Operational document. 
The delegations to the Section 151 Officer in respect of Treasury Management are set out in 
the detailed TMP Operational document.He will fulfil all such responsibilities in accordance 
with the Council’s policy statement and TMP’s and, if a CIPFA member, the Standard of 
Professional Practice on Treasury Management. 
 

Page 60



 

  

TMP6 : REPORTING REQUIREMENTS AND MANAGEMENT INFORMATION 
ARRANGEMENTS 
 
The Council will ensure that regular reports are prepared and considered on the 
implementation of its Treasury Management policies; on the effects of decisions taken and 
transactions executed in pursuit of those policies; implications of changes, particularly 
budgetary, resulting from regulatory, economic, market or other factors affecting its Treasury 
Management activities; and on the performance of the Treasury Management function. 
 
As a minimum Cabinet and Council will receive: 

• An annual report on the planned strategy to be pursued in the coming year and the 
reporting of Prudential Indicators. 

• A mid-year review 

• An annual report on the performance of the Treasury Management function including the 
performance against the Prudential Indicators, the effects of the decisions taken and the 
transactions executed in the past year and on any circumstances of non-compliance with 
the Council’s Treasury Management policy statement and TMP’s. 

 
Cabinet will receive regular monitoring reports on Treasury Management activities and risks. 
 
The Audit and Governance Committee will have responsibility for the scrutiny of Treasury 
Management policies and practices. 
 
The Treasury Management indicators will be considered together with the Treasury 
Management indicators in the Prudential Code as part of the budget approval process. 
The present arrangements and the form of these reports are set out in the detailed TMP 
Operational document. 
 
TMP7 : BUDGETING, ACCOUNTING AND AUDIT ARRANGEMENTS 
 
The Section 151 Officer will prepare and Council will approve and, if necessary, from time to 
time will amend, an annual budget for Treasury Management, which will bring together all of 
the costs involved in running the Treasury Management function together with associated 
income.  The matters to be included will at minimum be those required by statute or regulation, 
together, with such information as will demonstrate compliance with TMP1, TMP2 and TMP4. 
 
The Section 151 Officer will exercise effective controls over this budget and report upon and 
recommend any changes required in accordance with TMP6. 
 
The Council will account for its Treasury Management activities, for decisions made and 
transactions executed in accordance with appropriate accounting practices and standards, and 
with statutory and regulatory requirements in force for the time being. 
 
TMP8 : CASH AND CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT 
 
Unless statutory or regulatory requirements demand otherwise, all monies in the hands of the 
Council will be under the control of the Section 151 Officer and will be aggregated for cash flow 
and investment management purposes. Cash flow projections will be prepared on a regular 
and timely basis and the Section 151 Officer will ensure that these are adequate for the 
purpose of monitoring compliance with TMP1. The present arrangements for preparing cash 
flow projections, and their form, are set out in the detailed TMP Operational document. 
 

Page 61



 

  

TMP9 : MONEY LAUNDERING 
 
The Council is alert to the possibility that it may become the subject of an attempt to involve it 
in a transaction involving the laundering of money. The Council will, therefore, maintain 
procedures for verifying and recording the identity of counterparties and reporting suspicions, 
and will ensure that all staff involved are properly trained. The present arrangements, including 
the name of the officer to whom reports should be made, are set out in the detailed TMP 
Operational document. 
 
TMP10 : TRAINING AND QUALIFICATIONS 
 
The Council recognises the importance of ensuring that all staff involved in the Treasury 
Management function are fully equipped to undertake the duties and responsibilities allocated 
to them.  It will seek to appoint individuals, who are both capable and experienced and will 
provide training for staff to enable them to acquire and maintain an appropriate level of 
expertise, knowledge and skills. The Section 151 Officer will recommend and implement the 
necessary arrangements. 
 
The Section 151 Officer will ensure that Council members tasked with Treasury Management 
responsibilities, including those responsible for scrutiny, have access to training relevant to 
their needs and those responsibilities. 
 
Those charged with governance recognise their individual responsibility to ensure that they 
have the necessary skills to complete their role effectively. 
 
TMP11 : USE OF EXTERNAL SERVICE PROVIDERS 
 
The Council recognises that responsibility for the Treasury Management decisions remains 
with the Council at all times. It recognises that there may be potential value in employing 
external providers of Treasury Management services, in order to acquire access to specialist 
skills and resources. When it employs such service providers, it will ensure it does so for 
reasons, which will have been submitted to a full evaluation of the costs and benefits. Terms of 
appointment will be properly agreed, documented and subject to regular review. It will ensure, 
where feasible and necessary, that a spread of service providers is used, to avoid over 
reliance on one or a small number of companies. Where services are subject to formal tender 
or re-tender arrangements, legislative requirements will always be observed. The monitoring of 
such arrangements rests with the Section 151 Officer, and details of the current arrangements 
are set out in the detailed TMP Operational document. 
 
TMP12 : CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
The Council is committed to the pursuit of proper corporate governance throughout its 
services, and to establishing the principles and practices by which this can be achieved.  
Accordingly the Treasury Management function and its activities will be undertaken with 
openness, transparency, honesty, integrity and accountability. 
 
The Council has adopted and implemented the key recommendations of the Code. This, 
together with the other arrangements are set out in the detailed TMP Operational document 
and are considered vital to the achievement of proper governance in Treasury Management, 
and the Section 151 Officer will monitor and, if and when necessary, report upon the 
effectiveness of these arrangements.  
 

Page 62



 

  

ANNEX 8 
Treasury Management Glossary of Terms 

 

Bank Rate  The Official Bank rate paid on commercial bank 
reserves i.e. reserves placed by commercial banks 
with the Bank of England as part of the Bank’s 
operations to reduce volatility in short term interest 
rates in the money markets.  

Base Rate  Minimum lending rate of a bank or financial institution 
in the UK.  

Capital Financing Requirement 
The Council’s underlying need for borrowing for a 
capital purpose. 

Counterparty  The organisations responsible for repaying the 
Council’s investment upon maturity and for making 
interest payments.  

Credit Default Swap (CDS) 
A specific kind of counterparty agreement which 
allows the transfer of third party credit risk from one 
party to the other. One party in the swap is a lender 
and faces credit risk from a third party, and the 
counterparty in the credit default swap agrees to 
insure this risk in exchange for regular periodic 
payments (essentially an insurance premium). If the 
third party defaults, the party providing insurance will 
have to purchase from the insured party the defaulted 
asset. In turn, the insurer pays the insured the 
remaining interest on the debt, as well as the principal. 

Credit Rating  This is a scoring system that lenders issue 
organisations with, to determine how credit worthy 
they are.  

Gilts  These are issued by the UK Government in order to 
finance public expenditure. Gilts are generally issued 
for a set period and pay a fixed rate of interest for the 
period.  

iTraxx This is an index published by Markit who are a leading 
company in CDS pricing and valuation. The index is 
based on an equal weighting of the CDS spread of 25 
European financial companies.  
Clients can use the iTraxx to see where an institutions 
CDS spread is relative to that of the market and judge 
its creditworthiness in that manner, as well as looking 
at the credit ratings. 

Liquidity An asset is perfectly liquid if one can trade 
immediately, at a price not worse than the uninformed 
expected value, the quantity one desires. 

Long term  A period of one year or more.  

Maturity  The date when an investment is repaid or the period 
covered by a fixed term investment.  

Page 63



 

  

Minimum Revenue Provision Capital expenditure is generally expenditure on assets 
which have a life expectancy of more than one year 
e.g. buildings, vehicles, machinery etc. It would be 
impractical to charge the entirety of such expenditure 
to revenue in the year in which it was incurred 
therefore such expenditure is spread over several 
years in order to try to match the years over which 
such assets benefit the local community through their 
useful life. The manner of spreading these costs is 
through an annual Minimum Revenue Provision 

Monetary Policy Committee (MPC)  This is a body set up by the Government in 1997 to 
set the ‘Repo’ rate (commonly referred to as being 
base rate). Their primary target (as set by the 
Government) is to keep inflation at or around 2%. 

Security An investment instrument, issued by a corporation, 
government, or other organization which offers 
evidence of debt or equity. 

Short Term A period of 364 days or less 

Treasury Management The management of the local authority’s investments 
and cash flows, its banking, money market and capital 
market transactions; the effective control of the risks 
associated with those activities; and the pursuit of 
optimum performance consistent with those risks. 

Working Capital Cash and other liquid assets needed to finance the 
everyday running of a business such as the payment 
of salaries and purchases. 

Yield The annual rate of return on an investment, expressed 
as a percentage. 

 

Page 64



 1

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

28th March 2013 
 

Report of the Director of Finance  
 

FINAL ACCOUNTS 2012/13 – ACTION PLAN 
 
Purpose 
 

To provide an outline of the corporate requirements that will need to be 
achieved in order to produce the Council’s Annual Statement of Accounts for 
2012/13 (including deadlines but not including detailed responsibilities) and to 
obtain corporate commitment to the action plan. 

 

Recommendations 
 
That: 
 
1. the target of 14th June 2013 for closure of the final accounts and 

production of a draft statement for 2012/13 be approved; 
 
2. staffing resources be committed to the provision of appropriate 

information and support in order to meet the published timescales 
and the Committee receive progress updates (if required); and 
 

3. the Statement be presented to the Audit & Governance Committee 
on 26th September 2013. 

   

Executive Summary 
 
The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011, require that the statement of 
accounts be produced by 30th June and  require approval of the final audited 
accounts by the Audit & Governance Committee of the Council (‘those 
charged with Governance’) before 30th September. 
 
The key issues affecting the achievement of these deadlines are detailed in 
Appendix A. The action plan identifies key processes and milestones in 
achieving the statutory requirement. 
 
The way the Council prepares and reports its accounts (including professional 
reporting standards and statutory timetables) is a key element within the 
Council’s External Auditors’ (Grant Thornton - GT) assessment of the 
Council’s performance within the Annual Audit Letter.   
 
The action plan is a key element in the process to deliver the Council’s final 
accounts in compliance with legislation and maintain a high quality standard.  
 
Key milestone dates will be regularly reviewed / monitored to achieve 
deadlines with material variances reported to CMT and Members (with 
proposed remedial actions). 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 65



 2

The information provided (detailed in Appendix B), although not 
comprehensive, highlights information that will need to be supplied in order to 
meet the deadline.   

 
Key milestones – Provisional Dates: 
 
o Completion of the draft accounts by 14th June 2013; 
 
o Detailed management quality assurance review by 27th June 2013; 
 
o Submission to Grant Thornton (and to Members) on or before 30th June 

2013; 
 
o Report to Audit & Governance Committee on 26th September 2013; 
 
o Latest publish date 30th September 2013; 
 
Consideration and approval of this report is a key control and evidence of the 
Council’s plans for the closedown and production of its accounts in 
compliance with statutory requirements. 
 
Legal and Risk Implications 
 
The Council has a statutory duty to prepare the Draft Statement of Accounts 
by 30th June 2013. 
 
There is a risk that if the Council is not sufficiently pro-active, the Council’s 
Statement of Accounts may not remain compliant with both the Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounts and International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS) which would result in a potential delay or criticism over the 
production of the Accounts and potentially a qualified audit opinion.  
 
The following top level risks have been identified. The full details are 
contained within the covalent risk register.  
 

Risk 
No 

Likelihood  Impact  Action Required to Manage Risk  

1  Further research reveals 
the new requirements of 
either the Code of 
Practice or IFRS to be 
more complex and time 
consuming than initially 
thought. 

M H  An early start, adequate research, 
adequate initial resources, sufficient 
resource/budget provision for 
contingencies  

2 Incorrect interpretation of 
changes in either the 
Code of Practice or IFRS 

M H  Adequate training, sufficient 
resources. Ensure all reasons for 
actions, inclusions and exclusions, 
are fully documented.  

3 Guidance by CIPFA 
changing possibly 
causing delays  

M H Regular review and rescheduling of 
project timetable  

Page 66



 3

Risk 
No 

Likelihood  Impact  Action Required to Manage Risk  

4  Inadequate training  L M  Research available training, ensure 
all relevant staff attend, training 
budget to be adequate  

5  Failure to identify all 
leases  

L M  Ensure staff understand exactly what 
is involved – a planning meeting has 
been held with Property Services to 
outline the requirements  

6  Key staff leaving  L M  Ensure there are sufficient skills 
within the team to cover  

 
Resource and Value for Money Implications 
 
There are no financial implications arising from this report.   
 
A significant amount of work will need to be undertaken during the period 
March through to early June to ensure completion of the Financial Statements 
by 14th June.  There is a high risk of this deadline not being achieved should 
insufficient resources be directed towards the achievement of this goal – 
deadlines / key milestones will be closely monitored. 
 
Report Author 
 
Please contact Lynne Pugh, Chief Accountant extension 272. 
 
 

Background 
papers 

Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 

Implementation of International Financial Reporting 
Standards – Progress Report, Audit & Governance 
Committee 21st October 2010 

Implementing International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS), Audit & Governance Committee 29th 
April 2009 
Revision and consolidation of the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2003 (SI 2003 No 533) as amended 
consultation (January 2011) 

Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the 
United Kingdom (2012) based on IFRS 

 

Page 67



 4

Appendix A 
Key Issues in the Production of the Statement of Accounts 
 

One of the main ways a Local Authority communicates its financial 
performance to local stakeholders and the wider community is through its 
published financial statements. 
 
The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011, require that the Statement of 
Accounts be produced by 30th June and  require approval of the final audited 
accounts by the Audit & Governance Committee of the Council (‘those 
charged with Governance’) before 30th September  This was successfully 
achieved for the 2011/12 financial year with draft accounts being prepared by 
30th June 2012 and audited accounts approved by the Audit and Governance 
Committee, at its meeting on 27th  September - in compliance with the 
statutory deadline. 
 
Between completion of the statement in June and the conclusion of the on-
site audit in August, a substantial amount of work will be required liaising with 
the external auditors to ensure an unqualified audit report. 
 
Following the completion of the 2011/12 audit the only amendments to the 
Statement of Accounts were minor and were only to enhance the disclosure 
notes – no change to the primary statements.  
 
To meet the necessary deadlines, the closure process for 2011/12 has been 
reviewed to identify any lessons to be learned for future years.  
 
The main issues affecting the closure of accounts for 2011/12 included:  
 
• the need for corporate ownership of the process; 
• reliance on staff in Directorates and third parties who have other priorities; 
• the need for key officers (lead by Corporate Finance) to focus on the 

achievement of critical deadlines, in the face of and in preference to other 
competing priorities; 

• the need to check/validate creditor accruals (and avoid large numbers of 
reversals where evidence cannot be provided) – it would aid timely 
completion of the process if accruals were processed by Managers in 
compliance with laid down parameters (i.e. receipt of goods/services 
before 28th March); 

 
 
Commitment will be required to ensure that appropriate time and 
staffing resources will be focussed on the achievement of the key tasks 
within all directorates. 
 
A planning meeting has already been held with the Audit Lead from Grant 
Thornton to discuss the draft timetable of the year end process (Appendix C) 
with further meetings arranged prior to the commencement of the on-site 
audit of the accounts to discuss progress to date. 
 

A detailed year end timetable has been prepared (attached at Appendix B) 
and communicated; ensuring tasks are allocated, in the right sequence, to 
named individuals. The timetable will include a firm cut off date for accruals 
and practical details, such as publication and committee deadlines.  

Page 68



 5

It is essential that there is a review at the end of closedown to highlight any 
lessons to be learned for next year. Equally vital is clear supporting 
documentation and an audit trail.  These will not only help in the current year 
audit process but will be a sound base for future years. 
 

A risk management approach is essential when resources are limited.  The 
focus will be on known areas of risk based on past experience. A summary of 
issues from the 2011/12 closedown with material delays are detailed below.   
 

An escalation process will be in place if it is evident that critical tasks are 
slipping. There is still some room for development to ensure an efficient 
closedown for 2012/13. 
 

2011/12 - Significant Issues 
 

Item Issue Proposed Solution / Action Already 
taken 

Action 

 

Manual 
Accruals 

 

A significant number of manual 
accruals were received after the 
deadline and following identification 
by Accountant (i.e. not identified 
proactively by budget managers) – 
improvement needed as any late or 
missed accruals could delay the 
process and create additional work 
 

 

By 28/3/13, Directorates will be asked to 
ensure that where goods/services have 
been received the majority of orders are 
‘goods receipted’ within e-financials,,, 
thereby generating ‘auto-accruals’ on 
1/4/13 
 
The minimum level for manual accruals 
will be £5k (as set by Executive Director 
Corporate Services). However, should 
material accruals have been missed (i.e. 
over £5k) then the Service Accountant 
must be advised and appropriate action 
taken 

 

ALL 

 

Asset Register 
/ Valuations / 
Disclosures 
 

 

Delay in finalisation of valuations and 
provision of signed documentation 
before the audit commences 
 

 

Meetings held with Grant Thornton to 
agree date and basis of valuations prior 
to commencement of awarding contract 
for valuations work with ongoing 
reviews. Earlier deadline for return of 
valuations agreed.  A regular review / 
reconciliation will be carried out as part 
of the quality control / monitoring 
process. 

  
Director of 
Finance/  
Chief 
Accountant 
 

 

Related Party 
Transactions 

 

Again - Delayed return of some 
signed statements. 

 

Requirements for any remaining 
Members to be contacted in person at 
Council/Committee meetings - for sign 
off by 30/4/13 at the latest. 

 

Solicitor 

Complexity of 
Working 
Papers / ease 
of use for 
Auditor 

External Audit highlighted that some 
of the working papers are particularly 
complex and can include previous 
years’ data.  

Ways to simplify / clarify working papers 
for the 2012/13 closedown process, 
including cross checks to the accounts / 
financial system, have been discussed 
with the auditor  

 

 
A flexible `teamwork' approach to make the most of scarce staff resources will 
be implemented, if necessary.  Agreed variations to the flexible working policy 
or overtime pay (under the discretion of the Director of Finance) to speed up 
the closure of accounts would be considered as well as the need to bring in 
contract staff. 
 
System weaknesses can cause delays and frustrations and appropriate 
contingency support will be essential, should problems arise. 
 

Page 69



 6

 
Procedures have been in place for a number of years to ensure that key 
reconciliations are performed on a monthly basis during the year and centrally 
managed suspense or bank control accounts are cleared regularly. 
 
The continued requirement to prepare accounts under IFRS will require a well 
thought-out approach to the use of estimates and de minimis levels for year-
end accruals.   
 
This has already been discussed and agreed with Grant Thornton during the 
planning meeting held on 23rd January 2013 with further planning meetings 
scheduled during the coming weeks to communicate progress and discuss 
any issues that may arise. 
 
The aim should be to provide appropriate information to enable the efficient 
closedown without the need to re-open the accounts for late / omitted items 
i.e. a ‘get it right first time’ approach. Managers should make every 
endeavour to include appropriate accruals, temporary reserves and retained 
funds and provide the required information in a timely manner. 
 
Knowing the previous year's outturn position earlier will help inform not only 
the current year's financial performance monitoring but the forthcoming year's 
budget strategy.  
 
It could also further boost confidence in the Council's financial management - 
the timeliness and accuracy of the financial statements and the supporting 
records form part of the auditor’s assessment within the Annual Audit Letter. 

Page 70



 7

Appendix B 

Ref 
CORPORATE REQUIREMENTS LEAD 

OFFICER 
DEADLINE 

FINAL ACCOUNTS 2012/13 

1 
Temporary Reserve / Retained Fund 
information   

ALL 11/03/2013 

2 Review all outstanding orders and delete 
where necessary 

ALL 11/03/2013 

3 Postal Franker Reading / Costs 
Head of 
Property 
Services 

Close of 
Business 
28/03/13 

4 

All “goods receipts” should be on e-financials 
by 28/03/13, with evidence held by the 
Service Departments, in order to ensure 
‘auto-accruals’ are generated.  (It is 
recommended as many as possible done by 
15/03/13) 

ALL 28/03/2013 

Deadline for approved manual accruals. (i.e. 
goods need to be received by 28/03/13.)  
Refer to year end guidance 

ALL 12/04/2013 

5 Staff Holiday and Flexi Leave entitlement as 
at 31/03/13 (Tensor) 

Head of 
Organisational 
Development 

12/04/2013 

6 

Manual accruals to be kept to a minimum, 
with EDCS approval/authorisation only.  The 
minimum level for manual accruals will be 
£5,000. (However, should material accruals 
have been missed (i.e. over £5,000) then the 
Directorate Accountant must be advised and 
appropriate action taken) 

ALL   

7 
Notify all stock holders of the need for 
stocktakes to be carried out at 31/03/13 and 
information returned to accountancy 

ALL 05/04/2013 

8 
Petty Cash imprest reconciliation. A reminder 
of the need to complete returns at 31/3/13 will 
be issued 

ALL 05/04/2013 

9 
IT stock purchases and disposals (hardware 
and software) information 

Director, 
Technology & 
Corporate 
Programmes 

05/04/2013 

10 

Bad debt information: 
Head of 
Revenues 

12/04/2013 

e-financials Sundry Debtors and 
overpayments 

Director of 
Finance 

Homelessness and Housing Rents 
Director, 
Housing & 
Health 

11 
Completion of asset acquisitions / disposals / 
revaluations / impairment and production of 
the asset register certified by qualified valuer  

Director 
Assets & 
Environmental 
Services 

Draft by: 

12/04/2013 

Final Certified 
by: 

26/04/2013 

12 

All reconciliations to be complete and 
returned to accountancy; debtors, benefit, 
HAA/mortgages, rent, car loans, rent 
allowance etc.  (monthly reconciliations 
should be completed during the year) 
 

ALL 12/04/2013 

13 

 
HAA SOCH Mortgage principal repayment 
information  
 

Head of 
Revenues 

12/04/2013 

Page 71



 8

Ref 
CORPORATE REQUIREMENTS LEAD 

OFFICER 
DEADLINE 

FINAL ACCOUNTS 2012/13 

14 
Related Party Transaction information.  
Requirement to be sent by 22/03/13 - 
Approach at Committee if delayed 

Executive 
Director 
Corporate 
Services 12/04/2013 

Solicitor to the 
Council 

15 
Housing Capital salaries detailed by capital 
project 

Head of 
Property 
Services 

12/04/2013 

16 Managers confirmation of continued existence 
and responsibility for assets 

ALL 12/04/2013 

17 Information for completion of DWP and 
Subsidy estimated claims from benefits 

Head of 
Benefits 

12/04/2013 

18 Sale of council house enhancement 
information (Reg 14)(final quarter) 

Head of 
Property 
Services 

12/04/2013 

19 Improvement grant reconciliation 
Head of 
Property 
Services 

12/04/2013 

20 Collection fund information (NNDR3) 
Head of 
Revenues 

26/04/2013 

21 FRS17 Pension information from SCC 
Pension Fund 

SCC 26/04/2013 

22 Review Code of Corporate Governance and 
prepare Annual Governance Statement  

Head of 
Internal Audit 

03/05/2013 

23 Review grant estimates (Benefits) / 
comparison to actual submissions 

Head of 
Benefits  

30/04/2013 

24 Review potential post balance sheet events / 
impact on accounts 

ALL Up to 30/09/13 

 

Page 72



 9

APPENDIX C 
 

 

  
    

  

  Audit Planning Timetable 2012/13   
      

  

Date / 
Deadline Completion of:   

      

  

23/01/2013 Audit Planning Meeting / requirements (following changes to 
code, financial analysis, working papers & format, use of 
estimates etc) key dates to be agreed with Grant Thornton    

 
21/01/13 Interim Visit – walkthrough testing 

 

 

Feb/ Mar 
2013 

Cipfa / GT Workshops 
 

 
25/03/13 Interim Visit – payroll testing 

 

 28/03/13 Final Accounts Action Plan to Audit & Governance Cttee  

  

w/c 
15/04/13 

Audit Planning Meeting / requirements 
  

  

w/c 
09/05/13 

Audit Planning Meeting / requirements 

  

  
14/06/2013 Draft Statement preparation 

  

  2 weeks Quality assurance   

  27/06/2013 Submission of Accounts (to GT / Members)   
  

  
  

 

27/06/2013 High Level Audit Plan for 2012/13 Audit confirmed (for 
planning / management purposes)  

 Early July Engagement Lead / Engagement Manager review  

  

 08/07/2013 On Site Audit Commences (prepare working papers / 
reconciliations / quality assurance process) Accountants / 

Key Officers 
to be 
available for 
Auditor 
questions by 
appointment 

 

12/07/2013 Weekly Meeting with Audit Manager (including emerging 
Governance report issues) - issues to date documented in 
one logical list i.e. no repeated issues 

 
19/07/2013 Weekly Meeting with Audit Manager  

 

26/07/2013 On Site Audit Concludes (the statement will be changed, as 
necessary, as the audit proceeds) - Weekly Meeting with 
Audit Manager 

   26/07/2013 Appointed Day  

 

02/08/2013 Draft list of audit amendments / issues received (subject 
to Engagement Lead review)  

 

09/08/2013 Final list of audit amendments / issues received (after 
Engagement Lead review)  

 
30/08/2013 Amended Statement of Accounts prepared 

 

 
16/09/2013 Annual Governance Report received  

  

 26/09/2013 ISA260 - Report to those charged with governance (Audit & 
Governance Committee 26/09/13)   

  
 26/09/2013 Audit & Governance Committee 

  

  
 26/09/2013 Sign Off  

  
  

  

  

  30/09/2013 Publish at latest   
        

 

Page 73



Page 74

This page is intentionally left blank



 
AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 
 

28TH MARCH 2013 
 

 
 

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICES  
 
 

RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT 
 

 
 
EXEMPT INFORMATION 
 
None 
 
 
PURPOSE 
 
To report on the Risk Management process and progress to date for the current financial 
year. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Committee approves the Corporate Risk Register. 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
One of the functions of the Audit & Governance Committee is to monitor the effectiveness of 
the Authority’s risk management arrangements, including the actions taken to manage risks 
and to receive regular reports on risk management.   
 
Since the last update to this Committee, the Corporate Risk Register has been reviewed and 
updated.  The Corporate Risk Register is owned by the Corporate Management Team and 
reviewed and updated on a quarterly basis.  The Corporate Risk Register is attached for 
information at Appendix 1.  Details of the changes made during the review are highlighted 
for information.   
 
Work continues to be completed by Internal Audit as part of their planned work to ensure that 
the operational risk register entries are aligned to the corporate risks.  This also identifies 
areas where operational risk registers need to be updated to ensure that operationally, the 
corporate risks are managed.   
 
 
 
RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
None 
 
 
LEGAL/RISK IMPLICATIONS BACKGROUND 
 
Risks not identified may not be managed effectively 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 75



 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
None 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION   
 
None 
 
 
REPORT AUTHOR 
 
Angela Struthers ex 234 
 
 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None 
 
 
APPENDICES 
 
Appendix 1 – Corporate Risk Register 
 

Page 76



1
 

c
o

r
p

o
r
a
te

 r
is

k
 r

e
g

is
te

r
 1

2
1

3
 

 G
e
n

e
r
a
t
e
d

 o
n

:
 2

2
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
3
 

 

 
 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

C
P
R
1
2
1
3
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 R
is
k
 R
e
g
is
te
r 
2
0
1
2
/1
3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

--
 e
n
te
r 
ri
s
k
 d
e
ta
il
s
 h
e
re
 -
- 

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 
R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

  

  

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

  

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

  
C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

  

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

  
C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

  

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 
  

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s
 

  

V
u
ln
e
r
a
b
il
it
ie
s
/
c
a
u
s
e
s
 
  

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 77



2
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

C
P
R
1
2
1
3
_
0
1
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

L
o
s
s
 o
f 
F
u
n
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
ta
b
il
it
y
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

S
te
fa
n
 G
a
rn
e
r;
 J
o
h
n
 

W
h
e
a
tl
e
y
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

9
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 (
1
) 
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 t
e
rm

 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 (
2
) 
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
il
it
y
 p
la
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 w
it
h
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 t
o
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
 m

e
a
s
u
re
s
 t
o
 

a
d
d
re
s
s
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
te
rm

 f
u
n
d
in
g
 s
h
o
rt
fa
ll
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 (
3
) 
 

T
re
a
s
u
ry
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
, 
a
n
n
u
a
l 
o
u
tt
u
rn
 &
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 b
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il
. 

re
g
u
la
r 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 (
4
) 
 

W
R
IE
P
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 /
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
(5
) 
 

G
ra
n
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 s
o
u
rc
e
d
 w
h
e
re
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 (
6
) 
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 b
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 t
o
 e
v
a
lu
a
te
 a
n
d
 

u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 c
o
s
ts
/p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
/o
u
tp
u
ts
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 C
IP
F
A
 b
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
, 

re
v
ie
w
in
g
 h
ig
h
 s
p
e
n
d
, 
a
n
n
u
a
l 
in
te
rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
a
u
d
it
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 

b
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
 d
a
ta
 (
7
) 
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 s
e
tt
in
g
 (
8
) 
 

P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
, 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 r
e
g
is
te
r,
 q
u
ic
k
 q
u
o
te
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 /
 P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 

g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 /
 i
n
tr
a
n
e
t 
(9
) 
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
a
s
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
s
 (
1
0
) 
 

S
C
F
O
G
/N
e
tw
o
rk
in
g
 /
 A
c
ti
v
e
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 c
e
n
tr
a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
re
fo
rm

 a
n
d
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 a
g
e
n
d
a
 (
1
1
) 
 

E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
a
s
s
e
ts
 e
g
 M
a
rm

io
n
 H
o
u
s
e
, 
a
g
il
e
 w
o
rk
in
g
 p
ro
je
c
t 
(1
2
) 
 

A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a
t 
p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
&
 G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
u
p
d
a
te
s
 /
 w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
s
 (
1
3
) 
 

P
ro
a
c
ti
v
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
&
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o
f 
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 l
e
v
e
ls
 i
.e
. 
c
o
u
n
c
il
 t
a
x
, 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 r
a
te
s
 &
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 r
e
n
t 
(1
4
) 
 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
5
1
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
c
o
n
tr
o
ls
 w
it
h
in
 k
e
y
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
s
y
s
te
m
s
 (
1
5
) 
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 P
ro
je
c
t 
G
ro
u
p
 e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
e
d
 w
it
h
 k
e
y
 s
u
b
-g
ro
u
p
s
 f
o
r 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
 t
a
s
k
s
 (
1
6
) 
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 t
a
x
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 -
 l
e
g
a
l 
a
d
v
ic
e
, 
E
IA
s
, 
s
o
u
n
d
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 p
u
b
li
c
, 

c
la
im
a
n
ts
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
L
A
s
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
c
h
e
m
e
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 a
n
 a
g
re
e
d
 

C
o
u
n
ty
w
id
e
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 (
1
7
) 
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

6
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

3
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 
1
4
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
3
 

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s
 

C
u
ts
 i
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

Q
u
a
li
ty
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
c
li
n
e
  

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
s
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 s
tr
a
in
e
d
  

Page 78



3
 

u
n
c
o
o
rd
in
a
te
d
 c
u
ts
  

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 n
o
t 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
  

m
is
s
 o
u
t 
o
n
 f
u
n
d
in
g
  

in
a
b
il
it
y
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
o
n
-g
o
in
g
 c
o
s
ts
  

S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 h
e
a
lt
h
 o
f 
th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
  

B
u
d
g
e
ts
 e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
  

m
in
im
u
m
 r
e
s
e
rv
e
s
 n
o
t 
m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
  

B
u
d
g
e
ts
 n
o
t 
b
a
la
n
c
e
d
  

P
o
te
n
ti
a
ll
y
 a
c
ti
n
g
 i
ll
e
g
a
ll
y
  

R
e
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
 i
s
s
u
e
s
  

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 s
tr
e
a
m
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 c
a
r 
p
a
rk
s
, 
g
o
lf
 c
o
u
rs
e
, 
p
la
n
n
in
g
, 
tr
e
a
s
u
ry
, 
c
o
u
n
c
il
 t
a
x
 &
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 r
a
te
s
  

V
u
ln
e
r
a
b
il
it
ie
s
/
c
a
u
s
e
s
 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
s
h
o
rt
fa
ll
 /
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 g
a
p
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 a
u
s
te
ri
ty
 c
u
ts
 -
 3
 y
e
a
r 
M
T
F
S
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 f
ro
m
 2
0
1
3
/1
4
 (
lo
n
g
e
r 
te
rm

 s
h
o
rt
fa
ll
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f
ro
m
 2
0
1
6
/1
7
) 

(1
,2
,3
,9
,1
0
,1
2
) 
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 c
o
s
t 
li
a
b
il
it
ie
s
 e
.g
. 
w
a
te
r 
c
o
u
rs
e
 m

a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
, 
la
n
d
 c
h
a
rg
e
s
, 
le
g
a
c
y
 M
M
I 
c
la
im
s
, 
g
o
lf
 c
o
u
rs
e
 (
1
,2
,3
,9
,1
0
,1
2
) 
 

fa
il
u
re
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
 (
1
) 
 

fa
il
u
re
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
ts
 (
4
) 
 

m
is
s
in
g
 k
e
y
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 (
5
, 
6
) 
 

F
a
il
u
re
 t
o
 m

a
x
im
is
e
 i
n
c
e
n
ti
v
e
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 (
i.
e
. 
n
e
w
 h
o
m
e
s
 b
o
n
u
s
, 
c
o
u
n
c
il
 t
a
x
, 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 a
d
m
in
, 
R
T
B
's
 o
n
e
 f
o
r 
o
n
e
 r
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t)
 (
6
) 
 

D
is
a
b
le
d
 F
a
c
il
it
ie
s
 G
ra
n
ts
 -
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 /
 c
o
s
ts
 n
o
t 
in
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 g
ra
n
t 
le
v
e
ls
 i
m
p
a
c
ti
n
g
 o
n
 o
th
e
r 
fu
n
d
in
g
 s
o
u
rc
e
s
 (
6
) 
 

re
c
e
s
s
io
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 (
i.
e
. 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
, 
fi
n
a
n
c
e
, 
re
c
o
v
e
ry
 l
e
v
e
ls
) 
(7
,8
,1
4
) 
 

fa
il
u
re
 o
f 
a
n
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
r 
(9
) 
 

T
e
c
h
n
ic
a
l 
re
fo
rm

 o
f 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 T
a
x
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
w
e
lf
a
re
 r
e
fo
rm

 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 (
U
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 
C
re
d
it
, 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 A
ll
o
w
a
n
c
e
s
 e
tc
) 
w
e
f 
1
/4
/1
3
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 

le
v
e
ls
/w

ri
te
 o
ff
s
 (
1
4
, 
1
5
) 
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 r
a
te
s
 r
e
te
n
ti
o
n
 w
e
f 
1
/4
/1
3
 -
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 l
e
v
e
ls
 w
il
l 
d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il
s
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
(1
4
,1
5
) 
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
ly
 d
u
e
 t
o
 w
e
lf
a
re
 r
e
fo
rm

 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 (
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 c
o
u
n
c
il
 t
a
x
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
c
h
e
m
e
) 
- 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
u
n
c
il
 t
a
x
, 
re
n
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 e
tc
 (
1
4
, 
1
5
) 
 

H
R
A
 r
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 p
ro
je
c
ts
 &
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 p
la
n
 /
 w
id
e
r 
re
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 p
ro
je
c
t 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
o
w
n
 c
e
n
tr
e
, 
c
a
r 
p
a
rk
s
 e
tc
 (
1
6
) 
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 t
a
x
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 -
 l
e
g
a
l 
c
h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
 (
1
7
) 
 

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 79



4
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

C
P
R
1
2
1
3
_
0
2
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

R
e
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

D
a
m
a
g
e
 t
o
 R
e
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

A
n
ic
a
 G
o
o
d
w
in
; 
T
o
n
y
 

G
o
o
d
w
in
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

9
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 u
s
e
 o
f 
m
u
lt
i 
m
e
d
ia
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
/c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
  

M
e
m
b
e
rs
 s
u
rg
e
ri
e
s
  

C
e
le
b
ra
ti
n
g
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
  

S
ta
te
 o
f 
T
a
m
w
o
rt
h
 d
e
b
a
te
  

P
R
 &
 C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
  

R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
T
e
ll
 U
s
 S
c
h
e
m
e
  

T
a
m
w
o
rt
h
 L
is
te
n
s
  

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
  

O
m
b
u
d
s
m
e
n
 r
e
p
o
rt
  

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o
f 
n
e
w
s
 s
to
ri
e
s
  

S
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
  

C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
  

C
o
d
e
s
 o
f 
c
o
n
d
u
c
t 
 

P
o
li
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
  

S
e
rv
ic
e
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
  

T
ra
in
in
g
 f
o
r 
a
ll
 s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 i
n
 m

e
d
ia
/p
re
s
s
/u
s
e
 o
f 
s
o
c
ia
l 
m
e
d
ia
  

M
y
s
te
ry
 s
h
o
p
p
e
r 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

6
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

3
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 
0
6
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
3
 

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s
 

e
ro
s
io
n
 i
n
 t
ru
s
t 
a
n
d
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
  

s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
a
il
u
re
  

lo
s
s
 o
f 
in
c
o
m
e
  

in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 c
o
s
t 
o
f 
w
o
rk
in
g
  

fa
ll
 i
n
 s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 l
e
v
e
ls
  

lo
s
s
 o
f 
p
u
b
li
c
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
  

c
la
im
s
 i
n
 t
ri
b
u
n
a
l/
p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
li
a
b
il
it
y
  

lo
s
s
 o
f 
p
e
e
r 
g
ro
u
p
 c
re
d
ib
il
it
y
  

In
cr

ea
se

d
 s

cr
u
ti

n
y
 b

y
 g

o
v
er

n
m

en
t 

an
d
 a

u
d
it

o
rs
 

V
u
ln
e
r
a
b
il
it
ie
s
/
c
a
u
s
e
s
 

F
a
il
u
re
 t
o
 m

a
tc
h
 s
o
c
ia
l 
a
n
d
 p
o
li
ti
c
a
l 
e
x
p
e
c
ta
ti
o
n
s
  

fa
il
u
re
 t
o
 a
c
t 
o
n
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
  

c
ri
s
is
 a
n
d
 m

a
jo
r 
in
c
id
e
n
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
fa
il
u
re
s
  

fa
il
u
re
 t
o
 d
e
li
v
e
r 
m
in
im
u
m
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
  

Page 80



5
 

T
h
ir
d
 p
a
rt
y
 s
u
p
p
ly
 c
h
a
in
 f
a
il
u
re
  

n
o
n
-c
o
m
p
li
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 l
e
g
is
la
ti
o
n
  

u
n
e
th
ic
a
l 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
s
 b
y
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
/m

e
m
b
e
rs
  

s
e
c
u
ri
ty
 b
re
a
c
h
e
s
 b
y
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
/m

e
m
b
e
rs
  

p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 b
y
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
/m

e
m
b
e
rs
  

m
is
u
s
e
 o
f 
s
o
c
ia
l 
m
e
d
ia
 b
y
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
/m

e
m
b
e
rs
  

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 81



6
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

C
P
R
1
2
1
3
_
0
3
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 &
 R
e
g
u
la
to
ry
 F
a
il
u
re
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

F
a
il
u
re
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 a
d
e
q
u
a
te
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 a
n
d
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
ie
s
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

Ja
n
e
 H
a
c
k
e
tt
; 
Jo
h
n
 

W
h
e
a
tl
e
y
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

9
 

R
e
g
u
la
r 
re
v
ie
w
 &
 u
p
d
a
te
 o
f 
F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 (
1
) 
 

A
u
d
it
 &
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 (
2
) 
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 c
a
ll
 i
n
 &
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 a
t 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 (
3
) 
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 /
 p
re
p
a
re
d
 (
4
) 
 

W
h
is
tl
e
b
lo
w
in
g
 P
o
li
c
y
 a
n
d
 C
o
u
n
te
r 
F
ra
u
d
 a
n
d
 C
o
rr
u
p
ti
o
n
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 &
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
d
 (
5
) 
 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
5
1
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
a
li
ty
 a
n
d
 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
in
 p
la
c
e
 /
 S
c
h
e
m
e
 o
f 
D
e
le
g
a
ti
o
n
 

(6
) 
 

In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 (
7
) 
 

E
x
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
/ 
re
v
ie
w
s
 (
8
) 
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 G
u
id
a
n
c
e
 P
o
li
c
y
 (
9
) 
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
 p
re
p
a
re
d
 a
n
n
u
a
ll
y
 (
1
0
) 
 

C
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
 -
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
re
v
ie
w
 (
1
1
) 
 

C
o
d
e
 o
f 
C
o
n
d
u
c
t 
fo
r 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
 (
1
2
) 
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
p
o
li
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 /
 N
e
t 
C
o
n
s
e
n
t 
fo
r 
p
o
li
c
y
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

a
c
c
e
p
ta
n
c
e
 (
1
3
) 
 

L
e
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 t
ra
in
in
g
 f
o
r 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 a
n
d
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 /
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
a
l 
C
P
D
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
tr
a
in
in
g
 

/ 
re
g
u
la
r 
le
g
a
l 
u
p
d
a
te
s
 (
1
4
) 
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
m
e
m
b
e
r 
tr
a
in
in
g
 p
la
n
 /
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
e
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 s
o
lu
ti
o
n
 (
1
5
) 
 

In
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 p
o
li
c
ie
s
 f
o
r 
re
g
u
la
to
ry
 f
a
il
u
re
 -
 o
ff
ic
ia
ls
 i
n
d
e
m
n
it
y
, 
fi
d
e
li
ty
 g
u
a
ra
n
te
e
 

&
 l
ib
e
l 
a
n
d
 s
la
n
d
e
r(
1
6
) 
 

T
U
L
G
 -
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
, 
o
p
e
n
n
e
s
s
, 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
il
it
y
, 
p
ro
b
it
y
 (
1
7
) 
 

O
b
li
g
a
ti
o
n
s
 u
n
d
e
r 
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 A
c
t 
a
n
d
 P
u
b
li
c
 H
e
a
lt
h
 A
c
t 
(1
8
) 
 

P
D
R
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 (
1
9
) 
 

E
le
c
to
ra
l 
P
ro
c
e
s
s
 (
2
0
) 
 

F
o
rw

a
rd
 P
la
n
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
 k
e
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 h
ig
h
li
g
h
te
d
, 
C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 (
2
1
) 
 

T
h
e
 L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 (
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 A
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
) 
(M

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a
n
d
 A
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
) 
(E
n
g
la
n
d
) 
R
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
 2
0
1
2
 (
2
2
) 
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

4
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 
1
4
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
3
 

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s
 

n
o
n
-c
o
m
p
li
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 l
e
g
a
l 
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
  

fr
a
u
d
  

Page 82



7
 

p
o
o
r 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
  

d
a
m
a
g
e
 t
o
 r
e
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
  

p
ro
s
e
c
u
ti
o
n
, 
fi
n
e
s
  

d
e
a
th
 o
r 
in
ju
ry
 t
o
 p
u
b
li
c
 a
n
d
/o
r 
s
ta
ff
  

a
u
d
it
 c
ri
ti
c
is
m
 w
it
h
in
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 L
e
tt
e
r 
/ 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 q
u
a
li
fi
e
d
  

p
o
o
r 
in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
  

le
g
a
l 
c
h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
  

U
lt
ra
 v
ir
e
s
  

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
/ 
e
x
p
o
s
u
re
 f
ro
m
 p
o
o
r 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 a
ri
s
in
g
 f
ro
m
 u
n
in
fo
rm

e
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m

a
k
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
  

In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 f
o
r 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 M
e
m
b
e
rs
  

V
u
ln
e
r
a
b
il
it
ie
s
/
c
a
u
s
e
s
 

L
a
c
k
 o
f 
tr
a
in
in
g
 /
 k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 -
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 a
n
d
 m

e
m
b
e
r 
(1
4
, 
1
5
) 
 

la
c
k
 o
f 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
te
d
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 (
1
) 
 

la
c
k
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t 
fr
o
m
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 a
n
d
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 (
6
, 
1
2
) 
 

fa
il
u
re
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
k
e
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 (
1
4
, 
1
5
) 
 

In
a
d
e
q
u
a
te
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 (
1
, 
2
, 
3
, 
4
, 
5
, 
6
, 
7
, 
8
, 
9
, 
1
0
, 
1
1
, 
1
2
, 
1
3
, 
1
4
, 
1
5
, 
1
6
, 
1
7
, 
1
8
, 
1
9
, 
2
0
, 
2
1
,2
2
) 
 

L
a
c
k
 o
f 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
il
it
y
 (
5
, 
6
 ,
7
, 
8
, 
1
2
, 
1
9
, 
2
0
) 
 

N
o
n
 c
o
m
p
li
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 l
e
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 (
6
 ,
1
4
 ,
1
8
) 
 

fr
a
u
d
 (
1
, 
5
, 
6
) 
 

P
o
o
r 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 (
1
9
) 
 

fa
il
u
re
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 o
r 
b
e
 a
w
a
re
 o
f 
le
g
a
l 
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
ie
s
/c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 l
e
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 (
6
, 
1
4
, 
1
5
) 
 

la
c
k
 o
f 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
(3
) 
 

lo
s
s
 o
f 
k
e
y
 s
ta
ff
 /
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 (
2
0
) 
 

in
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m

a
k
in
g
 (
6
, 
1
4
, 
1
5
) 
 

C
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 p
o
li
ti
c
a
l 
c
o
n
tr
o
l 
(2
0
) 
 

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

L
o
c
a
li
s
m
 A
c
t,
 W

e
lf
a
re
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 
re
fo
rm

, 
 

 Page 83



8
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

C
P
R
1
2
1
3
_
0
4
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 W

o
rk
in
g
 a
n
d
 S
u
p
p
ly
 C
h
a
in
 C
h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
s
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

F
a
il
u
re
 i
n
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
o
rk
in
g
, 
s
h
a
re
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 o
r 
s
u
p
p
ly
 c
h
a
in
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

A
n
d
re
w
 B
a
rr
a
tt
; 
R
o
b
 

M
it
c
h
e
ll
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

9
 

P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
, 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 r
e
g
is
te
r,
 q
u
ic
k
 q
u
o
te
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 /
 P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 

g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 /
 i
n
tr
a
n
e
t 
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 P
o
li
c
y
 a
n
d
 t
ra
in
in
g
 o
n
 t
h
e
 p
o
li
c
y
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
  
- 
re
fr
e
s
h
e
d
 i
n
 

2
0
1
2
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
, 
e
g
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
, 
s
h
a
re
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
  

E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t/
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
  

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 C
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 p
la
n
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
  

R
is
k
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
  

C
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 f
o
r 
s
o
m
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
  

T
B
C
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 C
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 G
ro
u
p
  

A
d
e
q
u
a
te
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f 
re
fe
re
n
c
e
  

A
d
h
e
re
n
c
e
 t
o
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 r
e
g
is
te
r 
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

4
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 
2
6
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
3
 

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 n
o
t 
d
e
li
v
e
re
d
  

D
a
m
a
g
e
 t
o
 r
e
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
  

L
o
s
s
 o
f 
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
, 
in
te
ll
e
c
tu
a
l 
p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
a
s
s
e
ts
  

L
o
s
s
 o
f 
q
u
a
li
ty
 s
e
rv
ic
e
  

C
ri
ti
c
is
m
 f
ro
m
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
o
rs
/a
s
s
e
s
s
o
rs
  

C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
d
is
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
  

L
a
c
k
 o
f 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
  

W
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 o
p
p
o
s
it
io
n
  

H
ig
h
 e
x
it
 c
o
s
ts
  

C
o
s
ts
 n
o
t 
re
d
u
c
e
d
  

E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s
 n
o
t 
g
a
in
e
d
  

W
a
s
te
 n
o
t 
e
li
m
in
a
te
d
  

R
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
 n
o
t 
m
e
t 
 

V
u
ln
e
r
a
b
il
it
ie
s
/
c
a
u
s
e
s
 

F
a
il
u
re
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 e
x
p
e
c
ta
ti
o
n
s
  

P
a
rt
n
e
r 
h
a
s
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
fa
il
u
re
  

S
u
p
p
li
e
r 
in
c
id
e
n
t 
e
g
 d
a
ta
 l
o
s
s
, 
g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
  

S
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 c
o
ll
a
p
s
e
s
 d
u
ri
n
g
 w
id
e
 s
p
re
a
d
 m

a
jo
r 
in
c
id
e
n
t 
 

T
h
ir
d
 p
a
rt
y
 s
u
p
p
ly
 c
h
a
in
 f
a
il
u
re
  

P
a
rt
n
e
r 
u
n
d
e
r 
p
e
rf
o
rm

s
  

Page 84



9
 

F
a
il
u
re
 t
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 a
ri
s
in
g
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
th
ri
d
 p
a
rt
ie
s
  

F
a
il
u
re
 t
o
 s
e
t 
a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
tu
a
l 
c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
 a
n
d
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
a
rg
e
ts
  

F
a
il
u
re
 t
o
 g
e
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
  

S
ta
ff
 t
u
rn
o
v
e
r 
in
c
re
a
s
e
s
  

P
o
o
r,
 i
n
c
o
m
p
le
te
 k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r 
 

S
c
o
p
e
 o
f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 t
o
o
 n
a
rr
o
w
/t
o
o
 b
ro
a
d
  

b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 n
o
t 
re
a
li
s
e
d
  

P
o
li
ti
c
a
l 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
p
o
li
c
y
  

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 -
 w
a
s
te
, 
h
e
a
lt
h
 &
 s
a
fe
ty
, 
E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t,
 B
u
il
d
in
g
 C
o
n
tr
o
l,
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
, 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 R
e
p
a
ir
s
, 
IT
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
s
k
  

 Page 85



1
0
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

C
P
R
1
2
1
3
_
0
5
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 &
 C
ri
s
is
 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 T
h
re
a
ts
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

F
a
il
u
re
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 a
n
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
o
r 
in
te
rn
a
l 
e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
/d
is
a
s
te
r 
s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

A
n
d
re
w
 B
a
rr
a
tt
; 
N
ic
k
i 

B
u
rt
o
n
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

9
 

E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 P
la
n
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
  

E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 t
ra
in
in
g
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
t 
v
a
ri
o
u
s
 l
e
v
e
ls
  

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 C
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 P
la
n
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
  

In
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 c
o
v
e
r 
in
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 c
o
v
e
r 
e
x
p
o
s
u
re
 t
o
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
lo
s
s
. 
 

A
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 o
n
 R
is
k
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 C
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

in
tr
a
n
e
t 
 

E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
ie
s
 a
d
v
ic
e
 a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 o
n
 w
e
b
s
it
e
  

B
u
il
d
in
g
- 
fi
re
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 c
o
n
tr
o
ls
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 a
n
d
 t
e
s
te
d
 o
n
 a
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
b
a
s
is
  

A
d
e
q
u
a
te
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
s
e
c
u
ri
ty
 c
o
n
tr
o
ls
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 o
n
 a
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
b
a
s
is
. 
 

IT
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 p
la
n
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 a
n
d
 t
e
s
te
d
 o
n
 a
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
b
a
s
is
  

S
e
rv
ic
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
a
n
a
ly
s
is
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 t
o
 r
a
n
k
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 p
la
n
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
  

A
ll
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
s
 t
e
s
te
d
 o
n
 a
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
b
a
s
is
  

E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 p
la
n
 t
e
s
te
d
 o
n
 a
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
b
a
s
is
  

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 C
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 G
ro
u
p
  

M
e
m
b
e
rs
h
ip
 o
f 
S
ta
ff
o
rd
s
h
ir
e
 C
C
U
 &
 R
e
s
il
ie
n
c
e
 F
o
ru
m
  

E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 /
IC
T
 t
o
o
ls
/ 
in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 e
g
 m

o
b
il
e
 p
h
o
n
e
s
, 
la
p
to
p
s
  

R
e
p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 a
t 
n
e
w
ly
 f
o
rm

e
d
 C
C
U
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 L
e
a
d
e
rs
 M
e
e
ti
n
g
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 n
o
 n
o
ti
c
e
 t
e
s
ts
 

L
e
a
rn
in
g
 f
ro
m
 a
c
tu
a
l 
e
v
e
n
ts
 i
.e
. 
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 s
y
s
te
m
 f
a
il
u
re
 D
e
c
 1
2
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

4
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 
2
6
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
3
 

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 n
o
t 
d
e
li
v
e
re
d
  

D
a
m
a
g
e
 t
o
 r
e
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
  

C
iv
il
 C
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y
 A
c
t 
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 n
o
t 
m
e
t 
 

D
e
a
th
  

D
e
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
p
ro
p
e
rt
y
  

D
a
m
a
g
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
 

A
d
v
e
rs
e
 a
ff
e
c
t 
o
n
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 g
ro
u
p
s
  

P
u
b
li
c
 e
x
p
e
c
ta
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 n
o
t 
m
e
t 
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 c
o
s
ts
 f
o
r 
a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
  

V
u
ln
e
r
a
b
il
it
ie
s
/
c
a
u
s
e
s
 
L
a
c
k
 o
f 
in
te
g
ra
te
d
 e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 m

a
k
in
g
 i
t 
d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 r
e
a
c
t 
q
u
ic
k
ly
 t
o
 a
 d
is
a
s
te
r 
a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
 t
h
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 C
iv
il
 C
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 A
c
t.
  

Page 86



1
1
 

F
a
il
u
re
 t
o
 t
e
s
t 
p
la
n
s
  

F
a
il
u
re
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 t
ra
in
in
g
  

P
la
n
s
 n
o
t 
a
c
ti
v
a
te
d
  

p
la
n
s
 d
o
 n
o
t 
a
c
c
u
ra
te
ly
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 t
h
e
 s
ta
ff
in
g
/r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
  

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
ri
s
k
s
 a
n
d
 s
c
o
ri
n
g
 m

a
tr
ix
 s
ti
ll
 a
c
c
u
ra
te
 a
n
d
 f
it
 f
o
r 
p
u
rp
o
s
e
 

 Page 87



1
2
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

C
P
R
1
2
1
3
_
0
6
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 C
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

F
a
il
u
re
 t
o
 p
la
n
 a
n
d
 a
d
a
p
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

S
te
fa
n
 G
a
rn
e
r;
 R
o
b
 

M
it
c
h
e
ll
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

6
 

L
in
k
 t
o
 C
P
R
1
2
1
3
_
0
1
 -
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
c
o
n
tr
o
l 
(1
) 
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
ri
o
ri
ty
 -
 A
s
p
ir
e
 &
 P
ro
s
p
e
r 
(p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

o
n
it
o
re
d
, 
a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
) 
(2
) 
 

K
e
e
p
 u
p
 t
o
 d
a
te
 w
it
h
 c
e
n
tr
a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 (
3
) 
 

A
d
a
p
t 
to
 d
o
w
n
tu
rn
 i
n
 e
c
o
n
o
m
y
 -
 T
a
m
w
o
rt
h
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 A
d
v
ic
e
 N
e
tw
o
rk
 

(T
a
m
w
o
rt
h
C
A
N
) 
(3
) 
 

E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 B
u
ll
e
ti
n
 d
is
tr
ib
u
te
d
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
- 
s
h
o
w
s
 r
e
g
io
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 

e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 s
ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
 (
4
) 
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
n
e
tw
o
rk
s
 a
n
d
 l
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 (
5
) 
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 l
o
c
a
l 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 -
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
(q
u
ic
k
 q
u
o
te
) 

(6
) 
 

T
h
in
k
 L
o
c
a
l 
(7
) 
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 (
8
) 
 

P
la
c
e
 G
ro
u
p
 /
 T
a
m
w
o
rt
h
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 (
9
) 
 

S
o
lu
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 (
1
0
) 
 

E
x
te
rn
a
l 
fu
n
d
in
g
 s
tr
e
a
m
s
 e
x
p
lo
re
d
 (
P
o
rt
a
s
, 
G
B
S
L
E
P
) 
(1
1
) 
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 t
e
rm

 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
p
la
n
 (
1
2
) 
 

Z
e
ro
 b
a
s
e
d
 b
u
d
g
e
ti
n
g
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 I
n
c
o
m
e
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 (
1
3
) 
 

R
e
g
u
la
r 
re
v
ie
w
 o
f 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 p
la
n
s
 (
1
4
) 
 

E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 (
1
5
) 
 

G
B
S
L
E
P
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 R
a
te
 r
e
fo
rm

 /
 p
o
o
li
n
g
 (
1
6
) 
 

L
o
c
a
l 
P
la
n
 (
1
7
) 
 

L
o
c
a
l 
In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
P
la
n
 (
1
8
) 
 

L
o
c
a
l 
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 B
o
a
rd
 (
G
B
S
L
E
P
) 
(1
9
) 
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 p
ro
je
c
ts
 /
 r
e
v
ie
w
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 w
id
e
r 
T
o
w
n
 C
e
n
tr
e
 

re
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 (
2
0
) 
 

P
la
n
 f
o
r 
W
e
lf
a
re
 r
e
fo
rm

 –
 d
is
c
u
s
s
 w
it
h
 p
a
rt
n
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 v
ia
 t
h
e
 T
S
P
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

3
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

3
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

1
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 
1
4
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
3
 

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s
 

L
a
c
k
 o
f 
T
o
w
n
 C
e
n
tr
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
/ 
p
ro
s
p
e
ri
ty
  

N
o
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
fu
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 a
id
 e
c
o
n
o
m
y
 a
n
d
 g
ro
w
th
  

E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 p
ro
s
p
e
ri
ty
 d
e
c
li
n
e
s
  

D
e
tr
im
e
n
ta
l 
e
ff
e
c
t 
o
n
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 m

a
rk
e
t 
 

P
e
o
p
le
 l
e
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
  

Page 88



1
3
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 f
o
r 
s
o
c
ia
l 
h
o
u
s
in
g
  

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 i
n
c
o
m
e
  

In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 c
o
s
ts
 t
o
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 d
u
e
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 d
e
m
a
n
d
  

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
ly
 d
u
e
 t
o
 w
e
lf
a
re
 r
e
fo
rm

 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 (
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 c
o
u
n
c
il
 t
a
x
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
c
h
e
m
e
) 
- 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 r
a
te
s
, 
c
o
u
n
c
il
 t
a
x
, 
re
n
t 
in
c
o
m
e
, 
c
a
r 

p
a
rk
in
g
, 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 e
tc
  

V
u
ln
e
r
a
b
il
it
ie
s
/
c
a
u
s
e
s
 

F
a
il
u
re
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
 e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 (
1
, 
2
) 
 

S
u
d
d
e
n
 e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 d
o
w
n
tu
rn
 a
ff
e
c
ti
n
g
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
, 
jo
b
s
, 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 e
tc
 (
2
, 
3
, 
6
, 
8
, 
9
, 
1
5
) 
 

L
o
s
s
 o
f 
m
a
jo
r 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
r 
in
 t
h
e
 r
e
g
io
n
 (
3
) 
 

F
a
il
u
re
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 (
1
1
, 
1
5
, 
1
6
) 
 

R
a
p
id
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 i
n
fl
a
ti
o
n
 (
1
, 
1
2
) 
 

C
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
fu
n
d
in
g
/g
ra
n
ts
 (
3
, 
1
2
) 
 

C
o
ll
a
p
s
e
 /
 d
e
c
li
n
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 m

a
rk
e
t 
(2
, 
8
, 
1
5
, 
1
6
, 
1
7
, 
1
8
, 
1
9
, 
2
0
) 
 

C
h
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
(1
8
, 
1
9
) 
 

U
n
d
e
r 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t/
in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
(1
5
, 
1
6
, 
1
7
, 
1
8
, 
1
9
, 
2
0
) 
 

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 89



1
4
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

C
P
R
1
2
1
3
_
0
7
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
&
 I
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 T
e
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 
C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

F
a
il
u
re
 t
o
 s
e
c
u
re
 a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 d
a
ta
 a
n
d
 I
T
 i
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

N
ic
k
i 
B
u
rt
o
n
; 
Jo
h
n
 

W
h
e
a
tl
e
y
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

1
2
 

N
e
tw
o
rk
 s
e
c
u
ri
ty
  

P
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
s
e
c
u
ri
ty
  

S
e
c
u
ri
ty
 P
o
li
c
y
, 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 S
e
c
u
ri
ty
 M
a
n
u
a
l 
 

D
a
ta
 P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 c
o
m
p
li
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 t
ra
in
in
g
  

G
C
S
X
  

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
c
o
n
tr
o
ls
  

E
s
ta
b
li
s
h
e
d
 p
ro
to
c
o
ls
  

S
e
c
u
ri
ty
 o
f 
d
a
ta
  

E
D
R
M
S
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
  

D
a
ta
 l
im
it
s
  

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 C
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 P
la
n
s
  

D
is
a
s
te
r 
R
e
c
o
v
e
ry
 P
la
n
  

V
ir
tu
a
l 
s
e
rv
e
rs
  

W
e
b
 b
a
s
e
d
 s
y
s
te
m
s
  

H
o
m
e
 w
o
rk
in
g
  

IS
O
2
7
0
0
1
  

B
a
c
k
 u
p
s
  

A
n
n
u
a
l 
p
e
n
e
tr
a
ti
o
n
 t
e
s
ts
 

IS
O
2
0
0
0
0
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 C
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 w
it
h
 r
e
c
ip
ro
c
a
l 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
t 
W
a
ls
a
ll
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

9
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

4
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

3
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

3
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 
1
4
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
3
 

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s
 

F
in
e
  

R
e
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
a
l 
d
a
m
a
g
e
  

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
ri
s
o
n
m
e
n
t 
 

P
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
h
a
rm

 t
o
 s
ta
ff
  

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
 f
o
r 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 p
u
b
li
c
 i
f 
th
e
ir
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
d
a
ta
 l
o
s
t/
s
to
le
n
  

L
o
s
s
 o
f 
k
e
y
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
  

In
a
b
il
it
y
 t
o
 d
e
li
v
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
lo
s
s
 o
f 
in
c
o
m
e
  

V
u
ln
e
r
a
b
il
it
ie
s
/
c
a
u
s
e
s
 

In
s
e
c
u
re
 I
T
 e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 
 

H
u
m
a
n
 e
rr
o
r 
/ 
lo
s
s
 o
f 
p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
d
a
ta
  

L
o
s
s
 o
f 
e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t/
d
a
ta
  

Page 90



1
5
 

T
h
e
ft
  

E
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 
fa
il
u
re
  

H
a
c
k
in
g
 /
 V
ir
u
s
e
s
  

A
g
il
e
 w
o
rk
in
g
 t
ri
a
ls
 /
 f
le
x
ib
le
 w
o
rk
in
g
 p
ro
je
c
t 
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 C
h
a
n
g
e
 P
ro
je
c
t 
 

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 91



1
6
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

C
P
R
1
2
1
3
_
0
8
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

L
o
s
s
 o
f 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 C
o
h
e
s
io
n
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

F
a
il
u
re
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
o
h
e
s
io
n
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

R
o
b
 B
a
rn
e
s
; 
R
o
b
 M
it
c
h
e
ll
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

1
2
 

N
o
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 t
o
 f
ro
n
t 
li
n
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

L
o
c
a
li
ty
 w
o
rk
in
g
  

A
S
B
 P
o
li
c
y
  

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
o
rk
in
g
  

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
In
c
lu
s
io
n
 P
o
li
c
y
  

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
 

S
tr
o
n
g
e
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 G
ro
u
p
  

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 d
a
ta
b
a
s
e
  

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 p
ro
a
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
 e
n
g
a
g
in
g
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
  

D
a
ta
 a
n
d
 i
n
te
ll
ig
e
n
c
e
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
fo
rm

 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
  

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
o
h
e
s
io
n
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
  

C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 b
u
il
d
in
g
 p
ro
je
c
ts
 &
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
  

Im
p
a
c
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 u
s
e
d
  

H
o
ri
z
o
n
 s
c
a
n
n
in
g
 B
ig
 S
o
c
ie
ty
/L
o
c
a
li
s
m
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
 

S
tr
o
n
g
e
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
  

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 A
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 G
ro
u
p
  

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
A
S
B
 h
u
b
  

L
in
k
s
 w
it
h
 P
o
li
c
e
  

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 C
o
h
e
s
io
n
 A
u
d
it
  

T
a
m
w
o
rt
h
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
  

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
  

T
o
ta
l 
P
la
c
e
  

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

6
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

4
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

3
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 
2
6
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
3
 

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s
 

L
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 c
o
s
ts
  

N
o
t 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
/u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 u
s
e
rs
 n
e
e
d
s
  

In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 c
ri
m
e
 a
n
d
 d
is
o
rd
e
r 
 

P
o
o
r 
u
s
e
 o
f 
fu
n
d
in
g
  

In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 t
e
n
s
io
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
  

N
o
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t/
o
w
n
e
rs
h
ip
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 v
is
io
n
  

L
o
w
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
o
h
e
s
io
n
  

F
e
a
r 
o
f 
p
e
rc
e
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
c
ri
m
e
  

F
a
il
u
re
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
d
e
m
a
n
d
  

V
u
ln
e
r
a
b
il
it
ie
s
/
c
a
u
s
e
s
 
E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 r
e
c
e
s
s
io
n
 

Page 92



1
7
 

P
o
v
e
rt
y
 

W
e
lf
a
re
 r
e
fo
rm

s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
it
h
d
ra
w
n
  

B
ig
 S
o
c
ie
ty
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
ta
k
e
 o
ff
  

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 f
ra
g
m
e
n
te
d
  

In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 A
S
B
  

In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
  

L
a
c
k
 o
f 
in
te
re
s
t 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
li
c
  

P
o
o
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
  

P
o
o
r 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 a
t 
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
 

L
im
it
e
d
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
g
o
o
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
  

H
o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 r
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 p
ro
je
c
ts
 –
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 m

g
t 

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 93



1
8
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

C
P
R
1
2
1
3
_
0
9
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

W
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 C
h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
s
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

F
a
il
u
re
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 c
h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
s
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

A
n
ic
a
 G
o
o
d
w
in
; 
T
o
n
y
 

G
o
o
d
w
in
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

9
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
s
  

R
e
g
u
la
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
  

W
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
io
n
 p
la
n
n
in
g
  

C
o
re
 b
ri
e
f 
 

S
ta
ff
 A
G
M
  

P
D
R
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 s
k
il
l 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
  

H
R
 p
o
li
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
  

P
o
s
t 
e
n
tr
y
 t
ra
in
in
g
 t
o
 q
u
a
li
fy
 s
ta
ff
 i
n
 k
e
y
 a
re
a
s
  

A
b
s
e
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
o
li
c
y
, 
h
e
a
lt
h
s
h
ie
ld
 a
n
d
 o
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
  

M
a
rk
e
t 
s
u
p
p
le
m
e
n
t 
p
o
li
c
y
 f
o
r 
e
it
h
e
r 
re
te
n
ti
o
n
 o
r 
re
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 s
k
il
ls
  

M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
 c
a
p
a
b
il
it
ie
s
/c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 f
o
r 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 

p
u
rp
o
s
e
s
  

R
e
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
 w
it
h
 T
ra
d
e
 U
n
io
n
s
 (
T
U
L
G
) 
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
ri
s
k
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
re
d
u
c
e
d
 s
ta
ff
in
g
  

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
  

P
re
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
c
h
e
c
k
s
  

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

4
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 
0
6
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
3
 

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s
 

S
tr
a
in
 o
n
 r
e
m
a
in
in
g
 s
ta
ff
  

R
is
k
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
  

In
d
u
s
tr
ia
l 
a
c
ti
o
n
  

B
u
d
g
e
t 
m
is
a
li
g
n
m
e
n
t 
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 f
ra
u
d
  

W
ro
n
g
 m

e
s
s
a
g
e
s
 s
e
n
t 
o
u
t 
 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
tr
ib
u
n
a
l 
c
a
s
e
s
  

in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
g
ri
e
v
a
n
c
e
s
 f
ro
m
 s
ta
ff
  

in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 a
b
s
e
n
te
e
is
m
  

In
a
b
il
it
y
 t
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 a
g
e
n
d
a
  

in
a
b
il
it
y
 t
o
 a
li
g
n
 s
k
il
l 
le
v
e
ls
 t
o
 n
e
w
 w
o
rk
in
g
 m

e
th
o
d
s
  

U
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 r
e
c
ru
it
 s
ta
ff
  

V
u
ln
e
r
a
b
il
it
ie
s
/
c
a
u
s
e
s
 

S
ta
ff
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 o
v
e
rl
o
a
d
e
d
  

L
o
w
 m

o
ra
le
 h
a
s
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
  

In
d
u
s
tr
ia
l 
u
n
re
s
t 
 

Page 94



1
9
 

R
e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
ie
s
 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
fu
tu
re
 c
o
s
ts
  

F
a
il
u
re
 t
o
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
  

S
m
a
ll
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 w
it
h
 s
p
e
c
ia
li
s
e
d
 s
ta
ff
  

S
ic
k
n
e
s
s
 l
e
v
e
ls
 r
e
m
a
in
 t
o
o
 h
ig
h
 l
e
a
v
in
g
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 s
k
il
ls
 g
a
p
s
  

P
a
y
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
 b
e
lo
w
 m

a
rk
e
t 
c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
 f
o
r 
s
k
il
ls
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
  

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 95



2
0
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

C
P
R
1
2
1
3
_
1
0
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 &
 S
a
fe
ty
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

F
a
il
u
re
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 H
e
a
lt
h
 &
 S
a
fe
ty
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

A
n
d
re
w
 B
a
rr
a
tt
; 
A
n
ic
a
 

G
o
o
d
w
in
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

1
2
 

P
o
li
c
ie
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
  

T
ra
in
in
g
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
  

H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 S
a
fe
ty
 g
ro
u
p
s
  

R
is
k
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
  

In
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
  

P
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
s
a
fe
ty
 e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
v
id
e
d
  

L
o
n
e
 w
o
rk
in
g
 p
o
li
c
y
 a
n
d
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
s
  

P
V
P
 r
e
g
is
te
r 
 

F
ir
e
 a
la
rm

 t
e
s
ts
 a
n
d
 e
v
a
c
u
a
ti
o
n
 t
e
s
ts
  

R
e
g
u
la
r 
u
p
d
a
te
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w
it
h
 H
&
S
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 a
n
d
 A
C
E
  

A
u
d
it
s
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

6
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

4
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

3
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 
0
6
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
3
 

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 m

a
n
s
la
u
g
h
te
r 
 

F
in
e
s
  

N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 p
u
b
li
c
it
y
  

in
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 c
la
im
s
  

d
e
a
th
/i
n
ju
ry
  

V
u
ln
e
r
a
b
il
it
ie
s
/
c
a
u
s
e
s
 

N
o
n
-c
o
m
p
li
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 l
e
g
is
la
ti
o
n
  

la
c
k
 o
f 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 s
a
fe
ty
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
  

s
h
o
rt
 c
u
ts
/ 
p
o
o
r 
w
o
rk
in
g
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
s
  

P
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
s
a
fe
ty
 e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 
n
o
t 
u
s
e
d
  

ri
s
k
s
 n
o
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
d
 o
r 
m
a
n
a
g
e
d
  

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
/t
e
s
ts
 n
o
t 
c
o
m
p
le
te
d
  

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

H
&
S
 a
u
d
it
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
h
ig
h
li
g
h
ti
n
g
 s
o
m
e
 h
ig
h
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 a
re
a
s
. 
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 t
o
 b
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

R
e
g
u
la
r 
u
p
d
a
te
s
 w
it
h
 S
L
/J
H
/A
G
 

re
g
u
la
r 
u
p
d
a
te
s
 b
y
 A
G
 w
it
h
 J
H
 a
n
d
 S
L
  

U
p
d
a
te
s
 t
o
 C
M
T
  

 Page 96



2
1
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

C
P
R
1
2
1
3
_
1
1
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 C
h
a
n
g
e
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

F
a
il
u
re
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 c
h
a
n
g
e
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

N
ic
k
i 
B
u
rt
o
n
; 
A
n
ic
a
 

G
o
o
d
w
in
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

4
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 P
la
n
  

P
o
o
l 
o
f 
tr
a
in
e
d
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
  

S
tr
u
c
tu
re
d
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
  

D
e
d
ic
a
te
d
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
 

S
tr
o
n
g
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
  

S
tr
o
n
g
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
 

d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
d
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
re
a
li
s
a
ti
o
n
  

C
le
a
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

4
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

2
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

1
6
-J
a
n
-2
0
1
2
 

L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 
0
6
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
3
 

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s
 

R
e
tu
rn
 o
n
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
n
o
t 
m
a
d
e
  

R
e
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
  

F
a
il
u
re
 t
o
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
a
g
il
e
 w
o
rk
in
g
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
 

S
a
v
in
g
s
 a
re
 n
o
t 
m
a
d
e
  

B
u
d
g
e
t 
n
o
t 
b
a
la
n
c
e
d
  

V
u
ln
e
r
a
b
il
it
ie
s
/
c
a
u
s
e
s
 

W
e
a
k
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
 

W
e
a
k
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
  

N
o
 e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
  

In
s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 s
k
il
ls
 a
n
d
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
  

F
a
il
u
re
 t
o
 r
e
ta
in
 s
ta
ff
  

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

T
ra
n
s
fo
rm

in
g
 T
a
m
w
o
rt
h
, 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 R
e
v
ie
w
, 
H
e
a
lt
h
 I
m
p
a
c
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
  

 Page 97



2
2
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

C
P
R
1
2
1
3
_
1
2
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 C
h
il
d
re
n
 &
 V
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 A
d
u
lt
s
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

F
a
il
u
re
 t
o
 s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
 c
h
il
d
re
n
 a
n
d
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 a
d
u
lt
s
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

Ja
n
e
 H
a
c
k
e
tt
; 
R
o
b
 

M
it
c
h
e
ll
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

9
 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 p
o
li
c
y
 a
d
o
p
te
d
  

C
le
a
r 
p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 f
o
r 
re
p
o
rt
in
g
 a
n
d
 d
e
a
li
n
g
 w
it
h
 d
is
c
lo
s
u
re
  

A
n
n
u
a
l 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
1
 a
u
d
it
 –
 2
0
1
2
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

A
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 r
is
k
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
il
it
y
 i
n
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
/r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
  

S
e
n
io
r 
le
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 d
e
s
ig
n
a
te
d
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
  

P
o
li
c
y
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 w
it
h
 t
ra
in
in
g
 f
o
r 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 s
ta
ff
  

S
a
fe
 r
e
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 –
 n
e
e
d
s
 u
p
d
a
ti
n
g
 

S
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 o
f 
s
ta
ff
, 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
rs
 a
n
d
 v
o
lu
n
te
e
rs
  

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

6
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

3
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

1
6
-J
a
n
-2
0
1
2
 

L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 
2
6
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
3
 

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s
 

D
e
a
th
, 
s
e
ri
o
u
s
 i
n
ju
ry
  

L
e
g
a
l 
c
h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
 f
o
r 
la
c
k
 o
f 
c
o
m
p
li
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 l
e
g
is
la
ti
o
n
  

L
o
s
s
 o
f 
re
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
  

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
c
o
s
ts
 o
f 
re
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 i
n
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 c
la
im
s
  

P
ro
s
e
c
u
ti
o
n
  

In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
  

V
u
ln
e
r
a
b
il
it
ie
s
/
c
a
u
s
e
s
 

N
o
n
-c
o
m
p
li
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 l
e
g
is
la
ti
o
n
  

L
a
c
k
 o
f 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 p
o
li
c
y
 a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
  

L
o
w
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 a
m
o
n
g
s
t 
s
ta
ff
  

L
a
c
k
 o
f 
jo
in
e
d
 u
p
 c
a
s
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
 

C
a
s
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
y
s
te
m
s
 u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 s
h
a
re
 d
a
ta
 o
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 r
is
k
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
 

p
a
rt
n
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 n
o
t 
d
e
li
v
e
ri
n
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

la
c
k
 o
f 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

la
c
k
 o
f 
re
p
o
rt
in
g
 i
n
c
id
e
n
ts
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
ri
v
ia
l 
 

O
th
e
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
's
 n
o
t 
d
e
li
v
e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 –
 g
a
p
s
 i
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 f
o
r 
a
d
u
lt
s
 i
n
 n
e
e
d
 

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 98



2
3
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

C
P
R
1
2
1
3
_
1
3
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

G
o
lf
 C
o
u
rs
e
 -
 F
u
tu
re
 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

F
a
il
u
re
 t
o
 p
la
n
 f
o
r 
fu
tu
re
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

T
o
n
y
 G
o
o
d
w
in
; 
Jo
h
n
 

W
h
e
a
tl
e
y
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

1
2
 

C
o
n
s
id
e
ri
n
g
 f
u
tu
re
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 l
e
g
a
l 
im
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 -
 f
o
ll
o
w
in
g
 l
iq
u
id
a
ti
o
n
 (
1
) 
 

R
e
g
u
la
r 
u
p
d
a
te
s
 o
n
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
(2
) 
 

R
e
g
u
la
r 
u
p
d
a
te
s
 w
it
h
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
r 
o
n
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
n
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
ts
/i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 

(3
) 
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 (
4
) 
 

G
o
lf
 C
o
u
rs
e
 A
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 &
 P
ro
je
c
t 
G
ro
u
p
 e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
e
d
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

in
s
u
ra
n
c
e
/s
e
c
u
ri
ty
 (
5
) 
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 P
la
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 (
6
) 
 

C
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 (
7
) 
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

9
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

3
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

4
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

3
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 
1
4
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
3
 

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s
 

R
e
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
a
l 
d
a
m
a
g
e
  

A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
c
o
s
ts
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
  

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
  

F
a
il
u
re
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
  

C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
e
x
p
e
c
ta
ti
o
n
s
 n
o
t 
m
e
t 
 

N
o
n
-c
o
m
p
li
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
  

V
u
ln
e
r
a
b
il
it
ie
s
/
c
a
u
s
e
s
 

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
s
ta
b
il
it
y
 o
f 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
r 
- 
li
q
u
id
a
ti
o
n
 i
m
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 (
1
) 
 

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
- 
fo
r 
M
T
F
S
 (
1
, 
7
) 
 

R
e
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
 /
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 p
re
s
s
 (
2
, 
6
) 
 

A
s
s
e
t/
S
it
e
 s
e
c
u
ri
ty
 &
 I
n
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 (
5
) 
 

R
e
m
e
d
ia
l 
w
o
rk
s
 t
o
 c
o
u
rs
e
 /
 b
u
il
d
in
g
s
 (
1
, 
2
, 
3
, 
5
) 
 

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 99



2
4
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

C
P
R
1
2
1
3
_
1
4
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
A
u
s
te
ri
ty
 m

e
a
s
u
re
s
 a
n
d
 n
e
w
 

le
g
is
la
ti
v
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

  
A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

T
o
n
y
  
G
o
o
d
w
in
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

 1
2
 

R
e
g
u
la
r 
u
p
d
a
te
s
  

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
  

D
e
d
ic
a
te
d
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 f
o
r 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 i
n
fo
rm

 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
  

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 o
v
e
r 
C
T
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
  

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
p
ro
fi
li
n
g
  

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

 8
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

 4
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

 4
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

 4
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

 2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 
1
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
3
 

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s
 

U
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 m

a
in
ta
in
 r
e
n
t 
in
c
o
m
e
/i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 r
e
n
t 
in
c
o
m
e
  

S
o
c
ia
l 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 b
e
c
o
m
e
s
 u
n
a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
  

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 o
f 
n
e
w
 h
o
u
s
in
g
  

R
e
a
li
s
ti
c
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 w
a
it
in
g
 l
is
ts
  

S
o
c
ia

l 
u
n
re

s
t 

- 
th

o
s
e
 u

n
a
b
le

 t
o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 s

o
c
ia

l 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
c
la
im
a
n
ts
  

In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 f
ra
u
d
 -
 B
e
n
e
fi
ts
, 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 R
a
te
s
, 
R
T
B
, 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 T
a
x
, 
te
n
a
n
c
y
  

In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 o
v
e
rp
a
y
m
e
n
ts
  

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 g
ro
w
th
  

M
a
x
im
is
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
e
n
ti
tl
e
m
e
n
t 
&
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
  

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 r
u
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 n
o
t 
p
ro
v
id
e
d
, 
in
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ly
 r
u
n
  

P
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 l
e
n
g
th
e
n
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 c
h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
  

C
IL
 -
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
in
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
re
a
s
  

V
u
ln
e
r
a
b
il
it
ie
s
/
c
a
u
s
e
s
 

W
e
lf
a
re
 r
e
fo
rm

 -
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 s
o
c
ia
l 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 -
 f
le
x
ib
il
it
y
 i
n
 r
e
n
t 
s
e
tt
in
g
, 
s
h
o
rt
 t
e
rm

 f
ix
e
d
 t
e
n
a
n
c
ie
s
, 
p
a
y
 t
o
 s
ta
y
, 
 

u
s
e
 o
f 
R
T
B
 r
e
c
e
ip
ts
 f
o
r 
n
e
w
 h
o
u
s
in
g
  

N
e
w
 H
o
m
e
s
 B
o
n
u
s
  

S
o
c
ia
l 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 r
e
fo
rm

  

C
a
p
 t
o
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
le
v
e
ls
, 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 a
ll
o
w
a
n
c
e
s
, 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 n
o
n
 d
e
p
e
n
d
a
n
t 
c
h
a
rg
e
, 
u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 
c
re
d
it
  

C
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 r
a
te
s
  

C
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 T
a
x
  

W
e
lf
a
re
 R
ig
h
ts
 F
a
ir
e
r 
C
h
a
rg
in
g
  

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 r
ig
h
t 
to
 c
h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
  

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 r
ig
h
t 
to
 b
id
  

C
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 s
y
s
te
m
  

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 I
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 L
e
v
y
  

Page 100



2
5
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
H
o
m
e
 S
w
a
p
 S
c
h
e
m
e
  

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 101



2
6
 

  Page 102



 
AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 
 

28TH MARCH 2013 
 

 
 

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICES 
 
 

FRAUD AND CORRUPTION UPDATE REPORT 
 

 
 
EXEMPT INFORMATION 
 
None 
 
 
PURPOSE 
 
To provide Members with an update of Counter Fraud and Corruption work completed to 
date during the financial year 2012/13. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the Committee endorses: 
 
1 The attached updated Counter Fraud Work Plan, and 
2 The Fraud Risk Register 

 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
At its meeting of the 31st May 2012, this Committee endorsed the Counter Fraud and 
Corruption Policy Statement, Strategy and Guidance Notes which included a specific Internal 
Audit Counter Fraud Work Plan.  As part of the strategy, progress against the plan is to be 
reported to this Committee on a regular basis.  The updated work plan showing progress to 
date is shown in Appendix 1. 
 
The Fraud Risk Register is reviewed quarterly and latest version is attached as Appendix 2.  
There are no significant fraud risks to the Authority. 
 
Work has commenced on the data matches identified through the National Fraud Initiative 
(NFI) download completed in October 2012 with the results made available in January 2013.  
 
 
RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
None 
 
 
LEGAL/RISK IMPLICATIONS BACKGROUND 
 
None 
 

Agenda Item 8

Page 103



 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
None 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION   
 
None 
 
 
REPORT AUTHOR 
 
Angela Struthers ex 234 
 
 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None 
 
 
APPENDICES 
 
Appendix 1 Internal Audit Counter Fraud Work Plan 2012/13 
Appendix 2 Fraud Risk Register 
 

Page 104



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

T
A
M
W
O
R
T
H
 B
O
R
O
U
G
H
 C
O
U
N
C
IL
 I
N
T
E
R
N
A
L
 A
U
D
IT
 C
O
U
N
T
E
R
 F
R
A
U
D
 W

O
R
K
 P
L
A
N
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 

 

 
C

R
E

A
T

IN
G

 A
N

 A
N

T
I-

F
R

A
U

D
 C

U
L

T
U

R
E

 

 
O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
 

R
IS
K
 

P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 

T
o
 b
u
ild
 a
n
 a
n
ti
-f
ra
u
d
 c
u
lt
u
re
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
v
a
ri
o
u
s
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 t
o
 p
ro
m
o
te
 c
o
u
n
te
r 
fr
a
u
d
 

a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 b
y
: 

a
) 

R
o
ll 
o
u
t 
o
f 
th
e
 e
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
 o
n
 

g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 (
in
c
lu
d
e
s
 c
o
u
n
te
r 
fr
a
u
d
 &
 

w
h
is
tl
e
b
lo
w
in
g
) 

b
) 

P
ro
v
id
e
 d
ro
p
 i
n
 s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 (
if
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
) 
to
 

s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 

c
) 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 c
o
u
n
te
r 
fr
a
u
d
 

s
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
/p
o
lic
ie
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 i
n
tr
a
n
e
t/
w
e
b
s
it
e
 

 

1
. 
 F
a
ilu
re
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 s
ta
ff
, 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
lic
 a
w
a
re
 

th
a
t 
th
e
ir
 s
u
s
p
ic
io
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 t
re
a
te
d
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ti
a
lly
, 

o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
ly
 a
n
d
 p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
lly
. 

 

   R
o
ll 
o
u
t 
d
e
la
y
e
d
 t
o
 

J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
4
 

 A
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

 C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 –
 n
e
w
 

v
e
rs
io
n
s
 o
n
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 

a
n
d
 i
n
tr
a
n
e
t 

 

R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
 (
D
A
Y
S
) 

5
 

Page 105



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

 

 
D

E
T

E
R

R
IN

G
 F

R
A

U
D

 
 

O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
 

R
IS
K
 

P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 m
o
s
t 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 w
a
y
s
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
n
g
 w
it
h
 s
ta
ff
 a
re
 

u
ti
lis
e
d
. 

  

A
 l
a
c
k
 o
f 
ro
b
u
s
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 d
e
te
rr
in
g
 f
ra
u
d
 c
a
n
 

u
n
d
e
rm

in
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 b
u
ild
 a
n
 a
n
ti
-f
ra
u
d
 c
u
lt
u
re
 

 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 (
D
a
y
s
) 

 

Page 106



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

 

 
P

R
E

V
E

N
T

IN
G

 F
R

A
U

D
 

 
O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
 

R
IS
K
 

P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 c
o
u
n
te
r 
fr
a
u
d
 p
o
lic
y
 

s
ta
te
m
e
n
t,
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 n
o
te
s
 a
n
d
 

u
p
d
a
te
 a
n
d
 a
m
e
n
d
 a
s
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

 

O
u
t 
o
f 
d
a
te
 p
o
lic
ie
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 w
h
ic
h
 d
o
 n
o
t 
c
o
v
e
r 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
  

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 u
p
d
a
te
 a
n
d
 

a
m
e
n
d
 a
s
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

 

O
u
t 
o
f 
d
a
te
 p
o
lic
ie
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 w
h
ic
h
 d
o
 n
o
t 
c
o
v
e
r 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 –
 

a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 2
5
/1
0
/1
2
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 u
p
d
a
te
 t
h
e
 f
ra
u
d
 r
is
k
 r
e
g
is
te
r 
in
 l
in
e
 

w
it
h
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
s
y
s
te
m
 w
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 a
u
d
it
s
 o
r 
in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 n
o
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 (
D
a
y
s
) 

1
2
 

Page 107



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

 

 
D

E
T

E
C

T
IN

G
 F

R
A

U
D

 

 
O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
 

R
IS
K
 

P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 

U
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 e
n
q
u
ir
ie
s
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
th
e
 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
’s
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
F
ra
u
d
 I
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
 

 

If
 n
o
t 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
, 
th
e
re
 i
s
 a
 r
is
k
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 a
b
u
s
e
 a
 

s
y
s
te
m
 w
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
 m
a
y
 b
e
 h
e
ig
h
te
n
e
d
 a
s
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
 o
f 
b
e
in
g
 

c
a
u
g
h
t 
m
a
y
b
e
 d
e
e
m
e
d
 n
e
g
lig
ib
le
 b
y
 t
h
e
 p
e
rp
e
tr
a
to
r.
 

 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

U
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
ro
a
c
ti
v
e
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
s
 a
t 
th
e
 

A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 a
s
 a
g
re
e
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

 

If
 n
o
t 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
, 
th
e
re
 i
s
 a
 r
is
k
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 a
b
u
s
e
 a
 

s
y
s
te
m
 w
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
 m
a
y
 b
e
 h
e
ig
h
te
n
e
d
 a
s
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
 o
f 
b
e
in
g
 

c
a
u
g
h
t 
m
a
y
b
e
 d
e
e
m
e
d
 n
e
g
lig
ib
le
 b
y
 t
h
e
 p
e
rp
e
tr
a
to
r.
 

 

N
o
t 
y
e
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 (
D
a
y
s
) 

1
2
 

Page 108



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

 

 
IN

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IO

N
S

 

 
O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
 

R
IS
K
 

P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 

A
ll 
re
fe
rr
a
ls
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
d
 i
n
 a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
te
r 
F
ra
u
d
 a
n
d
 C
o
rr
u
p
ti
o
n
 P
o
lic
y
 

S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
. 

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 o
f 
n
o
t 
in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
n
g
 i
s
 t
h
a
t 
fr
a
u
d
 g
o
e
s
 

u
n
p
u
n
is
h
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 r
e
s
u
lt
in
g
 d
e
te
rr
e
n
t 
e
ff
e
c
t 
th
u
s
 

in
c
re
a
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
re
v
a
le
n
c
e
 o
f 
fr
a
u
d
 f
u
rt
h
e
r.
 

 T
h
e
 s
ta
ff
 (
o
r 
o
th
e
rs
) 
m
a
k
in
g
 t
h
e
 a
lle
g
a
ti
o
n
 f
e
e
l 
th
e
y
 a
re
 

n
o
t 
ta
k
e
n
 s
e
ri
o
u
s
ly
 a
n
d
 r
e
fe
rr
a
ls
 c
e
a
s
e
 t
o
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
. 
  

 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 (
D
a
y
s
) 

2
0
 

Page 109



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

 

 
S

A
N

C
T

IO
N

S
 

 
O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
 

R
IS
K
 

P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 

E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 s
a
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 a
p
p
lie
d
 

c
o
rr
e
c
tl
y
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
tl
y
. 

  

If
 s
a
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 n
o
t 
im
p
o
s
e
d
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 d
e
te
rr
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
fr
a
u
d
. 

 
A
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 (
D
a
y
s
) 

 

Page 110



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

 

 
R

E
D

R
E

S
S

 

 
O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
 

R
IS
K
 

P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 

M
a
in
ta
in
 c
o
m
p
re
h
e
n
s
iv
e
 r
e
c
o
rd
s
 o
f 
ti
m
e
 s
p
e
n
t 
o
n
 

e
a
c
h
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 c
a
n
 b
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 

a
n
y
 c
o
m
p
e
n
s
a
ti
o
n
 c
la
im
. 

  Id
e
n
ti
fy
 a
n
d
 m
a
in
ta
in
 a
 r
e
c
o
rd
 o
f 
th
e
 a
c
tu
a
l 

p
ro
v
e
n
 a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
lo
s
s
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

re
c
o
v
e
ry
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 c
a
n
 b
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
e
d
. 
  

  

F
ra
u
d
s
te
rs
 m
a
y
 n
o
t 
re
a
lis
e
 t
h
a
t 
a
n
y
 a
n
d
 a
ll 
m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 w
ill
 

b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
v
e
r 
a
n
y
 m

o
n
e
y
 l
o
s
t 
to
 f
ra
u
d
. 

 

A
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 (
D
a
y
s
) 

 

Page 111



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

 

 
M

A
N

D
A

T
O

R
Y

 C
O

U
N

T
E

R
 F

R
A

U
D

 A
R

R
A

N
G

E
M

E
N

T
S

 (
S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 W

O
R

K
) 

 
O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
 

R
IS
K
 

P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 

A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a
t 
re
le
v
a
n
t 
fr
a
u
d
 f
o
ru
m
s
/m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 a
n
d
 s
k
ill
s
 a
re
 

m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
. 

 C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
w
o
rk
 p
la
n
. 

 R
e
g
u
la
r 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
. 

 Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
 o
f 
c
o
u
n
te
r 
fr
a
u
d
 w
o
rk
. 

 A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a
t 
re
le
v
a
n
t 
tr
a
in
in
g
 a
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
. 

  

F
a
ilu
re
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
m
a
n
d
a
to
ry
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

w
o
rk
 m

a
y
 m

e
a
n
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 a
n
d
 s
k
ill
s
 

a
re
 n
o
t 
m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
 t
o
 a
 h
ig
h
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
. 

 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

   O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

 C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

  C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

 O
n
-g
o
in
g
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 (
D
a
y
s
) 

5
 

 
T
O
T
A
L
 R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
 (
D
a
y
s
) 

 
5
4
 
 

   

Page 112



1
 

A
p
p
en

d
ix

 2
 

f
r
a
u

d
 r

is
k
s

 
 G

e
n

e
r
a
t
e
d

 o
n

:
 1

3
 M

a
r
c
h
 2

0
1
3
 

 

 
 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

R
R
 R
D
IA
F
C
0
0
1
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

B
e
n
e
fi
ts
 f
ra
u
d
 -
 c
la
im

a
n
t 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

C
la
im

a
n
t 
fr
a
u
d
u
le
n
tl
y
 c
la
im

s
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

1
2
 

tr
a
in
e
d
 s
ta
ff
  

m
e
d
ia
 c
o
v
e
ra
g
e
 -
 f
o
rm

s
, 
T
V
 r
a
d
io
  

d
a
ta
 m

a
tc
h
in
g
  

in
te
rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
  

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ry
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
  

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

8
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

4
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

4
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 

2
0
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
3
 

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 113



2
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

R
R
 R
D
IA
F
C
0
0
2
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

B
e
n
e
fi
ts
 f
ra
u
d
 -
 t
h
ir
d
 p
a
rt
y
 e
g
 l
a
n
d
lo
rd
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

fr
a
u
d
u
le
n
t 
c
la
im

 b
y
 t
h
ir
d
 p
a
rt
y
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

4
 

tr
a
in
e
d
 s
ta
ff
  

m
e
d
ia
 c
o
v
e
ra
g
e
 -
 f
o
rm

s
, 
T
V
 r
a
d
io
  

D
a
ta
 m

a
tc
h
in
g
  

In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
  

S
u
p
e
rv
is
o
ry
 c
h
e
c
k
s
  

D
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ry
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
  

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

4
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

2
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 

2
0
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
3
 

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 114



3
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

R
R
 R
D
IA
F
C
0
0
3
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

B
e
n
e
fi
ts
 f
ra
u
d
 -
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

F
ra
u
d
u
le
n
t 
c
la
im

 b
y
 m

e
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
ta
ff
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

9
 

re
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
c
h
e
c
k
s
  

d
a
ta
 m

a
tc
h
in
g
  

s
u
p
e
rv
is
o
ry
 c
h
e
c
k
s
  

s
y
s
te
m
 c
o
n
tr
o
ls
  

a
u
d
it
 t
ra
il
s
  

in
te
rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
  

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

6
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

3
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 

2
0
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
3
 

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 115



4
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

R
R
 R
D
IA
F
C
0
0
4
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

C
a
s
h
 t
h
e
ft
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

th
e
ft
 o
f 
ta
k
in
g
s
 d
is
g
u
is
e
d
 b
y
 m

a
n
ip
u
la
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

4
 

re
c
o
n
c
il
ia
ti
o
n
s
  

s
u
p
e
rv
is
o
ry
 c
h
e
c
k
s
  

p
o
li
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
  

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
  

s
e
g
re
g
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
d
u
ti
e
s
  

b
u
d
g
e
ta
ry
 c
o
n
tr
o
ls
  

in
te
rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
  

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ti
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
in
g
 p
o
li
c
y
  

fr
a
u
d
 &
 c
o
rr
u
p
ti
o
n
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
  

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

2
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

1
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 

2
0
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
3
 

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 116



5
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

R
R
 R
D
IA
F
C
0
0
5
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

C
a
s
h
 t
h
e
ft
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

th
e
ft
 o
f 
c
a
s
h
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
d
is
g
u
is
e
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

4
 

re
c
o
n
c
il
ia
ti
o
n
s
  

s
u
p
e
rv
is
o
ry
 c
h
e
c
k
s
  

p
o
li
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
  

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
  

s
e
g
re
g
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
d
u
ti
e
s
  

b
u
d
g
e
ta
ry
 c
o
n
tr
o
ls
  

in
te
rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
  

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ti
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
in
g
 p
o
li
c
y
  

fr
a
u
d
 &
 c
o
rr
u
p
ti
o
n
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
  

p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
c
o
n
tr
o
ls
  

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

1
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

2
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

1
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

1
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 

2
0
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
3
 

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 117



6
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

R
R
 R
D
IA
F
C
0
0
6
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

C
re
d
it
 I
n
c
o
m
e
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

s
u
p
p
re
s
s
io
n
 o
f 
a
n
y
 n
o
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
d
e
b
t 
to
 b
e
 r
a
is
e
d
  

im
p
ro
p
e
r 
w
ri
te
-o
ff
  

fa
il
in
g
 t
o
 i
n
s
ti
tu
te
 r
e
c
o
v
e
ry
 p
ro
c
e
e
d
in
g
s
  

s
w
it
c
h
in
g
/t
ra
n
s
fe
rr
in
g
 a
rr
e
a
rs
 o
r 
m
a
n
ip
u
la
ti
o
n
 o
f 
c
re
d
it
 b
a
la
n
c
e
s
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

4
 

re
c
o
n
c
il
ia
ti
o
n
s
  

b
u
d
g
e
ta
ry
 c
o
n
tr
o
ls
  

in
te
rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
  

w
ri
te
 o
ff
 p
o
li
c
y
  

a
u
th
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 l
e
v
e
ls
  

a
u
d
it
 t
ra
il
  

d
e
b
t 
re
c
o
v
e
ry
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
  

s
u
p
e
rv
is
o
ry
 c
o
n
tr
o
ls
  

re
v
ie
w
 o
f 
c
re
d
it
 b
a
la
n
c
e
s
 a
n
d
 s
u
s
p
e
n
s
e
 i
te
m
s
  

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

2
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

1
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 

2
0
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
3
 

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 118



7
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

R
R
 R
D
IA
F
C
0
0
7
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

C
re
d
it
o
r 
p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

in
v
o
ic
in
g
 f
o
r 
g
o
o
d
s
/s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 n
o
t 
s
u
p
p
li
e
d
/f
a
ls
e
 i
n
v
o
ic
e
s
  

s
u
p
p
ly
in
g
 i
n
fe
ri
o
r 
g
o
o
d
s
/s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 i
n
v
o
ic
e
d
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

6
 

a
u
th
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
  

re
c
o
n
c
il
ia
ti
o
n
s
  

a
u
d
it
 t
ra
il
  

s
e
g
re
g
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
d
u
ti
e
s
  

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
  

in
v
e
n
to
ri
e
s
  

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

1
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 

2
0
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
3
 

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 119



8
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

R
R
 R
D
IA
F
C
0
0
8
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

T
re
a
s
u
ry
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

fa
ls
if
y
in
g
 r
e
c
o
rd
s
 t
o
 g
a
in
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 l
o
a
n
 o
r 
in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
m
o
n
ie
s
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

1
2
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr
o
ls
  

s
e
g
re
g
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
d
u
ti
e
s
  

in
te
rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
  

a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 s
ig
n
a
to
ri
e
s
  

b
u
d
g
e
ta
ry
 c
o
n
tr
o
ls
  

p
re
fe
rr
e
d
/a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 b
o
rr
o
w
e
rs
  

a
u
d
it
 t
ra
il
  

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
te
d
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
  

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

6
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

4
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

3
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 

2
0
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
3
 

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 120



9
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

R
R
 R
D
IA
F
C
0
0
9
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
/p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

im
p
ro
p
e
r 
a
w
a
rd
 o
f 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

1
2
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
  

s
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
rd
e
rs
  

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
s
p
e
c
ia
li
s
t 
 

O
JE
U
 r
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
  

a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 s
ig
n
a
to
ri
e
s
  

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr
o
ls
  

s
e
g
re
g
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
d
u
ti
e
s
  

te
n
d
e
ri
n
g
 s
y
s
te
m
  

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

6
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

4
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

3
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 

2
0
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
3
 

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 121



1
0
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

R
R
 R
D
IA
F
C
0
1
0
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
/p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
n
o
t 
d
e
li
v
e
re
d
 p
ro
p
e
rl
y
  

c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
r 
o
v
e
rp
a
id
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

1
2
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
  

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
  

le
g
a
l 
a
d
v
ic
e
  

in
te
rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
  

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

6
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

4
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

3
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 

2
0
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
3
 

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 122



1
1
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

R
R
 R
D
IA
F
C
0
1
1
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
/p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

c
o
ll
u
s
io
n
 w
it
h
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
rs
 a
n
d
/o
r 
a
c
c
e
p
ta
n
c
e
 o
f 
b
ri
b
e
s
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

1
2
 

a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 s
ig
n
a
to
ri
e
s
  

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr
o
ls
  

s
e
g
re
g
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
d
u
ti
e
s
  

re
g
is
te
r 
o
f 
in
te
re
s
ts
  

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ti
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
in
g
 p
o
li
c
y
  

g
if
ts
 a
n
d
 h
o
s
p
it
a
li
ty
 p
o
li
c
y
  

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

6
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

4
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

3
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 

2
0
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
3
 

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 123



1
2
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

R
R
 R
D
IA
F
C
0
1
2
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
/p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
ts
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

c
o
ll
u
s
io
n
 b
y
 t
e
n
d
e
re
rs
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

1
6
 

b
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
  

te
n
d
e
ri
n
g
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
  

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

8
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

4
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

4
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

4
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 

2
0
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
3
 

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 124



1
3
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

R
R
 R
D
IA
F
C
0
1
3
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

P
a
y
ro
ll
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

p
a
y
m
e
n
t 
to
 n
o
n
 e
x
is
te
n
t 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

2
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
c
h
e
c
k
s
  

e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
m
e
n
t 
li
s
t 
 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
  

s
e
g
re
g
a
ti
o
n
 f
 d
u
ti
e
s
  

d
a
ta
 m

a
tc
h
in
g
  

a
u
th
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
  

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

3
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

2
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

3
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

1
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

1
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 

2
0
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
3
 

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 125



1
4
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

R
R
 R
D
IA
F
C
0
1
4
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

P
a
y
ro
ll
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

o
v
e
r 
c
la
im

in
g
 h
o
u
rs
 w
o
rk
e
d
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

6
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
c
h
e
c
k
s
  

b
u
d
g
e
t 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
  

a
u
th
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
  

ti
m
e
 r
e
c
o
rd
s
  

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

2
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

1
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 

2
0
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
3
 

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 126



1
5
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

R
R
 R
D
IA
F
C
0
1
5
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

P
a
y
ro
ll
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

m
a
n
ip
u
la
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
ta
n
d
in
g
 d
a
ta
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

6
 

s
y
s
te
m
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 c
o
n
tr
o
ls
  

s
y
s
te
m
 a
d
m
in
is
tr
a
to
r 
 

s
e
g
re
g
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
d
u
ti
e
s
  

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr
o
ls
  

in
te
rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
  

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

1
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 

2
0
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
3
 

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 127



1
6
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

R
R
 R
D
IA
F
C
0
1
6
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

A
s
s
e
ts
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

T
h
e
ft
 o
f 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
a
s
s
e
ts
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

6
 

s
to
c
k
 c
h
e
c
k
s
  

re
s
tr
ic
te
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
  

s
e
g
re
g
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
d
u
ti
e
s
  

in
v
e
n
to
ri
e
s
  

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

4
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

2
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 

2
0
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
3
 

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 128



1
7
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

R
R
 R
D
IA
F
C
0
1
7
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

A
s
s
e
ts
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

T
h
e
ft
 o
f 
fi
x
e
d
 a
s
s
e
ts
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

9
 

re
s
tr
ic
te
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
  

a
s
s
e
t 
ta
g
g
in
g
  

in
v
e
n
to
ri
e
s
  

s
ta
ff
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
  

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

4
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 

2
0
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
3
 

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 129



1
8
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

R
R
 R
D
IA
F
C
0
1
8
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

A
s
s
e
ts
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

T
h
e
ft
 o
f 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
/i
n
te
ll
e
c
tu
a
l 
p
ro
p
e
rt
y
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

1
2
 

e
n
c
ry
p
ti
o
n
  

s
ta
ff
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
  

p
a
s
s
w
o
rd
s
  

a
c
c
e
s
s
 c
o
n
tr
o
ls
  

re
s
tr
ic
te
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 b
u
il
d
in
g
  

s
e
c
u
ri
ty
 p
o
li
c
y
  

IS
O
2
7
0
0
1
  

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

8
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

4
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

4
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 

2
0
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
3
 

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 130



1
9
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

R
R
 R
D
IA
F
C
0
1
9
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

A
s
s
e
ts
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

In
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 u
s
e
 f
o
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 a
s
s
e
ts
 f
o
r 
p
ri
v
a
te
 u
s
e
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

8
 

re
g
is
te
r 
o
f 
in
te
re
s
ts
  

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
  

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr
o
ls
  

in
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
  

s
e
c
u
ri
ty
 p
o
li
c
y
  

u
s
e
r 
re
p
o
rt
s
 e
g
 i
n
te
rn
e
t,
 t
e
le
p
h
o
n
e
  

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

6
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

2
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

4
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

3
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 

2
0
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
3
 

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 131



2
0
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

R
R
 R
D
IA
F
C
0
2
0
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

P
e
tt
y
 c
a
s
h
/i
m
p
re
s
t 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

T
h
e
ft
 o
f 
ta
k
in
g
s
 d
is
g
u
is
e
d
 b
y
 m

a
n
ip
u
la
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

2
 

s
e
g
re
g
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
d
u
ti
e
s
  

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
c
h
e
c
k
s
  

re
c
o
n
c
il
ia
ti
o
n
s
  

a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 s
ig
n
a
to
ri
e
s
  

im
p
re
s
t 
v
a
lu
e
s
 k
e
p
t 
to
 a
 m

in
im

u
m
  

a
n
n
u
a
l 
c
e
rt
if
ic
a
te
  

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

1
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

1
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 

2
0
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
3
 

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 132



2
1
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

R
R
 R
D
IA
F
C
0
2
1
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

S
h
e
lt
e
re
d
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

T
h
e
ft
 o
f 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
m
o
n
ie
s
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

4
 

s
e
g
re
g
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
d
u
ti
e
s
  

re
c
o
n
c
il
ia
ti
o
n
s
  

re
s
tr
ic
te
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
  

C
R
B
 c
h
e
c
k
s
  

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

2
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

1
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 

2
0
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
3
 

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 133



2
2
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

R
R
 R
D
IA
F
C
0
2
2
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

E
x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 c
la
im

s
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

c
la
im

in
g
 e
x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 f
o
r 
jo
u
rn
e
y
s
 n
o
t 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
  

c
la
im

in
g
 f
o
r 
m
o
re
 m

il
e
s
 t
h
a
n
 a
c
tu
a
ll
y
 t
ra
v
e
ll
e
d
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

6
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
c
h
e
c
k
s
  

a
u
th
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
  

in
te
rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
  

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

4
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

2
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 

2
0
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
3
 

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 134



2
3
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

R
R
 R
D
IA
F
C
0
2
3
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

C
o
rr
u
p
ti
o
n
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 -
 t
e
n
d
e
ri
n
g
, 
a
w
a
rd
in
g
 a
n
d
 p
a
y
m
e
n
t 
 

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

1
2
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
c
h
e
c
k
s
  

re
g
is
te
r 
o
f 
in
te
re
s
ts
  

c
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
  

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
u
n
it
  

le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
  

te
n
d
e
ri
n
g
 s
y
s
te
m
  

s
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
rd
e
rs
/f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
  

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

6
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

4
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

3
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 

2
0
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
3
 

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 135



2
4
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

R
R
 R
D
IA
F
C
0
2
4
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

C
o
rr
u
p
ti
o
n
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

d
is
p
o
s
a
l 
o
f 
a
s
s
e
ts
 -
 l
a
n
d
 a
n
d
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

6
 

c
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
  

a
s
s
e
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
  

a
s
s
e
t 
d
is
p
o
s
a
l 
p
o
li
c
y
  

a
s
s
e
t 
re
g
is
te
r 
 

s
e
g
re
g
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
d
u
ti
e
s
  

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

3
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

3
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

1
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 

2
0
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
3
 

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 136



2
5
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

R
R
 R
D
IA
F
C
0
2
5
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

C
o
rr
u
p
ti
o
n
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

A
w
a
rd
 o
f 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 c
o
n
s
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 l
ic
e
n
c
e
s
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

9
 

p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
  

s
e
g
re
g
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
d
u
ti
e
s
  

d
e
le
g
a
te
d
 p
o
w
e
rs
  

c
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
  

le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
  

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

3
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

3
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

1
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 

2
0
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
3
 

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 137



2
6
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

R
R
 R
D
IA
F
C
0
2
6
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

C
o
rr
u
p
ti
o
n
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

A
c
c
e
p
ta
n
c
e
 o
f 
g
if
ts
, 
h
o
s
p
it
a
li
ty
, 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
 

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

6
 

g
if
ts
 a
n
d
 h
o
s
p
it
a
li
ty
 p
o
li
c
y
  

g
if
ts
 a
n
d
 h
o
s
p
it
a
li
ty
 r
e
g
is
te
r 
 

N
F
I 
 

c
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
  

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
o
f 
e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

4
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

2
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 

2
0
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
3
 

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 138



2
7
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

R
R
 R
D
IA
F
C
0
2
7
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

C
a
r 
p
a
rk
in
g
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

th
e
ft
 o
f 
ta
k
in
g
s
 d
is
g
u
is
e
d
 b
y
 m

a
n
ip
u
la
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
  

th
e
ft
 o
f 
ta
k
in
g
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
d
is
g
u
is
e
  

re
c
y
c
li
n
g
 o
f 
ti
c
k
e
ts
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

9
 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
  

a
u
d
it
 t
ra
il
  

re
c
o
n
c
il
ia
ti
o
n
s
  

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

6
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

3
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 

2
0
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
3
 

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 139



2
8
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

R
R
 R
D
IA
F
C
0
2
8
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

M
o
n
e
y
 l
a
u
n
d
e
ri
n
g
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

U
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il
 t
o
 h
id
e
 i
m
p
ro
p
e
r 
tr
a
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

8
 

ra
is
e
d
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
  

m
o
n
e
y
 l
a
u
n
d
e
ri
n
g
 p
o
li
c
y
  

tr
a
in
in
g
 o
f 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
  

u
p
p
e
r 
li
m
it
 f
o
r 
c
a
s
h
 t
ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
  

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

4
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

4
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 

2
0
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
3
 

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 140



2
9
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

R
R
 R
D
IA
F
C
0
2
9
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

IC
T
 f
ra
u
d
 &
 a
b
u
s
e
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

Im
p
ro
p
e
r 
u
s
e
 o
f 
c
o
u
n
c
il
 I
C
T
 e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 
 

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

1
2
 

in
te
rn
e
t 
u
s
e
 p
o
li
c
y
  

s
u
rf
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 c
o
n
tr
o
ls
  

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
re
p
o
rt
s
 o
n
 i
n
te
rn
e
t 
u
s
a
g
e
  

s
o
ft
w
a
re
 a
u
d
it
 f
a
c
il
it
y
  

IS
O
2
7
0
0
1
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
  

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

9
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

4
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

3
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

3
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 

2
0
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
3
 

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 141



3
0
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

R
R
 R
D
IA
F
C
0
3
0
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

E
m
p
lo
y
e
e
 -
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

A
b
u
s
e
 o
f 
fl
e
x
i 
s
y
s
te
m
  

fa
ls
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
c
a
r 
lo
a
n
s
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

6
 

fl
e
x
ib
le
 w
o
rk
in
g
 p
o
li
c
y
  

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
c
h
e
c
k
s
  

ti
m
e
 r
e
c
o
rd
in
g
 s
y
s
te
m
s
  

fl
e
x
i 
re
c
o
rd
s
  

c
a
r 
in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
  

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
s
  

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

4
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

2
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 

2
0
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
3
 

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 142



3
1
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

R
R
 R
D
IA
F
C
0
3
1
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

P
a
y
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
g
ra
n
ts
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
li
c
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

c
la
im

in
g
 f
o
r 
p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 n
o
t 
o
w
n
e
d
  

c
la
im

a
n
ts
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
ti
n
g
 i
n
c
o
m
e
  

o
v
e
r 
c
la
im

in
g
 t
h
e
 v
a
lu
e
 o
f 
th
e
 w
o
rk
 d
o
n
e
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

1
2
 

g
ra
n
t 
c
ri
te
ri
a
  

g
ra
n
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
  

la
n
d
 r
e
g
is
tr
y
 c
h
e
c
k
s
  

q
u
o
te
s
 f
o
r 
w
o
rk
  

s
e
g
re
g
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
d
u
ti
e
s
  

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
  

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
c
h
e
c
k
s
  

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

6
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

4
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

3
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 

2
0
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
3
 

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 143



3
2
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

R
R
 R
D
IA
F
C
0
3
2
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

In
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 c
la
im

s
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

C
la
im

in
g
 f
o
r 
n
o
n
 e
x
is
te
n
t 
in
ju
ri
e
s
  

C
la
im

in
g
 a
t 
a
n
o
th
e
r 
e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 s
a
m
e
 i
n
ju
ry
  

o
v
e
rc
la
im

in
g
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

9
 

In
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 b
ro
k
e
rs
  

c
la
im

 f
o
rm

s
  

N
F
I 
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

4
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 

2
0
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
3
 

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 144



3
3
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

R
R
 R
D
IA
F
C
0
3
3
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

L
o
a
n
s
 &
 I
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
ts
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

M
is
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
fu
n
d
s
  

F
ra
u
d
u
le
n
t 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t 
o
r 
in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
o
f 
fu
n
d
s
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

1
2
 

W
ri
tt
e
n
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
  

s
e
g
re
g
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
d
u
ti
e
s
  

a
u
th
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
  

c
o
u
n
te
rp
a
rt
y
 l
is
ti
n
g
  

re
c
o
n
c
il
ia
ti
o
n
s
  

tr
e
a
s
u
ry
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
o
li
c
y
  

tr
e
a
s
u
ry
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
  

a
c
c
e
s
s
 c
o
n
tr
o
ls
  

in
te
rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
  

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

4
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

4
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 

2
0
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
3
 

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 145



3
4
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

R
R
 R
D
IA
F
C
0
3
4
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 T
a
x
 &
 N
N
D
R
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

F
ic
ti
ti
o
u
s
 r
e
fu
n
d
s
  

d
u
p
li
c
a
te
 b
a
n
k
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
  

in
te
rc
e
p
ti
n
g
 i
n
c
o
m
e
  

s
u
p
p
re
s
s
in
g
 a
rr
e
a
rs
  

e
x
e
m
p
ti
o
n
s
/d
is
c
o
u
n
ts
 a
w
a
rd
e
d
 i
n
c
o
rr
e
c
tl
y
  

e
x
e
m
p
ti
o
n
s
/d
is
c
o
u
n
ts
 c
la
im

e
d
 f
ra
u
d
u
le
n
tl
y
  

3
rd
 p
a
rt
y
 c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 s
to
le
n
/m

is
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
d
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

9
 

s
e
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
d
u
ti
e
s
  

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t/
s
u
p
e
rv
is
o
ry
 c
h
e
c
k
s
  

a
c
c
e
s
s
 c
o
n
tr
o
ls
  

a
u
th
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
  

re
c
o
n
c
il
ia
ti
o
n
s
  

re
v
ie
w
 o
f 
s
u
p
p
re
s
s
e
d
 r
e
c
o
v
e
ry
 a
c
ti
o
n
  

in
te
rr
o
g
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
  

v
o
id
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
  

d
is
c
o
u
n
t/
e
x
e
m
p
ti
o
n
 r
e
v
ie
w
s
  

N
F
I 
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

6
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

3
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 

2
0
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
3
 

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 146



3
5
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

R
R
 R
D
IA
F
C
0
3
5
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
c
o
rr
u
p
ti
o
n
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
e
r 
a
w
a
rd
e
d
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 f
o
r 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
in
c
e
n
ti
v
e
  

In
d
u
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
th
e
 g
ra
n
ti
n
g
 o
f 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 c
o
n
s
e
n
ts
  

C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
g
ra
n
te
d
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
r 
a
t 
a
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 p
ri
c
e
 i
n
 e
x
c
h
a
n
g
e
 f
o
r 
c
a
s
h
 p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 a
n
d
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
  

B
a
c
k
h
a
n
d
e
rs
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 r
e
s
tr
a
in
ts
 o
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
r 
 

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

1
2
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
a
s
e
s
  

p
ro
je
c
t 
te
a
m
s
  

d
e
c
la
ra
ti
o
n
 i
n
te
re
s
ts
  

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 p
re
s
e
n
t 
 

m
in
u
te
s
 o
f 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
  

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

6
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

4
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

3
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 

2
0
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
3
 

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 147



3
6
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

R
R
 R
D
IA
F
C
0
3
6
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 a
ll
o
c
a
te
d
 f
o
r 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
re
w
a
rd
  

fr
a
u
d
u
le
n
t 
a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
p
ro
p
e
rt
y
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

9
 

s
e
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
d
u
ti
e
s
  

h
o
u
s
in
g
 r
e
g
is
te
r 
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
c
h
e
c
k
s
  

d
e
c
la
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
in
te
re
s
ts
  

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

4
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 

2
0
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
3
 

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 148



3
7
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

R
R
 R
D
IA
F
C
0
3
7
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

E
le
c
ti
o
n
s
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

F
ra
u
d
u
le
n
t 
v
o
ti
n
g
  

F
ra
u
d
u
le
n
t 
a
c
ts
 b
y
 c
a
n
v
a
s
s
e
rs
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

1
2
 

s
u
p
e
rv
is
o
ry
 r
o
le
s
 a
t 
c
o
u
n
ts
  

p
o
s
ta
l 
v
o
te
s
 c
o
u
n
ts
 s
u
p
e
rv
is
e
d
  

a
c
c
e
s
s
 c
o
n
tr
o
ls
  

b
a
ll
o
t 
b
o
x
 c
o
n
tr
o
ls
  

b
a
ll
o
t 
p
a
p
e
r 
a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
 

in
s
u
ra
n
c
e
  

p
re
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
c
h
e
c
k
s
  

s
u
p
e
rv
is
o
ry
 c
h
e
c
k
s
  

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

6
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

4
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

3
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 

2
0
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
3
 

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 149



3
8
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

R
R
 R
D
IA
F
C
0
3
8
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
s
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

th
e
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
s
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
 m

a
y
 b
e
 m

a
te
ri
a
ll
y
 m

is
-s
ta
te
d
 d
u
e
 t
o
 f
ra
u
d
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

6
 

In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
  

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
  

s
e
g
re
g
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
d
u
ti
e
s
  

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

4
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

1
8
-J
u
n
-2
0
1
0
 

L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 

2
0
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
3
 

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 150



3
9
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

R
R
 R
D
IA
F
C
0
3
9
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

C
re
d
it
o
r 
p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

F
ra
u
d
u
le
n
t 
re
q
u
e
s
ts
 f
o
r 
c
re
d
it
o
r 
p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 b
e
 p
a
id
 t
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
b
a
n
k
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

9
 

R
ig
o
ro
u
s
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 c
h
e
c
k
 a
u
th
e
n
ti
c
it
y
 o
f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 c
re
d
it
o
r 
d
e
ta
il
s
  

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

4
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

3
0
-N
o
v
-2
0
1
1
 

L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 

2
0
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
3
 

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 151



4
0
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

R
R
 R
D
IA
F
C
0
4
0
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

E
x
te
rn
a
l 
fu
n
d
in
g
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

F
ra
u
d
u
le
n
tl
y
 u
s
in
g
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
fu
n
d
in
g
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

1
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
  

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
c
h
e
c
k
s
  

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
  

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
v
e
ri
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
  

In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
  

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

1
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

1
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

1
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

1
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

1
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

1
2
-N
o
v
-2
0
1
2
 

L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 

2
0
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
3
 

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 152



4
1
 

 R
is
k
 C
o
d
e
 

R
R
 R
D
IA
F
C
0
4
1
 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 

N
e
w
 s
ta
rt
e
r 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
is
k
 

F
ra
u
d
u
le
n
t 
jo
b
 a
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
  

A
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 T
o
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

R
is
k
 T
r
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 M
a
tr
ix
 

 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

9
 

E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
b
ta
in
e
d
 o
f 
q
u
a
li
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
s
  

R
e
fe
re
n
c
e
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 u
p
 f
ro
m
 p
a
s
t 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
rs
  

R
e
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
P
o
li
c
y
 a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
  

Id
e
n
ti
ty
 c
h
e
c
k
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
  

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
r
e
 

4
 

G
r
o
s
s
 S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
S
e
v
e
r
it
y
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

3
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 

2
 

G
r
o
s
s
 R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 

  
L
a
s
t 
R
is
k
 R
e
v
ie
w
 D
a
te
 

2
0
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
3
 

R
is
k
 N
o
te
s
 

 

 Page 153



4
2
 

  Page 154



AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

29TH MARCH 2013 
 

Report of the Head of Internal Audit Services 
 
 
INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER AND PLAN 2013-2014 
 
EXEMPT INFORMATION 
 
None 
 
PURPOSE 
 
To advise Members of the proposed Internal Audit Charter and Plan for 2013-
2014, to provide Members with assurance on the appropriate operation of 
Internal Audit.   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Committee endorses the attached Internal Audit Charter and 
Plan 2013-2014 and raises any issues it deems appropriate.   
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
Internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting 
activity designed to add value and improve an organisation’s operations.  It 
helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, 
disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk 
management, control and governance processes. (IIA – UK & Ireland) 
 
The consideration and approval of an appropriate Internal Audit Charter and 
Plan by Members is an important element in providing assurance to the 
organisation that adequate arrangements are in place to provide the expected 
independent, objective opinion.  The Charter complies with the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards (effective 1st April 2013). 
 
In accordance with good practice, the head of Internal Audit Services has 
consulted members of Corporate Management Team, to ensure current and 
proposed developments/projects and risks are identified, and has built these 
into an evaluation of the priority of the different potential areas for audit 
review.  A proposed Audit Plan for 2013 – 14 is attached at Appendix 2.  The 
Audit Plan constitutes the main operational delivery of the Internal Audit 
Service as part of its Internal Audit Charter which in turn sets out how the 
service proposes to meet statutory and professional requirements; the Charter 
is also attached as Appendix 1.  
 
Members will recall that the Committee’s Terms of Reference include the 
function to “receive, but not direct, internal audit’s plan”. 

Agenda Item 9

Page 155



This report aims to provide members of the Committee with such an 
opportunity.   
 
RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
None 
 
LEGAL/RISK IMPLICATIONS 
 
If a thorough risk-assessed, adequately-resourced audit plan is not in place 
the authority will fail to comply with statutory requirements and will not be able 
to provide the appropriate assurance on the internal control environment.  
Internal Audit has reviewed the risks to the effective delivery of its functions 
and has in place appropriate steps to ensure delivery.   
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
None 
 
“If Members would like further information or clarification prior to the meeting 
please contact Angela Struthers, Head of Internal Audit Services on Ext. 234.” 
 

Page 156



 

This information can be produced on request in other formats and languages 

 
 - 1 - 

 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 1 

 
 
 

INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER 

 
 
 
 

Document Status: Draft 

 

 

 

Originator: A Struthers 
 

Updated: A Struthers 
 

Owner: A Struthers 
 

Version: 01.01.01 
 

Date: 25/01/13 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 157



 

This information can be produced on request in other formats and languages 

 
 - 2 - 

 
Document Location 

 
This document is held by Tamworth Borough Council, and the document 
owner is Angela Struthers. 
 
Printed documents may be obsolete. An electronic copy will be available on 
Authority’s Intranet. Please check for current version before using.   
  
 

 
Revision History 
Revision Date Version Control Summary of changes 

25/01/13 1.01.01 1st draft 

   

   

   

   

 
 

 

Approvals 
Name Title Approved 

Audit & 
Governance 
Committee 

Committee Approval  

John Wheatley Executive Director – Corporate Services 19/03/13 

Angela Struthers Head of Internal Audit Services  

 
 
 

Document Review Plans 
 
This document is subject to a scheduled annual review. Updates shall be 
made in accordance with business requirements and changes and will be with 
agreement with the document owner. 
 
 

Distribution 
 
The document will be available on the Intranet and the website. 
 
 
 

 
 

CONTENTS PAGE 

 

Page 158



 

This information can be produced on request in other formats and languages 

 
 - 3 - 

 

               Page 

 

1 Definition of Internal Auditing        4 

2 Mission Statement of Internal Audit       4 

3 Purpose and Statutory requirements       4 

4 Objectives           5 

5 Role and Scope of Work         6 

6 Proficiency and Due Professional Care       7 

7 Authority           8 

8 Organisation           8 

9 Independence and Objectivity        8 

10 Internal Audit Plan          8 

11 Report and Monitoring       10 

12 Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme   10 

Page 159



 

This information can be produced on request in other formats and languages 

 
 - 4 - 

 
1 Definition of Internal Auditing 
 
Internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting 
activity designed to add value and improve an organisation’s operations.  It 
helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, 
disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk 
management, control and governance processes.  (IIA – UK & Ireland) 
 
The internal audit service will comply with the Public Sector Internal Auditing 
Standards (PSIAS) as adopted by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance 
and Accountancy (CIPFA).   The PSIAS encompass the mandatory elements 
of the Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) International Professional Practices 
Framework (IPPF) as follows: 
 

• Definition of Internal Auditing; 

• Code of Ethics; and 

• International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal 
Auditing (including interpretations and glossary). 

 
This Charter will be periodically reviewed in consultation with senior 
management and the board.  Changes to the International Professional 
Practice Framework will be incorporated as and when they occur.   
 
The following posts will be designated as shown below in order to comply with 
the PSIAS. 
 

Post Designation 

Audit & Governance Committee Board 

Corporate Management Team Senior Management 

Chief Executive Head of Paid Service 

Head of Internal Audit Services Chief Audit Executive 

 
The Chief Audit Executive will report conformance to the PSIAS in the annual 
report to the Board. 
 
2 Mission Statement of Internal Audit 
 
To provide a high quality, cost-effective service, which adapts and responds 
to the Authority’s needs based on achieving a high standard of 
professionalism and expertise in service delivery and also to contribute in 
achieving Best Value Public Services and improving the organisation’s 
operations. 
 
3 Purpose and Statutory Requirements 
 
The internal audit activity will evaluate and contribute to the improvement of 
governance, risk management and control processes using a systematic and 
disciplined approach.   

Page 160



 

This information can be produced on request in other formats and languages 

 
 - 5 - 

The internal audit activity must assess and make appropriate 
recommendations for improving the governance process in its 
accomplishment of the following objectives: 
 

• Promoting appropriate ethics and values within the organisation; 

• Ensuring effective organisational performance management and 
accountability; 

• Communicating risk and control information to appropriate areas of 
the organisation; and 

• Coordinating the activities of and communicating information 
amongst the board, external and internal auditors and 
management.   

 
In addition, the other objectives of the function are to: 
 

• Support the Executive Director Corporate Services to discharge 
their s151 duties of the Local Government Finance Act 1972 by 
maintaining an adequate and effective internal audit service; 

• Contribute to and support the Authority’s objectives of ensuring the 
provision of and promoting the need for, sound financial systems; 
and  

• Investigate allegations of fraud or irregularity to help safeguard 
public funds. 

 
Internal Audit is a statutory service in the context of the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2011 which state in respect of Internal Audit that: 
 
“A relevant body must undertake an adequate and effective internal audit of 
its accounting records and of its system of internal control in accordance with 
the proper practices in relation to internal control” 
 
The work of Internal Audit forms part of the assurance framework, however, 
the existence of Internal Audit does not diminish the responsibility of 
management to establish systems of internal control to ensure that activities 
are conducted in a secure, efficient and well-ordered manner.   
 
4 Objectives 
 
The Chief Audit Executive’s responsibility is to report to the Board on its 
assessment of the adequacy of the entire control environment.  
 
It does this by: 
 
� Providing assurance to the Council and its management on the quality 
of the Council’s operations, whether delivered internally or externally, 
with particular emphasis on systems of risk management, resource 
control and governance.  Assurance to third parties will be provided 
where specific internal audit resources are allocated to the area under 
review (e.g. pension contributions).   

Page 161



 

This information can be produced on request in other formats and languages 

 
 - 6 - 

� Providing consultancy services to internal and external delivered 
services. 

 
5 Role and Scope of Work 
 
The scope on internal auditing encompasses, but is not limited to, the 
examination and evaluation of the adequacy and effectiveness of the 
organisation’s governance, risk management, and internal process as well as 
the quality of performance in carrying out assigned responsibilities to achieve 
the organisation’s stated goals and objectives.  This includes: 
 

• Evaluating the reliability and integrity of information and the means 
used to identify, measure, classify, and report such information; 

• Evaluating the systems established to ensure compliance with those 
policies, plans, procedures, laws, and regulations which could have a 
significant impact on the organisation;   

• Evaluating the means of safeguarding assets and, as appropriate, 
verifying the existence of such assets; 

• Evaluating the effectiveness and efficiency with which resources are 
employed; 

• Evaluating operations or programs to ascertain whether results are 
consistent with established objectives and goals and whether the 
operations or programs are being carried out as planned; 

• Evaluating the potential occurrence for fraud as part of the audit 
engagements; 

• Monitoring and evaluating governance processes; 

• Monitoring and evaluating the effectiveness of the organisation’s risk 
management processes; 

• Monitoring the degree of coordination of internal audit and external 
audit; 

• Performing consulting and advisory services related to governance, 
risk management and control as appropriate for the organisation; 

• Reporting periodically on the internal audit activity’s purpose, 
authority, responsibility, and performance relative to its plan; 

• Reporting significant risk exposures and control issues, including 
fraud risks, governance issues, and other matters to the Board;  

• Evaluating specific operations at the request of management, as 
appropriate; 

• Support management upon the design of controls at appropriate 
points in the development of major change programmes. 

 
With regard to Risk Management, internal audit will carry out individual risk 
based engagements to provide assurance on part of the risk management 
framework, including the mitigation of individual or groups of risks.   
 
Internal audit operate in an advisory capacity to: 
 

Page 162



 

This information can be produced on request in other formats and languages 

 
 - 7 - 

• Report upon the level of risk maturity and scope for improvement; 

• Facilitate the identification and assessment of risks;  

• Coach management in responding to risks.   
 
The CAE is responsible for:  
 

• Developing the corporate risk management strategy in liaison with the 
Management Teams and Service Units; 

• Promoting support and overseeing its implementation across the 
Council; 

• Monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness of the risk management 
strategy; 

• Assisting with the identification and communicate risk management 
issues to Units; 

• Advising Corporate and Unit management teams on strategic and 
operational implications of risk management decisions; 

• Supporting Corporate and Unit management teams in their liaison with 
any external partners when identifying and managing risk in joint 
projects. 

 
6 Proficiency and Due Professional Care 
 
The internal audit activity will govern itself by adherence to The Institute of 
Internal Auditors mandatory guidance including the Definition of Internal 
Auditing, the Code of Ethics, and the Internal Standards for the Professional 
Practice of Internal Auditing.  This mandatory guidance constitutes principles 
of the fundamental requirements for the professional practice of internal 
auditing and for evaluating the effectiveness of the internal audit activity’s 
performance.   
 
The Institute of Internal Auditors’ Practice Advisories, Practice Guides, and 
Position Papers will also be adhered to as applicable to guide operations.  In 
addition, the internal audit activity will adhere to the Authority’s relevant 
policies and procedures and the internal audit activity’s standard operating 
procedures manual. 
 
Job descriptions and person specifications for each post within Internal Audit 
Services define the appropriate knowledge, skills and experience and are 
reviewed periodically.   
 
Personal Development Reviews will be completed in accordance with the 
Council’s policy.  Staff will be supported to fulfil training and development 
needs identified in order to support their continuous professional development 
programme. 
 
Internal Auditors will exercise due professional care by considering the: 

• Extent of work needed to achieve the engagement’s objectives with 
detailed Terms of Reference (including consultancy engagements); 

Page 163



 

This information can be produced on request in other formats and languages 

 
 - 8 - 

• Relative complexity, materiality or significance of matters to which 
assurance procedures are applied; 

• Adequacy and effectiveness of governance, risk management and 
control processes; 

• Probability of significant errors, fraud, or non-compliance; and 

• Cost of assurance in relation to potential benefits.   
 
Where gaps exist in knowledge and skills in the formation of internal audit 
plans, the CAE can engage specialist providers of Internal Audit Services.   
 
Internal Audit staff will be suitably supervised and work will be reviewed by a 
senior member of staff.   
 
7 Authority 
 
The Internal Audit service, with strict accountability for confidentiality and 
safeguarding records and information, is authorised full, free, and unrestricted 
access to any and all of Authority’s records, physical properties, and 
personnel pertinent to carrying out any engagement.  All employees are 
requested to assist the internal audit service in fulfilling its roles and 
responsibilities.   
 
8 Organisation 
 
The Chief Audit Executive will report functionally to the Board and 
administratively (i.e. day to day operations) to the Executive Director 
Corporate Services.   
 
The Board will receive performance reports on the internal audit function on a 
quarterly basis.   
 
9 Independence and Objectivity 
 
The internal audit service will remain free from interference by any element in 
the organisation, including matters of audit selection, scope, procedures, 
frequency, timing, or reporting content to permit maintenance of a necessary 
independent and objective mental attitude.   
 
Internal auditors must exhibit the highest level of professional objectivity in 
gathering, evaluating, and communicating information about the activity or 
process being examined.  Internal auditors must make a balanced 
assessment of all the relevant circumstances and not be unduly influenced by 
their own interests or by others in forming judgements. 
 
The internal audit service will also have free and unrestricted access to the 
Head of Paid Service and the Board.   
 
The Chief Audit Executive will confirm to the Board, at least annually, the 
organisational independence of the internal audit activity.  

Page 164



 

This information can be produced on request in other formats and languages 

 
 - 9 - 

 
10 Internal Audit Plan 
 
At least annually, the Chief Audit Executive will submit to Senior Management 
and the Board an internal audit plan for review and approval.   
 
The internal audit plan will be developed based on prioritisation of the audit 
universe using a risk-based methodology, including input from Senior 
Management.  Any significant deviation from the approved plan will be 
communicated to Senior Management and the Board for approval. The use of 
other sources of assurance and the work required to place reliance on them 
will be highlighted in the audit plan.   
 
Contingency time will be built in to the annual audit plan to allow for any 
unplanned work.  This will be reported on in accordance with the internal 
reporting process to the Board.   
 
Approval will be sought from the Board for any significant additional consulting 
services not already included in the audit plan, prior to accepting the 
engagement.  The Audit Plan balances the following requirements: 

• the need to ensure the Audit Plan is completed to a good practice 
level (currently at least 90% of planned audits remaining required and 
deliverable in the year); 

• the need to ensure core financial systems are adequately reviewed to 
provide assurance that management has in place proper 
arrangements for financial control (on which External Audit will place 
reliance); 

• the need to appropriately review other strategic and operational 
arrangements, taking account of changes in the authority and its 
services and the risks requiring audit review; 

• the need to have uncommitted time available to deal with unplanned 
issues which may need to be investigated eg allegations of financial 
or other relevant irregularities, or indeed specific consultancy. (NB 
there are separate guidelines over circumstances in which Internal 
Audit may and may not get involved in such investigations or 
consultancy, and further reference to this is made within the 
corporate Counter Fraud and Corruption Strategy and guidance); 

• to enable positive timely input to assist corporate and service 
developments. 

 
A joint working arrangement with External Audit will be sought such that 
Internal Audit resources are used as effectively as possible. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 165



 

This information can be produced on request in other formats and languages 

 
 - 10 - 

11 Reporting and Monitoring 
 
A written report will be prepared and issued by the Chief Audit Executive 
following the conclusion of each internal audit engagement and will be 
distributed as appropriate.  A summary of the internal audit results will be 
communicated to the Board.   
 
The final internal audit report will include management’s response and 
corrective actions in regard to the specific findings and recommendations.  It 
will also include a timetable for anticipated completion of action to be taken.   
 
The Internal Audit service will be responsible for following up the 
recommendations made to ensure that management have implemented them 
in the agreed timescales.  This will be completed within six months from the 
finalisation of the audit.  Additional implementation reviews will be carried out 
where high priority recommendations remain outstanding or a significant 
number of recommendations remain outstanding.   
 
12 Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme 
 
The Chief Audit Executive will periodically report to the Board on the internal 
audit service purpose, authority, and responsibility, as well as performance 
relative to its plan.  Reporting will also include significant risk exposures and 
control issues, including fraud risks, governance issues, and other matters 
needed or requested by senior management and the board.   
 
In addition, the Chief Audit Executive will communicate to Senior 
Management and the Board on the internal audit service’s quality assurance 
and improvement programme, including results of ongoing internal 
assessments and improvement plans and external assessments.  External 
assessments will be conducted at least every five years by a professionally 
qualified and experienced assessor.   
 
The improvement plan resulting from the internal and external assessments 
will be reported to and monitored by the Board.   
 
 

Page 166



T
A

M
W

O
R

T
H

 B
O

R
O

U
G

H
 C

O
U

N
C

IL

IN
T

E
R

N
A

L
 A

U
D

IT
 P

L
A

N
 -

 2
0
1
3
/1

4
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 2

A
R

E
A

 O
R

 S
U

B
J
E

C
T

 O
F

 R
E

V
IE

W
R

is
k
 R

a
ti
n
g

A
u
d
it
 t
yp

e
 

d
a
ys

 a
llo

c
a
te

d
Q

u
a
rt

e
r

K
E

Y
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
Y

S
T

E
M

S

M
A

IN
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

IN
G

 &
 B

U
D

G
E

T
A

R
Y

 C
O

N
T

R
O

L
M

E
D

IU
M

K
E

Y
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L
 S

Y
S

T
E

M
 -

 i
n
te

ri
m

5
4

T
R

E
A

S
U

R
Y

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

M
E

D
IU

M
K

E
Y

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 S

Y
S

T
E

M
 -

 i
n
te

ri
m

8
Q

tr
ly

C
R

E
D

IT
O

R
S

M
E

D
IU

M
K

E
Y

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 S

Y
S

T
E

M
 

1
5

3

D
E

B
T

O
R

S
M

E
D

IU
M

K
E

Y
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L
 S

Y
S

T
E

M
 -

 i
n
te

ri
m

5
4

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 T
A

X
M

E
D

IU
M

K
E

Y
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L
 S

Y
S

T
E

M
 

1
5

3

N
N

D
R

M
E

D
IU

M
K

E
Y

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 S

Y
S

T
E

M
 

1
5

3

P
A

Y
R

O
L
L

M
E

D
IU

M
K

E
Y

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 S

Y
S

T
E

M
 

1
5

4

B
A

N
K

 R
E

C
 &

 C
A

S
H

M
E

D
IU

M
K

E
Y

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 S

Y
S

T
E

M
 

5
3

H
O

U
S

IN
G

 &
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 T

A
X

 B
E

N
E

F
IT

S
M

E
D

IU
M

K
E

Y
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L
 S

Y
S

T
E

M
 -

 i
n
te

ri
m

5
4

C
A

P
IT

A
L
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

Y
 &

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
M

E
D

IU
M

K
E

Y
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L
 S

Y
S

T
E

M
 -

 i
n
te

ri
m

5
4

H
O

U
S

IN
G

 R
E

N
T

S
M

E
D

IU
M

K
E

Y
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L
 S

Y
S

T
E

M
 

1
5

3

H
O

U
S

IN
G

 R
E

S
P

O
N

S
IV

E
 R

E
P

A
IR

S
 &

 P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

SM
E

D
IU

M
K

E
Y

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 S

Y
S

T
E

M
 

2
0

1
2
8

3

S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

 &
 O

P
E

R
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 R

IS
K

S

P
R

O
C

U
R

E
M

E
N

T
H

IG
H

S
Y

S
T

E
M

S
 B

A
S

E
D

 R
E

V
IE

W
7

4

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

S
/D

E
C

L
A

R
A

T
IO

N
S

H
IG

H
S

Y
S

T
E

M
S

 B
A

S
E

D
 R

E
V

IE
W

7
1

L
E

G
A

L
 C

O
M

P
L
IA

N
C

E
H

IG
H

R
IS

K
 B

A
S

E
D

 R
E

V
IE

W
7

2

C
E

M
E

T
R

IE
S

H
IG

H
R

IS
K

 B
A

S
E

D
 R

E
V

IE
W

7
1

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 1
0
6
 A

G
R

E
E

M
E

N
T

S
H

IG
H

R
IS

K
 B

A
S

E
D

 R
E

V
IE

W
7

4

G
O

L
F

 C
O

U
R

S
E

H
IG

H
S

Y
S

T
E

M
S

 B
A

S
E

D
 R

E
V

IE
W

8
3

IN
C

O
M

E
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
H

IG
H

S
Y

S
T

E
M

S
 B

A
S

E
D

 R
E

V
IE

W
9

2

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
M

E
D

IU
M

R
IS

K
 B

A
S

E
D

 R
E

V
IE

W
7

2

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
IA

L
/I
N

D
U

S
T

R
IA

L
 P

R
O

P
E

R
T

IE
S

M
E

D
IU

M
S

Y
S

T
E

M
S

 B
A

S
E

D
 R

E
V

IE
W

7
2

S
C

H
E

M
E

 O
F

 D
E

L
E

G
A

T
IO

N
M

E
D

IU
M

S
Y

S
T

E
M

S
 B

A
S

E
D

 R
E

V
IE

W
8

3

Page 167



D
IS

A
B

L
E

D
 F

A
C

IL
IT

IE
S

 G
R

A
N

T
S

M
E

D
IU

M
R

IS
K

 B
A

S
E

D
 R

E
V

IE
W

7
1

G
IF

T
S

 &
 H

O
S

P
IT

A
L
IT

Y
M

E
D

IU
M

R
IS

K
 B

A
S

E
D

 R
E

V
IE

W
8

4

S
H

E
L
T

E
R

E
D

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

M
E

D
IU

M
R

IS
K

 B
A

S
E

D
 R

E
V

IE
W

8
2

L
IC

E
N

C
E

S
M

E
D

IU
M

R
IS

K
 B

A
S

E
D

 R
E

V
IE

W
7

1

C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 D
E

C
IS

IO
N

S
 &

 R
E

P
O

R
T

IN
G

M
E

D
IU

M
S

Y
S

T
E

M
S

 B
A

S
E

D
 R

E
V

IE
W

8
2

O
R

G
A

N
IS

A
T

IO
N

A
L
 D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
M

E
D

IU
M

R
IS

K
 B

A
S

E
D

 R
E

V
IE

W
7

3

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 P

O
L
IC

Y
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
M

E
D

IU
M

S
Y

S
T

E
M

S
 B

A
S

E
D

 R
E

V
IE

W
8

3

R
IP

A
M

E
D

IU
M

R
IS

K
 B

A
S

E
D

 R
E

V
IE

W
3

1

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 C

H
A

N
G

E
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E

M
E

D
IU

M
S

Y
S

T
E

M
S

 B
A

S
E

D
 R

E
V

IE
W

6
1
3
6

2

IC
T

 A
U

D
IT

 R
E

V
IE

W
S

O
R

C
H

A
R

D
 A

P
P

L
IC

A
T

IO
N

 R
E

V
IE

W
H

IG
H

S
Y

S
T

E
M

S
 B

A
S

E
D

 R
E

V
IE

W
6

3

I 
T

R
E

N
T

 A
P

P
L
IC

A
T

IO
N

 R
E

V
IE

W
/P

IR
H

IG
H

S
Y

S
T

E
M

S
 B

A
S

E
D

 R
E

V
IE

W
9

4

E
X

H
A

N
G

E
/E

M
A

IL
 A

P
P

L
IC

A
T

IO
N

 R
E

V
IE

W
H

IG
H

S
Y

S
T

E
M

S
 B

A
S

E
D

 R
E

V
IE

W
7

3

C
R

M
 P

IR
M

E
D

IU
M

S
Y

S
T

E
M

S
 B

A
S

E
D

 R
E

V
IE

W
7

1

B
A

C
S

H
IG

H
S

Y
S

T
E

M
S

 B
A

S
E

D
 R

E
V

IE
W

7
2

P
R

IN
T

IN
G

H
IG

H
S

Y
S

T
E

M
S

 B
A

S
E

D
 R

E
V

IE
W

5
2

D
A

T
A

 Q
U

A
L
IT

Y
 &

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
H

IG
H

S
Y

S
T

E
M

S
 B

A
S

E
D

 R
E

V
IE

W
8

3

S
O

F
T

W
A

R
E

 L
IC

E
N

S
IN

G
H

IG
H

S
Y

S
T

E
M

S
 B

A
S

E
D

 R
E

V
IE

W
7

3

IS
O

2
7
0
0
1
/2

0
0
0
0

M
E

D
IU

M
S

Y
S

T
E

M
S

 B
A

S
E

D
 R

E
V

IE
W

7
6
3

2

IM
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 R
E

V
IE

W
S

L
A

N
D

 C
H

A
R

G
E

S
IM

P
L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 R
E

V
IE

W
2

S
A

F
E

G
U

A
R

D
IN

G
 C

H
IL

D
R

E
N

 &
 V

U
L
N

E
R

A
B

L
E

 A
D

U
L
T

S
IM

P
L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 R
E

V
IE

W
2

C
C

T
V

IM
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 R
E

V
IE

W
2

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 S
A

F
E

T
Y

 H
U

B
IM

P
L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 R
E

V
IE

W
2

Page 168



L
O

C
A

L
IS

M
IM

P
L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 R
E

V
IE

W
2

IT
 P

H
Y

S
IC

A
L
 &

 E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

A
L
 C

O
N

T
R

O
L
S

IM
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 R
E

V
IE

W
3

A
C

A
D

E
M

Y
 A

P
P

L
IC

A
T

IO
N

 R
E

V
IE

W
IM

P
L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 R
E

V
IE

W
2

S
T

R
E

E
T

 W
A

R
D

E
N

S
IM

P
L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 R
E

V
IE

W
2

P
R

 &
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IC

A
T

IO
N

S
IM

P
L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 R
E

V
IE

W
2

T
O

U
R

IS
M

 &
 T

O
W

N
 C

E
N

T
R

E
IM

P
L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 R
E

V
IE

W
2

T
O

U
R

IS
T

 I
N

F
O

R
M

A
T

IO
N

 C
E

N
T

R
E

IM
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 R
E

V
IE

W
2

C
A

R
 P

A
R

K
 I
N

C
O

M
E

IM
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 R
E

V
IE

W
2

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 C
O

N
T

IN
U

IT
Y

IM
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 R
E

V
IE

W
2

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 L
E

IS
U

R
E

IM
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 R
E

V
IE

W
2

H
O

U
S

IN
G

 A
L
L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
S

IM
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 R
E

V
IE

W
2

M
E

M
B

E
R

S
 A

L
L
O

W
A

N
C

E
S

IM
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 R
E

V
IE

W
2

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

C
U

R
IT

Y
IM

P
L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 R
E

V
IE

W
2

T
R

A
V

E
L
 &

 S
U

B
S

IS
T

E
N

C
E

IM
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 R
E

V
IE

W
2

IN
S

U
R

A
N

C
E

IM
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 R
E

V
IE

W
2

H
E

A
L
T

H
 &

 S
A

F
E

T
Y

IM
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 R
E

V
IE

W
2

L
E

G
IO

N
E

L
L
A

IM
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 R
E

V
IE

W
2

A
S

B
E

S
T

O
S

 P
O

L
IC

Y
IM

P
L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 R
E

V
IE

W
2

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
IM

P
L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 R
E

V
IE

W
2

M
O

B
IL

E
 T

E
L
E

P
H

O
N

Y
IM

P
L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 R
E

V
IE

W
2

P
R

IV
A

T
E

 S
E

C
T

O
R

 E
M

P
T

Y
 H

O
M

E
S

IM
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 R
E

V
IE

W
2

IN
T

E
R

F
A

C
E

S
IM

P
L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 R
E

V
IE

W
2

M
O

B
L
IE

 D
E

V
IC

E
S

IM
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 R
E

V
IE

W
2

O
M

B
U

D
S

M
E

N
 P

R
O

C
E

S
S

IM
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 R
E

V
IE

W
2

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

/P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
IM

P
L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 R
E

V
IE

W
2

5
9

A
N

N
U

A
L

 G
O

V
E

R
N

A
N

C
E

 &
 A

S
S

U
R

A
N

C
E

 F
R

A
M

E
W

O
R

K

A
N

N
U

A
L
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 S

T
A

T
E

M
E

N
T

H
IG

H
1
3

A
N

N
U

A
L
 A

U
D

IT
 O

P
IN

IO
N

H
IG

H
3

A
N

N
U

A
L
 A

U
D

IT
 P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

 &
 R

E
V

IE
W

H
IG

H
6

C
O

U
N

T
E

R
 F

R
A

U
D

 C
U

L
T

U
R

E

 -
 N

A
T

IO
N

A
L
 F

R
A

U
D

 I
N

IT
A

T
IV

E
 &

 P
R

O
A

C
T

IV
E

 C
O

U
N

T
E

R
 F

R
A

U
D

 W
O

R
K

H
IG

H
1
5

 -
 R

E
V

IE
W

 O
F

 F
R

A
U

D
 R

IS
K

 R
E

G
IS

T
E

R
H

IG
H

2

 -
 R

E
V

IE
W

 O
F

 C
O

U
N

T
E

R
 F

R
A

U
D

 P
O

L
IC

IE
S

 A
N

D
 D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T
S

H
IG

H
3

IN
T

E
R

N
A

L
 A

U
D

IT
 Q

U
A

L
IT

Y
 A

S
S

U
R

A
N

C
E

 &
 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E

H
IG

H
2

Page 169



R
E

V
IE

W
 O

F
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L
 G

U
ID

A
N

C
E

H
IG

H
4

4
8

R
E

V
IE

W
 W

O
R

K
 C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

 O
N

 B
E

H
A

L
F

 O
F

 S
T

A
F

F
O

R
D

S
H

IR
E

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

P
E

N
S

IO
N

 C
O

N
T

R
IB

U
T

IO
N

S
M

E
D

IU
M

S
U

B
S

T
A

N
T

IV
E

 T
E

S
T

IN
G

2
2

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 S

U
P

P
O

R
T

G
O

V
E

R
N

A
N

C
E

 T
R

A
IN

IN
G

5

A
U

D
IT

 &
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 S

U
P

P
O

R
T

1
5

E
X

T
E

R
N

A
L
 A

U
D

IT
 L

IA
IS

O
N

1

S
P

E
C

IA
L
 I
N

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IO

N
S

2
0

C
O

N
T

IN
G

E
N

C
Y

 
1
5

5
6

T
O

T
A

L
 A

U
D

IT
 D

A
Y

S
4
9
2

4
9
2

Page 170



 
AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 
 

28TH MARCH 2013 
 

 
 

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICES 
 
 

SELF ASSESSMENT – MEASURING THE EFFECTIVENESS OF THE AUDIT & 
GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 
EXEMPT INFORMATION 
 
None. 
 
PURPOSE 
 
To complete a self assessment of the effectiveness of the Audit & Governance Committee 
and produce an improvement action plan if required. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That  Members of the Committee complete the self assessment checklist (attached 
Appendix A) in order to formulated an improvement plan if required. 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
To ensure that effective governance arrangements exist, the Authority is required to review 
the effectiveness of the system of internal control.  Part of this review includes the review of 
the effectiveness of the Audit & Governance Committee.  
 
The attached self assessment questionnaire (Appendix A) contains questions from the 
CIPFA guidance on how to measure the effectiveness of the Audit & Governance Committee 
plus additional appropriate questions.   
 
The aim of the self assessment questionnaire is to identify areas of compliance and areas 
where improvement may be required.   
 
Members are requested to complete the questionnaire. 
 
RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are no direct implications in relation to finance, community/performance planning, 
sustainable development, community safety, equal opportunities or human rights.   
 
LEGAL/RISK IMPLICATIONS BACKGROUND 
 
The risk is that the Audit & Governance Committee are not effective and do not fulfil 
Governance requirements.   
 
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
None. 
 

Agenda Item 10

Page 171



 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION   
 
None 
 
 
REPORT AUTHOR 
 
Angela Struthers ex 234 
 
 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None 
 
 
APPENDICES 
 
Appendix A – Audit & Governance Committee Self Assessment 2012/13 
 

Page 172



Appendix A 
Audit & Governance Committee Self Assessment 2012/13 
 
 

Terms of Reference 
Have the Committee’s terms of 
reference been approved by the full 
Council and do they follow the CIPFA 
model. 
 
 
 
 

 

Internal Audit Process 
Does the Committee approve the 
strategic audit approach and the 
annual programme 
 
Is the work of Internal Audit reviewed 
regularly 
 
Are summaries of quality 
questionnaires from managers 
reviewed 
 
Is the annual report from the Head of 
Internal Audit presented to the 
Committee 
 
Does the Committee ensure that 
officers are acting on and monitoring 
action taken to implement 
recommendations 
 
 
 
 

 

External Audit Process 
 
Are reports on the work of External 
Audit and other inspection agencies 
presented to the committee 
 
Does the Committee input into the 
external audit programme 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 173



 

Regulatory Framework  
 
Does the Committee take a role in 
overseeing 
 

• Risk management strategies 
 

• Annual Governance Statement 
 

• Anti-fraud arrangements 
 

• Confidential reporting policy 
 

• Financial regulations 
 

• Constitution 
 

• Complaints 
handling/ombudsman’s report 

 
 
 

 

Accounts 
 
Does the Committee take a role in 
overseeing the annual statement of 
accounts 
 
 
 
 

 

Membership 
 
Has the membership of the 
committee been formally agreed and 
a forum set 
 
Is the chair free from executive or 
scrutiny functions 
 
Are members sufficiently independent 
of the other key committees of the 
council  
 
Have all members’ skills and 
experiences been assessed and 
training given for identifying gaps 
 

 

Page 174



Can the committee access other 
committees as necessary 

Meetings 
 
Does the committee meet regularly 
 
Are separate, private meetings held 
with the external auditor and internal 
auditor 
 
Are meetings free and open without 
political influence being displayed 
 
Are decisions reached promptly 
 
Are agenda papers circulated in 
advance of meetings to allow 
adequate preparation by members 
 
Does the committee have the benefit 
of attendance of appropriate officers 
at its meetings 
 
Can special meetings be organised to 
allow a quick response to 
emergencies 
 
Does External Audit regularly attend 
meetings and update members on 
their progress/external audit issues 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Training 
 
Is induction training provided to 
members 
 
Is more advanced training available 
as required 
 
Is the committee made of members 
with a different mix of skills and 
experience 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 175



 
 

Administration 
 
Does the authority’s s151 officer or 
deputy attend meetings 
 
Are key officers available to support 
the committee 
 
Do reports to the Committee 
communicate relevant information at 
the right frequency and in a format 
that is effective 
 

 

 

Page 176



 

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

28 March 2013 
 

REPORT OF THE SOLICITOR TO THE COUNCIL AND MONITORING 
OFFICER 

 
REVIEW OF MEMBER’S ALLOWANCES 

 
 

Purpose 
 
To inform members of the Audit and Governance Committee of the report of 
the Independent Remuneration Panel and the recommendations adopted by 
Council on 19 March 2013 in relation thereto. 
 
  
Recommendation 
 
That Audit and Governance Committee consider the report of the 
Independent Remuneration Panel and the recommendations adopted by 
Council on 19 March 2013. 
 
Background Information  
 
At the Council Meeting on 15 December 2009 it was agreed that future 
reports of the Independent Remuneration Panel would be presented to the 
Audit and Governance Committee. The report is attached at Appendix 1. 
 
Regulations came into force in May 2003 which requires the Council to review 
and adopt a scheme of allowances for members. 
 
All Councils are required to convene an Allowances Panel and seek its advice 
before they make any changes or amendments to their allowance scheme 
and they must   “pay regard” to the Panel’s recommendations before setting a 
new or amended Members Allowances Scheme. 
 
The Members Remuneration Panel was convened on 28 February 2013.It is a 
statutory requirement that a summary of the remuneration panel 
recommendations are published in a local newspaper. 
 
The Council considered a report from the Solicitor to the Council and 
Monitoring Officer at its meeting on 19 March 2013 (attached at Appendix 2) 
and the recommended changes to be implemented from the date of the 
Annual Council meeting in 2013/14 are as summarised in the said report. The 
recommendations were accepted in full with the addition of amending the 
‘lump sum SRA’ to ‘Attendance Allowance’.            
 
 
 

Agenda Item 11

Page 177



 

Appendices 
 
Appendix 1 Report of the Independent Remuneration Panel Dated March 
2013 
Appendix 2 Report to Council Dated 19 March 2013 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dated 15 Mar. 13  “If Members would like further information or clarification prior to the meeting 
please contact Jane M Hackett Solicitor to the Council and Monitoring Officer on Ext.258” 
 

 

Page 178



A Review 
 

Of 
 

Members’ Allowances 

 

For 

 

Tamworth 

Borough Council 
_____________________________________ 

  

  The Fifth Report 

 

  By the 

 

Independent Remuneration 

Panel 
 

 

      Dr Declan Hall (Chair) 

      Navin Kalia 

      Stan Orton 

       

 

 

        March 2013 

 

 

 

Page 179



Tamworth Borough Council  Independent Remuneration Panel 

 

 

Dr Declan Hall 

membersallowances.co.uk             

 
1

Foreword 
 

This is the fifth report produced by the Independent Remuneration Panel (the 

Panel) for Tamworth Borough Council. The first report was produced in May 2002, 

as required by the Local Government Act 2000, after the formal establishment of 

the statutory independent Members’ Allowances advisory Panel to make 

recommendations on allowances for what were then new roles for Councillors. The 

Council adopted the substantive recommendations which established the current 

allowances framework that, by and large, remains in place to this day. 

 

Following the introduction of the Local Authorities (Members’ Allowance) (England) 

Regulations 20031 Tamworth Borough Council was required (as were all English 

local authorities) to reconvene its Panel to inter alia make recommendations on 

certain associated allowances before 31 December 2003. The recommendations 

were produced in December 2003 and they were once again accepted by the 

Council resulting in only minor amendments to the scheme of allowances. The third 

review in November 2005 arose out of changes in the political structures of 
Tamworth Borough Council, resulting in increased pressures on a number of post 

holders. While some revisions were recommended the essential structure of the 
Tamworth Borough’s Allowances scheme was not altered. 
 

The fourth report (December 2008) arose out of the requirement for Tamworth 
Borough Council to seek fresh authority for indexation of allowances by 2009/10, 
which the Panel did do. The Council also accepted the Panel’s other substantive 

recommendation, to increase the Leaders’ SRA, but also went further in applying 
the Panel’s logic across the Board by maintaining other SRAs payable at the same 
ratio.  
 
This review is also required under the 4-year rule contained in the relevant 
provisions of the 2003 Regulations and the Council has asked the Panel to 
consider the applicability of refreshing indexation as well as take an overview of the 
whole Tamworth Borough Council Members’ Allowances scheme to consider 
whether the current scheme is still fit for purpose. The Panel has concluded that by 
and large the current scheme of allowances is fit for purpose except for one area: 
the Panel has recommended that the Council introduce a performance element for 
the payment of their current level of remuneration. 
 
The reality is that the economic climate is not conducive to any increases in 
Members’ Allowances, particularly as the Council is seeking to make further 
savings. Moreover, the provisions of the 2011 Localism Act will not be fully 
implemented until another 18 months or so. This may well transform present 
council structures to a greater or lesser degree and have impacts on the roles and 
responsibilities of elected Members and therefore a more comprehensive in-depth 

                                                           
1 See Statutory Instruments 2003 Nos. 1021, 1022 and 1692 for further details. 

Page 180



Tamworth Borough Council  Independent Remuneration Panel 

 

 

Dr Declan Hall 

membersallowances.co.uk             

 
2

review will be in all likelihood be required within the next 12-18 months to take into 
account the impact of these changes. 

 

Partly as a consequence of the current economic climate the Panel has made 

radical recommendations in attempting to create a stronger link between Member 

performance and remuneration. It has returned to performance as it is still an issue 

that rumbles on in Tamworth. Consequently the Panel has made recommendations 

that if accepted would place Tamworth Borough Council in the vanguard of creating 

a stronger link between members’ remuneration and their performance. However, 

as ever, the Panel continues to be cognisant of the need to balance this 

understandable principle by seeking to reduce financial barriers for current and 

future Members to serve on Tamworth Borough Council and the increasing 

demands on Members. 

 

 

Dr Declan Hall 

Chair of the Tamworth Borough Council Independent Remuneration Panel 
 

 
March 2013 
 
 
 
 

Page 181



Tamworth Borough Council  Independent Remuneration Panel 

 

 

Dr Declan Hall 

membersallowances.co.uk             

 
3

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The Panel recommends the following, namely that: 
 
 

Enhancing Performance- Reduction of Basic Allowance and SRAs 
The current Basic Allowance and SRAs payable to Members of Tamworth Borough 
Council are all reduced by 10% and the 10% balance only paid to those Members 
who attend 75% of the scheduled meetings of the committees they are appointed 
to in the form of a lump sum Attendance Allowance  paid retrospectively at the end 
of the municipal year as set out below. 
 
The meetings that are to count as against a Members attendance record are those 
which are used by the Council in it publication of Members’ attendance summary 
on its website. 

 

 

The Basic Allowance 
For 2013/14 the Basic Allowance is reduced to £4,608 and at the end of the 
municipal year all Members who achieve 75% attendance at all their scheduled 
meetings be paid a retrospective Attendance Allowance of £512, subject to any 
future application of relevant indices. 
 
 

Special Responsibility Allowances 
All SRAs be reduced by 10% and the residual paid at end of year as follows: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exc

Post SRA Payable 

with 10% 

Discount 

Applied 

Year End SRA 

Payable when 

75% Attendance 

achieved 

Total 

SRAs 

Payable 

Leader (1) £11,533 £1,281 £12,814 

Deputy Leader (1) £8,649 £961 £9,610 

Other Cabinet Member (4) £7,496 £833 £8,329 

Chair of Scrutiny (2) £5,189 £577 £5,766 

Chair Planning £5,189 £577 £5,766 

Chair Licensing £5,189 £577 £5,766 

Chair Audit & Governance £1,730 £192 £1,922 

Leader of (Larger) 
Opposition Group 

£5,189 £577 £5,766 

Deputy Leader of (Larger) 
Opposition Group 

£2,883 £320 £3,203 

Page 182



Tamworth Borough Council  Independent Remuneration Panel 

 

 

Dr Declan Hall 

membersallowances.co.uk             

 
4

eption to the 1-SRA only Rule 
The 1-SRA only rule is continued with the exception of subsequent SRAs any 
Member qualifies for by achieving the 75% attendance performance threshold. 
 
 

Post Holders in receipt of a SRA – subject to a double penalty 
A double penalty will be imposed on post holders in receipt of a SRA through a 
discounted Basic Allowance and SRA if they do not meet the 75% attendance 
threshold.    
 
 

Refining the Model – Review in 12 months 
The Panel reconvenes in 12 months time to review the Members’ Allowances 
scheme with specific reference to assessing the success of the new performance 
related element of remuneration and to refine accordingly. 

 

 

The Relative Workloads and Responsibilities of Committee Chairs 
It will specifically review the enhanced remit of the Audit and Governance 
Committee in 12 months time. Moreover, it will also look at the relative workloads 
and responsibilities of the Licensing and Planning Committees and consider 
whether there is a case to recommend a realignment of the SRAs paid to the 
Chairs of these committees. 
 
 

The Vice Chairs of Scrutiny 
From the date of the Annual Meeting 2013/14 that the SRAs currently paid to the 2 
Vice Chairs of Scrutiny are discontinued. 
 
 

Access to the Local Government Pension Scheme: Refreshing Authority 
Fresh authority is provided to the Council to decide on Members right to join the 
LGPS for another four years. 

 

Co-optees’ Allowance 
The provision for a Co-optees’ Allowance of £311 per annum be deleted from the 
Tamworth Borough Council Members’ Allowances scheme and replaced with the 
following schedule from the date of the Annual Meeting of Council 2013/14: 
 

• Meetings under 4 hours:  £45 per meeting 

• Meetings 4 hours and over:  £90 per meeting 
 
 

Subsistence Allowances – Within the Borough 
The Members’ Allowances scheme is amended to clarify that Subsistence 
Allowances can no longer be claimed by Members attending approved duties within 
the Borough unless there are exceptional circumstances as defined by the person 

Page 183



Tamworth Borough Council  Independent Remuneration Panel 

 

 

Dr Declan Hall 

membersallowances.co.uk             

 
5

calling the meeting with approval of the Monitoring Officer, to be implemented from 
the date of the Annual Meeting 2013/14. 
 
 

Subsistence Allowances – Outside the Borough 
The current rates and conditions for claiming Subsistence Allowances (including 
overnight accommodation) by Members attending approved duties outside the 
Borough remain unchanged. The Panel reminds the Council that if a Member 
claims this allowance then it is good  practice to back up the claims with receipts, 
i.e., it is a reimbursement of actual costs incurred up to the same maxima that 
applies to Officers. 

 

 

Travel Allowances – Within the Borough 
There is no change to the current definition and scope of approved duties for which 
Members can claim Travel Allowances. 
 
The mileage rates for which Members can claim for attending approved duties are 
set at the Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs Approved Mileage Allowance 
Payments rates as set out below: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public and Other Transport 
There is no change to the current rates and conditions to the Travel Allowances 
scheme where Members travel by public or other means of transport. 
 
The Council is reminded that on the odd occasion a Member has to seek 
reimbursement of travel to approved duties by public transport all claims must be 
backed by receipts for actual costs incurred up to the maxima applicable to Officers 
of the Borough Council. 
 
 

Vehicle Business Miles Travelled 

 First 10,000 miles 
(£ per mile) 

Over 10,000 miles  

(£ per mile) 

 

Cars & Vans 

 

45p 

 

25p 

 

Motor cycles 

 

24p 

 

24p 

 

Bicycles 

 

20p 

 

20p 

 

Passenger Supplement 

Rates 

 

5p per passenger 

per mile 

 

5p per passenger 

per mile 

Page 184



Tamworth Borough Council  Independent Remuneration Panel 

 

 

Dr Declan Hall 

membersallowances.co.uk             

 
6

The Dependents’ Carers’ Allowance (DCA) 
There is no change to the scope and levels payable for the Dependants’ Carers 
Allowance scheme, including the relevant indices. 
 
 

Indexation 
Authority for Tamworth Borough Council to index their allowances is refreshed and 
the following indices are applied to the remuneration and allowances paid to 
Members of Tamworth Borough Council: 

 

Basic Allowance and SRAs: 

• Indexed to the annual percentage salary increase for local government staff 
(at spinal column 49) to be implemented from the start of the municipal year, 
rather than financial year, for which year it is applicable. 

 

Dependants’ Carers’ Allowance: 

• Indexed to the hourly minimum wage applicable to the age of the carer. 
 

Mileage Allowance: 

• Members mileage allowances rates should be indexed to the HMRC AMAP 
mileage rates. 

 

Subsistence Allowances: 

• The day and overnight subsistence allowances should be indexed to the 
same rates that are applicable to Officers. 

 

 

Implementation 
The recommendations contained within this Report are implemented from the date 
of the Annual Council meeting 2013/14. 
 
 

 

 

Page 185



Tamworth Borough Council  Independent Remuneration Panel 

 

 

Dr Declan Hall 

membersallowances.co.uk             

 
7

 

The Fifth Review of Members’ Allowances 

 
 
 

For 
 
 
 

Tamworth Borough Council 
 

 

 

March 2013 

 

 

 

 

 

The Regulatory Context and Terms of Reference 
 

 The Requirement for the Review  
 
1. This (fifth) report is a synopsis of the deliberations and recommendations 

made by the Independent Remuneration Panel (the Panel) reconvened by 
Tamworth Borough Council to advise the Council on its current Members’ 
Allowances scheme. 

 
2. The Panel was convened under The Local Authorities (Members’ 

Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003 (SI 1021). These regulations, 
which arise out of the relevant provisions contained in the Local Government 
Act 2000, require all local authorities to set up and maintain an advisory 
Independent [Members] Remuneration Panel (the Panel) to review and 
provide advice on Members’ allowances on a periodic basis. All Councils are 
required to convene their Panel and seek its advice before they make any 
changes or amendments to their allowances scheme and they must ‘pay 
regard’ to the Panel’s recommendations before setting a new or amended 
Members’ Allowances Scheme. 

 

Page 186



Tamworth Borough Council  Independent Remuneration Panel 

 

 

Dr Declan Hall 

membersallowances.co.uk             

 
8

3. Specifically, the Panel was convened to make recommendations to the 
Council on the applicability of the indexation of allowances for the next four 
years. Regulation 10(5) states: 

 
Where an authority has regard to an index for the purpose of annual 

adjustment of allowances it must not rely on that index for longer than a 

period of four years before seeking a further recommendation from the 

independent remuneration panel established in respect of that authority on 

the application of an index to its scheme. 

 
 
4. The Council is fulfilling its statutory responsibility by undertaking this review 

under Regulations 10(5) and 21(e) of the 2003 Members’ Allowances 
Regulations to seek fresh authority for the indexation of allowances.  

 
 

Terms of Reference 

 
5. With the Statutory requirement to reconvene the Panel, the Council took the 

opportunity to present the Panel with a general terms of reference to 
undertake a full review  of the Council Members’ Allowances scheme and to 
propose an allowances scheme for the Council, namely to make 
recommendations on the following: 

 
a) As to the amount of basic allowance that should be payable to its 

Elected Members 
b) About the responsibilities or duties which should lead to the payment 

of a Special Responsibility Allowance and as to the amount of such 
an allowance 

c) The duties for which travelling and subsistence allowance can be 
paid and as to the amount of this allowance 

d) As to the suitability and amount of a co-optees’ allowance 
e) As to whether the Authority’s allowances scheme should include an 

allowance in respect of the expenses of arranging for the care of 
children and dependants and if it does make such a 
recommendation, the amount of this allowance and the means by 
which it is determined 

f) On whether any allowance should be backdated to the beginning of a 
financial year in the event of a scheme being amended 

g) As to whether annual adjustments of allowance levels may be made 
by reference to an index, and if so, for how long such a measure 
should run 

h) As to which Members of the Authority are to be entitled to pensions 
in accordance with a scheme made under section 7 of the 
Superannuation Act 1972 

i) As to treating basic allowance and Special Responsibility Allowance 
as amounts in respect of which such pensions are payable 

Page 187



Tamworth Borough Council  Independent Remuneration Panel 

 

 

Dr Declan Hall 

membersallowances.co.uk             

 
9

 

 

The Panel 
 

6. Tamworth Borough Council reconvened its Independent Remuneration 
Panel and the following Panel Members carried out its independent 
review; namely: 

 
� Navin Kalia: 

o an accountant with the University Hospitals Birmingham NHS 
Foundation Trust 

 
� Declan Hall (Chair): 

o former academic at Institute of Local Government, The University 
of Birmingham, now independent consultant specialising in 
members’ allowances and support 

 
� Stan Orton: 

o retired and a North Warwickshire resident with an interest and 
background in local government 

 
7. The Panel was supported by Lara Allman, Democratic and Election 

Services Officer and Jane Hackett, Solicitor to the Council and Monitoring 
Officer. 

 
8. The Panel would like to record its gratitude to the Members and Officers 

of Tamworth Borough Council for making themselves available to talk to 
the Panel and supporting the work of the Panel. 

 
 

Process and Methodology 
 

How the Panel approached the Review 
 
9. As the Chair of the Panel, I undertook the initial planning, research and 

benchmarking for the review, but it became evident at least in the early 
stages of the review that in all probability the review would not result in the 
Panel recommending significant change to the Tamworth Members’ 
Allowances scheme. The bench marking showed that councils in the 
comparator group were not fundamentally altering their allowances schemes 
and in any case the current economic context left little room for manoeuvre. 
Consequently, the initial approach adopted was based on the principle that 
the resources devoted to the review should match what were to be the likely 
conclusions, i.e., recommending only minor amendments. 

 
10. Consequently, the Chair of the Panel took the lead in considering the 

evidence and writing up the first draft of the report. In doing so the Chair met 

Page 188



Tamworth Borough Council  Independent Remuneration Panel 

 

 

Dr Declan Hall 

membersallowances.co.uk             

 
10

a number of leading Members and with two Officers for a briefing to obtain 
an overview on the recent changes in Council structures and the challenges 
facing the Council at Marmion House, Tamworth on 31

st
 January 2013. In 

addition, all Members were invited to make written submissions to the Panel 
if they so wished. Appendix 1 lists those Members and Officers who met with 
the Chair, and those Members who made a written submission. 

 
11. As with previous reviews a benchmarking exercise was undertaken, the 

benchmarking group remaining the other district councils in Staffordshire 
and Tamworth’s immediate neighbouring councils. Other relevant 
information was also considered by the Chair in the early stages of the 
review. See Appendix 2 for the list of written information the Panel 
considered.  

 
12. As the Panel was being asked to review the applicability of indices for 

allowances under the 4-year rule contained in the 2003 Members’ 
Allowances Regulations there is an explicit expectation for the Panel to 
physically convene. The 4-year rule is the means by which all councils have 
their schemes subjected to a degree of public scrutiny and accountability 
and this entails the Panel meeting to fulfil that duty.  

 
13. However, the initial assessment of a limited review while proving to be 

correct that the Panel would not need to undertake a fundamental re-
evaluation of how the current scheme was arrived at, did not prove accurate 
in terms of a need to address performance once again. The Chair’s initial 
interviews and the written representations received by the Panel showed 
that there was an appetite and it was the right time to revisit Member 
performance in more depth. This resulted in a greater involvement of the 
wider Panel than originally envisaged. 

 
14. Consequently, the Panel convened on 28 February 2013 at Marmion House, 

Tamworth, to meet with any other Members who wished to talk to the Panel 
and consider any other evidence called for. It was at this stage that the 
Panel agreed the final recommendations before the report was submitted to 
full Council for consideration and presentation to the Audit and Governance 
Committee. The Panel members were also able to consider whether there 
was a need for further meetings, which it did not, to take further evidence. 

 
15. This approach is within the spirit of the 2003 Regulations. To formally involve 

the whole Panel from the beginning would not be an efficient use of Council 
resources as it would impose a disproportionate cost on the Council and 
Panel members relative to the likely outcomes required. 

 

Considering the Evidence 
 
16. The Panel took a tiered approach in considering the evidence. It is required 

to operate within the broad statutory framework laid down by the 2003 
Regulations and 2006 Statutory Guidance. The 2003 Members’ Allowances 

Page 189



Tamworth Borough Council  Independent Remuneration Panel 

 

 

Dr Declan Hall 

membersallowances.co.uk             

 
11

(England) Regulations establishes the boundaries for the Panel, e.g., 
attendance allowances cannot be paid, all Members must receive a Basic 
Allowance that is equal in value and express authority is granted to vary the 
terms and conditions for claiming the travel and subsistence allowances, or 
indeed whether to retain them at all. Within the regulatory context, the Panel 
has a further obligation to pay regard to the 2006 Statutory Guidance, which 
for example mandates certain considerations for all Panels in reaching the 
recommended Basic Allowance but in contrast provides suggested 
considerations in reaching an appropriate recommendation for SRAs. 

 
17. The next level of evidence considered by the Panel were the representations 

(including written submissions) made by elected Members. The interviews 
obtained the views of the groups on Council and raised a number of specific 
concerns. The interviews were also utilised to challenge statements and to 
act as a ‘sounding board’ to submissions and ideas from elected Members. 
Finally, all the evidence and representations have been reviewed and 
evaluated within the comparative context across other Councils in 
Staffordshire/neighbouring Tamworth.  

 

Revisiting First Principles 
 
18. As in previous reviews the overarching principle underpinning the review was 

that the purpose of a Members’ Allowances scheme is to ensure that as far 
as practically possible the scope and level of allowances should seek to 
reduce financial barriers to most people standing for and remaining on 
Council while not creating a scheme that attracts people to stand for and 
remain on Council for financial gain. While this balancing point is different for 
different people the Panel believes that as the scheme currently stands, and 
even if the recommendations of the Panel as set out below are adopted 
would still enable most people to stand for and remain on Council without 
the scope and levels payable being seen as unjustified. 

 
 

Key Messages and Observations 
 

Recognising Economic Climate 
 

19. In an ideal world, the prime role of the Panel is to assess what it judges the 
roles and posts under review are worth based on the evaluation of the 
evidence, taking into account such variables as workloads, responsibility 
(and the values attributed to various levels of responsibility) However, the 
Panel cannot but be sensitive to the current economic climate. Not only do 
many residents of Tamworth Borough Council face an uncertain economic 
future, the Council is also seeking further savings while experiencing 
growing demands on services, thus trying to ‘do more with less’. Moreover, 
Officers have had their salaries frozen for the last couple of years and will, in 

Page 190



Tamworth Borough Council  Independent Remuneration Panel 

 

 

Dr Declan Hall 

membersallowances.co.uk             

 
12

all likelihood; have their salaries only marginally increased in the next couple 
of years. 

 
20. Thus, the Panel, as the means by which public scrutiny and accountability 

regarding the Tamworth Borough Council Members’ Allowances scheme is 
brought to bear, cannot disregard the current economic environment. 
Externally, the public would rightly question the rationale if the Panel were to 
recommend significant increases in the main allowances payable even 
though a rational case can be made for some increases in Members’ 
remuneration. As it is, the recommendations stand and if adopted by the 
Council there will be some identifiable savings on the Council’s current 
spend on Members’ Allowances of just under £4,800 (see below for details), 
and further but variable savings depending on the extent to which Members 
do not meet the recommended performance criteria. 

 

The Localism Act 2011 and need for further review 
 

21. The Council continues to address the range of issues that affect all councils. 
This has increasingly meant an enhanced partnership working that 
accompanies this agenda (mostly arising out of the staged implementation 
of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007), 
particularly affecting senior elected Members. Moreover, pressures on 
council services and recent Government legislation, particularly the staged 
implementation of the Localism Act 2011 over the next 12 months, means 
that ‘front line’ Members will face further pressures. Being an elected 
Member will not get easier.  

 
22. This context creates another contributory reason to postpone recommending 

a fundamental revision of the allowances scheme. The Localism Act 2011 
may well have major impacts on the roles of Members. There will be 
enhanced powers for local communities and changes in how planning 
policies are developed as well as new freedoms for local area committees 
where established. Indeed, it permits the Council to return to the old 
committee system which would almost certainly impact on the roles of all 
Members.  However, it is too early to assess the impact of the Localism Act 
2011 and the Panel will have to take a view when the implications of the 
Localism Act 2011 become more apparent, which will probably be less than 
four years hence. To leave another top to bottom review of allowances until 
2017 does not serve the interests of the public, Members or conform to the 
spirit of the 2003 Members’ Allowances Regulations. 

 

Member Remuneration and Member Performance: Strengthening the Link  
 
23. Once again representation was made to the Panel that not all Members 

were fulfilling all the duties for which they were being remunerated. The 
Panel has tried to address this issue in the past by ‘sharpening 
accountability’. In the 2008 review the Panel recommended that the Council 

Page 191



Tamworth Borough Council  Independent Remuneration Panel 

 

 

Dr Declan Hall 

membersallowances.co.uk             

 
13

publish attendance records of all Members as a means of making more 
transparent one aspect of Members performance. The Panel is pleased to 
note the Council now does publish on its website such records.  

 
24. As a result of this transparency the evidence available does back up the 

representations made to the Panel. The attendance records published by 
the Council on its website shows that some Members attendance could be 
seen as laggard and they are being paid the same as other Members who 
are fulfilling their approved duties (and more) yet the Members’ Allowances 
scheme does not take this variable performance into account.  

 
25. The Panel has revisited the issue and has made recommendations that it 

hopes will create a stronger link between member remuneration and 
individual Member performance. While the ultimate arbiter on whether 
individual Members are ‘doing a good job’ are the electorate the Panel has 
taken the view that, particularly in the context of the current economic 
climate, that the public would question why all Members are remunerated 
the same while having differential inputs that can be readily measurable.  

 
26. More now than ever the public should expect value for money from their 

elected representatives. Part of the problem is that there is an inherent flaw 
in the system – Members receive their main allowances by right, in other 
words by virtue of being an elected Member. To remain an elected Member 
the only performance criteria that has to be met is to attend an approved 
duty once every six months. This relatively lax performance management 
dates back to when the workload and responsibilities carried out by 
Members were much less than now and the relatively limited remuneration 
was paid through an attendance allowance, so if a Member did not attend a 
relevant meeting then they did not get paid. As the legislation currently 
stands all Members receive an equal Basic Allowance and where applicable 
their SRA as long as they turn up once every six months. 

 
27. The notion of having remuneration related to performance or at least inputs 

is gaining ground in relation to elected politicians, albeit in different ways. 
For instance, the salary of the Police and Crime Commissioners was set on 
the basis that it is a full time role. The Review Body on Senior Salaries 
recommended that their remuneration should be reduced pro rata where 
they do not undertake the role full time.2 This recommendation was 
subsequently given legislative force by the Secretary of State. In the London 
Borough of Tower Hamlets, if a Cabinet member is not undertaking the role 
full time, as determined by the elected Mayor, their SRA is subsequently 
discounted pro rata. It is a notion that has also been put out to consultation 
for MPs by the Parliamentary Standards Agency (PSA) in its most recent set 
of proposals on MPs remuneration. 

                                                           
2
 Review Body on Senior Salaries, Report No. 78,  Report on the pay of Police and Crime 

Commissioners 2011, October 2011 
 

Page 192



Tamworth Borough Council  Independent Remuneration Panel 

 

 

Dr Declan Hall 

membersallowances.co.uk             

 
14

 

Discounting the Basic Allowance and SRAs by Ten Percent 
 
28. Consequently, the Panel is proposing that the Basic Allowance and SRAs be 

discounted by 10% from their current levels and the 10% taken from the 
current allowance only payable when each Member attends 75% of their 
scheduled meetings for any municipal year. For legal purposes the actual 
Basic Allowance specified and set out in the scheme has to be the 
discounted Basic Allowance (£4,608) and the additional 10% (£512) paid 
retrospectively as an SRA. 

 
29. It is acknowledged that attending meetings is only one aspect of any elected 

Members duties and workload. A Member may be active in their ward or 
may not be able to attend all their meetings for valid reasons. However, it is 
a reasonable expectation that a Member should be attending the majority of 
their scheduled meetings – their remuneration is largely based on this 
aspect of their duties. Thus a vital component of their duties is to attend the 
meetings of the committees they are appointed to and in doing so represent 
the interests of their constituents and the Council at these meetings. In 
subjecting only 10% of Members remuneration to a performance framework 
the Panel is content that it is not placing an undue emphasis on a single 
aspect of a Members workload and responsibilities. 

 

30. The Panel recommends that all the current Basic Allowance and SRAs 

payable to Members of Tamworth Borough Council are discounted by 

10% and the 10% balance only paid to those Members that attend 75% 

of the scheduled meetings of the committees they are appointed to in 

the form of a lump sum SRA paid retrospectively at the end of the 

municipal year.  

 

31. The meetings that are to count as against a Members attendance 

record are those which are used by the Council in it publication of 

Members’ attendance summary on its website. 
 

Refining the Model – Review in 12 months 
 
32. On average, Tamworth Borough Council Members are appointed to two 

committees. It is recognised that this is not a uniform pattern and the 
performance criteria is easier to achieve for a Member who is only appointed 
to one or no committees than for a Member who is appointed to more than 
two committees. The Panel has decided not to explore this incongruity at this 
juncture. It is more important to establish the principle of introducing a 
performance element for Members remuneration and it can refine the model 
at a later stage. Moreover, as pointed out above the impact of the Localism 
Act 2011 will become more apparent over the next 12 months. 

 

Page 193



Tamworth Borough Council  Independent Remuneration Panel 

 

 

Dr Declan Hall 

membersallowances.co.uk             

 
15

33. The Panel recommends that it reconvenes once more in 12 months 

time to review the Members’ Allowances scheme with specific 

reference to assessing the success of the new performance related 

element of remuneration and to refine accordingly. 

 

Exception to the 1-SRA only Rule 
 
34. At present Members are only able to be paid one SRA regardless of the 

number of posts they may hold, although it is rare for a Member to hold 
more than one remunerated post. For the performance related remuneration 
recommendations to work then a Member in receipt of an SRA who achieves 
attendance of 75% they would have to be able to draw down 2 SRAs – the 
current SRA paid at 90% and a second retrospective SRA paid at 10% of 
their current levels. 

 

35. The Panel confirms the 1-SRA only rule with the exception of 

subsequent SRAs any Member qualifies for by achieving the 75% 

attendance performance measure.  
 

 

The Panel’s Recommendations 
 

The Basic Allowance 
 
36. No evidence was received to suggest that the current Basic Allowance 

payable (£5,120) was in need of revisiting at this stage, subject to attending 
75% of assigned approved duties. Table 1 (below) shows that the Basic 
Allowance paid in Tamworth Borough Council is on a par with those paid in 
the comparator group of district councils.  

 

37. The Panel recommends that the current Basic Allowance (£5,120) 

remains unaltered for 2013/14 subject to the performance criteria being 

met. In other words £4,608 is paid in 12 equal instalments and at the 

end of the municipal year all Members who achieve 75% attendance of 

all meetings be paid a retrospective SRA of £512, subject to any future 

application of relevant indices. 
 
 

Table 1: Basic Allowance & Leaders SRAs Staffordshire & Neighbouring 

District Councils 2012/13 

Authority Basic Allowance Leader Leader Total 

East Staffs £4,540 £18,417 £22,957 

Cannock Chase £5,339 £20,166 £25,505 

Lichfield £2,990 £11,360 £14,350 

North Warwickshire £4,942 £10,987 £15,929 

Page 194



Tamworth Borough Council  Independent Remuneration Panel 

 

 

Dr Declan Hall 

membersallowances.co.uk             

 
16

North West Leicestershire £3,662 £14,648 £18,310 

Newcastle Under Lyme £3,285 £13,590 £16,875 

South Derbyshire £5,892 £17,940 £23,832 

South Staffs £5,000 £10,000 £15,000 

Stafford £3,630 £8,542 £12,172 

Staffordshire Moorlands £2,902 £9,565 £12,467 

Tamworth £5,120 £12,814 £17,934 

Highest £5,892 £20,166 £25,505 

Lowest £2,902 £8,542 £12,172 

Mean £4,300 £13,457 £17,757 

Median £4,540 £12,814 £16,875 

Tamworth with 10% 

performance discount 

 

£4,608 

 

£11,533 

 

£16,141 

 
 
 

Special Responsibility Allowances - Leader 
 
38. Similarly, table one above also shows that compared to other Leaders in the 

comparator group of district councils the Leader of Tamworth Borough 
Council is remunerated broadly on a par with peers (a picture that is 
replicated for most other SRA holders in the Borough). Moreover, the Panel 
received no evidence to suggest that the Leaders and other SRAs needed 
revising subject to achieving 75% attendance. 

 

39. The Panel recommends that the Leader’s SRA remains unaltered for 

2013/14 subject to the performance criteria being met. In other words, 

the current SRA of £12,814 is subject to a 10% discount with £11,533 

being paid in 12 equal instalments and at the end of the municipal year 

the Leader will receive an additional retrospective  Attendance 

Allowance of £1,281 on the condition s/he has attended at least 75% of 

all meetings that year, subject to any indices that may be applied. 
 
 

Post Holders in receipt of a SRA – subject to a double penalty 
 
40. The consequence of applying a 10% discount to the SRA of the Leader and 

other post holders in a receipt of an SRA in conjunction with the 
recommendation to discount the Basic Allowance by 10% means that post 
holders do not attend 75% of all their scheduled meetings then they are 
subject to a double performance penalty. For instance, if the Leader was not 
to attend 75% of scheduled meetings in any municipal year then not only 
would his SRA remain at £11,533, his Basic Allowance of £4,608 would not 

Page 195



Tamworth Borough Council  Independent Remuneration Panel 

 

 

Dr Declan Hall 

membersallowances.co.uk             

 
17

be topped up by the additional Attendance Allowance of £512, thus having a 
total remuneration of £16,241 rather than £17,934 

 
41. The Panel is content with the implications of its recommendations, i.e., a 

double penalty being imposed on post holders in receipt of a SRA through a 
discounted Basic Allowance and SRA. As an executive Member or Chair of 
a committee the impact of not attending their scheduled meetings would be 
felt the most keenly.    

 
 

The Chair of Audit and Governance Committee 
 
42. The Chair of the Audit and Governance Committee receives a lower SRA 

(£1,922) than the Chairs of the Planning and Licensing Committees 
(£5,766). The original reason for this was that there are fewer scheduled 
meetings for the Audit and Governance Committee, 6 per year, than the 
Planning and Licensing Committees, 12 per year, although it is recognised 
that Licensing Committee meetings are cancelled if there is not enough 
business for them to conduct, which does occur on a regular basis. 

 
43. Since the abolition of the national standards regime, arising out of the 

relevant provisions of the Localism Act 2011, the residual standards 
functions not otherwise assigned to the Monitoring Officer and Independent 
Person (IP) have been assigned to the Audit and Governance Committee, 
e.g., it has responsibility for revising the code conduct. 

 
44. The Panel discussed whether the additional remit of the Audit and 

Governance Committee was significant to the extent that it merited an 
increase the Chair’s SRA. However, at this stage no evidence was received 
to enable the Panel to make such an informed judgement and therefore it is 
not recommending any change to the current SRA paid to the Chair of the 
Audit and Governance Committee which is £1,730 plus £192, subject the 
performance criteria being met.  

 
45. The Panel will specifically review the enhanced remit of the Audit and 

Governance Committee in 12 months time once experience has been 
gained. Moreover, it will also look at the relative workloads and 
responsibilities of the Licensing and Planning Committees and consider 
whether there is a case to recommend a realignment of the SRAs paid to the 
Chairs of these committees. 

 
 

The Vice Chairs of Scrutiny 
 
46. In the fourth review the Panel recommended (and the Council subsequently 

accepted) that the two Vice Chairs of the Scrutiny Committees receive an 
SRA of £1,407. These were the only Vice Chairs posts that the Panel 
recommended to receive an SRA, on the grounds that they would have a 

Page 196



Tamworth Borough Council  Independent Remuneration Panel 

 

 

Dr Declan Hall 

membersallowances.co.uk             

 
18

defined role beyond generally keeping abreast of their brief to be ready to 
stand in when required. The Vice Chairs of Scrutiny were to be required to 
chair Scrutiny Sub Groups where it was intended that much of the 
investigative work of scrutiny would be carried out. 

 
47. However, the Panel was informed that the this model of scrutiny never 

developed as intended and the Scrutiny Sub Groups are chaired on an ad 
hoc basis and is a role any Scrutiny Member may undertake. The post of 
Vice Chair of Scrutiny does not meet the test of having “significant additional 
responsibilities”3 which, in line with the 2006 Statutory Guidance is the 
traditional test the Panel has applied it deciding whether a post merits an 
SRA. 

 

48. Consequently, from the date of the Annual Meeting 2013/14 the Panel 

recommends that the SRAs currently paid to the 2 Vice Chairs of 

Scrutiny are discontinued. This recommendation, if accepted, will result in 
a direct savings of £2,814 per year.  

 
 

Other Special Responsibility Allowances 
 
49. The Panel received no evidence that the other SRAs payable4 needed 

revision and recommends that the current scope and levels of other 

SRAs remain the same for 2013/14 subject to the recommended 

performance framework as follows: 
 

Table 2: Other SRAs Payable – Discounted and 10% Remainder Payable 

Post SRA Payable 

with 10% 

Discount 

Applied 

Year End SRA 

Payable when 75% 

Attendance 

achieved 

Total 

SRAs 

Payable 

 
Deputy Leader (1) 

 
£8,649 

 
£961 

 
£9,610 

 
Other Cabinet Member (4) 

 
£7,496 

 
£833 

 
£8,329 

 
Chair of Scrutiny (2) 

 
£5,189 

 
£577 

 
£5,766 

 
Chair of Planning 

 
£5,189 

 
£577 

 
£5,766 

 
Chair of Licensing 

 
£5,189 

 
£577 

 
£5,766 

 
Chair of Audit & Governance 

 
£1,730 

 
£192 

 
£1,922 

                                                           
3
 New Council Constitutions: Guidance on Regulation for Local Authority Allowances, Department of 

Communities and Local Government, 2006 paragraph 76. 
4
 See Appendix 3 for comparative summary of allowances payable in comparator group of councils. 

Page 197



Tamworth Borough Council  Independent Remuneration Panel 

 

 

Dr Declan Hall 

membersallowances.co.uk             

 
19

 
Leader of (Larger) 
Opposition Group 

 
 

£5,189 

 
 

£577 

 
 

£5,766 

 
Deputy Leader of (Larger) 

Opposition Group 

 
 

£2,883 

 
 

£320 

 
 

£3,203 

 
 

Access to the Local Government Pension Scheme: Refreshing Authority 
 
50. The one decision-making power the Panel has is to block the Council from 

deciding on whether Members should be able to join the Local Government 
Pension Scheme (LGPS). If the Panel decides that Members should not join 
the LGPS then the Council has to accept that decision. If the Panel decides 
that the Council can provide Members access to the LGPS the Council does 
not have to accept that decision, and even if it does individual Members then 
have to opt in, if they meet the qualifying criteria as set by legislation. In 
other words, the Panels powers in relation to Members access to the LGPS 
are permissive rather than definitive. 

 
51. The Panel continues to support the right of the Council to decide whether 

Members should have access to the Local Government Pension Scheme 

(LGPS). It recommends that fresh authority for the Council to decide on 

Members right to join the LGPS be provided for another four years. 
 
 

Co-optees’ Allowance 
 
52. The statutory requirement to maintain a Standards Committee with the full 

range of quasi-judicial powers ended in July 2012 under the relevant 
provisions of the Localism Act 2011. The Council has chosen not to 
establish a non-statutory advisory Standards Committee, as is the case in 
some authorities. The residual remaining statutory functions have been 
delegated to the Monitoring Officer and the Audit and Governance 
Committee, in conjunction the new statutory post of the Independent Person 
(IP). The views of the IP must be sought and taken into account by the 
Council before the Audit and Governance Committee and Monitoring Officer 
make a decision on an allegation against a Member that it has decided to 
investigate. While it is not expected that the Independent Person will be 
involved in many formal investigations, their views may also be sought on an 
allegation that the Council has not decided to proceed for formal 
investigation. Furthermore, a Member of the Authority may seek the views of 
an Independent Person on any allegation made against them. 

 
53. The Co-optees’ Allowance (£1,903) that was paid to co-opted Chair of the 

Standards Committee has been deleted from the Members’ Allowances 
scheme and is now paid to the IP, which is outside the Members’ Allowances 
scheme. 

Page 198



Tamworth Borough Council  Independent Remuneration Panel 

 

 

Dr Declan Hall 

membersallowances.co.uk             

 
20

 
54. The Council has retained provision for an ordinary Co-optees’ Allowance 

(£311), which is now only paid to the Co-optee appointed to the Nominations 
Committee. However, unlike the Standards Committee, the Nominations 
Committee has no scheduled meetings and only meets as and when, which 
thus far is rarely. The Panel takes the view that in this instance a Co-optees’ 
Allowance paid on a per meetings basis is more appropriate as it does not 
remunerate a Co-optee for not attending meetings. In arriving at an 
appropriate day rate the Panel has used the same approach it utilised in 
originally arriving the Basic Allowance the last time it was fundamentally 
reviewed, namely the median earnings of Tamworth residents. In 2012, the 
median weekly earning for all full time employees resident in the borough 
was £447.70, or £90 per day, rounded up to the nearest pound.5  

 

55. The Panel recommends that the provision for a Co-optees’ Allowance 

of £311 per annum be deleted from the Tamworth Borough Council 

Members’ Allowances scheme and replaced with the following 

schedule from the date of the Annual Meeting of Council 2013/14: 

 

 

• Meetings under 4 hours:   £45 per meeting 

• Meetings 4 hours and over:  £90 per meeting 
 
 

Travel and Subsistence Allowances 
 

 Subsistence – for within Authority meetings 
 
56. The current Members’ Allowances scheme still provides for the 

reimbursement of subsistence expenses when attending approved duties 
within the Borough. While the Subsistence Allowance for in-Borough 
approved duties is rarely claimed it is a provision that is an anachronism, a 
hold over from the days when Members did not receive remuneration and in 
the main the only allowances they were able to claim were for out of pocket 
expenses. This is no longer the case. 

 

57. The Panel recommends that the Members’ Allowances scheme should 

be amended to clarify that the Subsistence Allowances can no longer 

be claimed by Members attending approved duties within the Borough 

unless there are exceptional circumstances as defined by the person 

calling the meeting with approval of the Monitoring Officer, to be 

implemented from the date of the Annual Meeting 2013/14. 
 

                                                           
5
 See Annual Survey of Hours and Earnings (ASHE), Weekly Pay – Excluding Overtime (£) – For all Full 

Time Employee Jobs, UK 2012, Table 8.1a, Place of Residence by Local Authority, Office of National 

Statistics, 22 November 2012. 

Page 199



Tamworth Borough Council  Independent Remuneration Panel 

 

 

Dr Declan Hall 

membersallowances.co.uk             

 
21

58. This recommendation, if accepted, will  not result in  direct savings as this 
allowance was never claimed last year. Nonetheless, the Panel is concerned 
in ensuring that the principle is enshrined in the allowances scheme. 

 

 Subsistence Allowances – Outside the Borough 
 
59. The Panel received no evidence that the rates and conditions that apply to 

the Subsistence Allowances for Members attending duties outside the 
Borough need revisiting. The current rates claimable are based on those 
applicable to Officers as follows: 

 

Table 3: Members Subsistence Rates 2012/13 

Category of Subsistence Allowance 

Breakfast £5 maximum 

Lunch £8 

Tea £3 

Evening Meal £20 

Overnight Accommodation - 

Outside London 

 

£84 

Overnight Accommodation – 

London 

 

£96 

   
 

60. The Panel confirms the current rates and conditions for claiming 

Subsistence Allowances (including overnight accommodation) by 

Members attending approved duties outside the Borough. The Panel 
reminds the Council that if a Member claims this allowance then it is good  
practice to back up the claims with receipts, i.e., it is a reimbursement of 
actual costs incurred up to the same maxima that applies to Officers. 

 

 Travel Allowances – Within the Borough 
 
61. Unlike, the Subsistence Allowance, the Panel accepts the logic for 

maintaining provision within the Members’ Allowances scheme for Members 
to be able to claim a travel allowance for attending in-Borough approved 
duties. The journey is only undertaken, and cost incurred, as a result of 
being an elected Member. Whereas a Member would have to eat whether 
they were attending an in-Borough approved duty or not. 

 

62. Consequently, the Panel recommends no change to the current 

definition and scope of approved duties for which Members can claim 

Travel Allowances. 
 

 Mileage Rates 
 
63. Currently, the mileage rates that Members can claim for attending approved 

duties are based on rates that are agreed nationally each year by the 

Page 200



Tamworth Borough Council  Independent Remuneration Panel 

 

 

Dr Declan Hall 

membersallowances.co.uk             

 
22

National Joint Council (NJC) for Local Government Services (Officer Casual 
User rate). These rates are currently as follows: 

 

Table 4: NJC Casual User Mileage Rates 2012/13 

 Car Engine Size 

Miles Up to 999cc 1000-1199cc 1200cc and over 

Per mile first 8,500 46.9p 52.2p 65.0p 

Per mile after 8,500 13.7p 14.4p 16.4p 

 
 
64. It is increasingly becoming accepted that a more appropriate schedule of 

mileage rates are those based on Her Majesty’s Customs and Revenue 
(HMRC) Approved Mileage Allowance Payment (AMAP) rates. Officers are 
paid higher rates to reflect the exceptional nature of undertaking travel in 
their own vehicles on behalf of the Council, whereas for Members 
undertaking travel to approved duties is routine. 

 
65. The Panel is attracted to HMRC AMAP rates for the Members seeking 

reimbursement of their mileage as they are slightly more environmentally 
friendly; they do not reward those with larger car engine sizes and they are 
also applicable for when a Member travels to an approved duty by bicycle. 
Moreover, the AMAP rates do not attract any tax liability for claimants. 

 

66. The Panel recommends that the mileage rates for which Members can 

claim for attending approved duties are set at the AMAP rates as set 

out in table 5 below: 
 

Table 5: HMRC AMAP Rates 2012/13 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
67. This recommendation, if accepted, will result in a direct savings of £1,950 

per year, based on mileage claimed for 2011/12. 

 

Public and Other Transport 

Vehicle Business Miles Travelled 

 First 10,000 miles 
(£ per mile) 

Over 10,000 miles  

(£ per mile) 

 

Cars & Vans 

 

45p 

 

25p 

 

Motor cycles 

 

24p 

 

24p 

 

Bicycles 

 

20p 

 

20p 

 

Passenger Supplement 

Rates 

 

5p per passenger 

per mile 

 

5p per passenger 

per mile 

Page 201



Tamworth Borough Council  Independent Remuneration Panel 

 

 

Dr Declan Hall 

membersallowances.co.uk             

 
23

 

68. The Panel recommends no change to the current rates and conditions 

to the Travel Allowances scheme where Members travel by public or 

other means of transport. 
 

69. Where Members do have long distances to travel by public transport 

then the arrangements are usually made and paid directly by members’ 

services. The Panel reminds the Council that on the odd occasion that 

a Member has to seek reimbursement of travel to approved duties by 

public transport all claims must be backed by receipts for actual costs 

incurred up to the maxima applicable to Officers of the Borough 

Council. 
 
 

The Dependants Carers’ Allowance (DCA) 
 
70. Legislation specifically enshrines the right of Members to claim a 

Dependants’ Carers’ Allowance (DCA) to assist with the costs caring for any 
dependents a Member may have while they undertake approved duties. It is 
designed to reduce barriers to being an elected Member. The DCA is 
provided for within the Tamworth Borough Council Members’ Allowances 
scheme but is rarely claimed. Nonetheless, the Panel feels that the scheme 
should still be made available lest a Member circumstances change or a 
new Member does have dependants. The DCA is as much about a 
statement on access to being an elected Member rather than the actual use 
of the allowance. 

 

71. The Panel recommends no change to the scope and levels payable for 

the Dependants’ Carers Allowance scheme, including the relevant 

indices (see below). 

 
72. The Panel points out that the child care element is indexed to the minimum 

wage applicable to the age of the carer which is currently as follows: 
 

 Table 6: Current Minimum Wage – Hourly Rates   

Age of Carer Hourly Rate 

Adult rate – workers aged 21 and over £6.19 

Workers aged 18-20 inclusive £4.98 

Workers aged 16-17 inclusive £3.68 

 
 
 

Indexation 
 
73. Under the four year rule the current indices that apply to the payments made 

under the Members’ Allowances have lapsed. This is not a major issue, as 
(for the past few years) the index that Tamworth and most Councils apply to 

Page 202



Tamworth Borough Council  Independent Remuneration Panel 

 

 

Dr Declan Hall 

membersallowances.co.uk             

 
24

the Basic Allowance and SRAs (the annual percentage salary increase for 
local government staff) has been at zero percent. This is likely not to be the 
case for the next two years, with the employers offering a 2-year deal at 1% 
each year. 

 
74. The Panel points out that if allowances are not indexed then the Council is 

not able to apply an annual cost of living increase without coming back for 
advice to the Panel. However, where a Council has adopted indices they are 
under no obligation to apply them each year. Council and individual 
Members retain the right to not apply an index to their allowances. 

 

75. The Panel recommends that authority for Tamworth Borough Council 

to index their allowances is refreshed and the following indices are 

applied to the remuneration and allowances paid to Members of 

Tamworth Borough Council: 

 

Basic Allowance and SRAs: 

• Indexed to the annual percentage salary increase for local 
government staff (at spinal column 49) to be implemented from the 
start of the municipal year, rather than financial year, for which year it 
is applicable. 

 
 

Dependants’ Carers’ Allowance: 

• Indexed to the hourly minimum wage applicable to the age of the carer. 
 

 

Mileage Allowance: 

• Members mileage allowances rates should be indexed to the HMRC 
AMAP mileage rates. 

 

Subsistence Allowances: 

• The day and overnight subsistence allowances should be indexed to the 
same rates that are applicable to Officers. 

 

 

Implementation 

 

76. The Panel recommends that the recommendations contained within 

this Report be implemented from the date of the Annual Council 

meeting 2013/14. 
 

Page 203



Tamworth Borough Council  Independent Remuneration Panel 

 

 

Dr Declan Hall 

membersallowances.co.uk             

 
25

Appendix One 
 

Members and Officers who met with the Chair 
 

Members 
 
Cllr Tina Clements: Mayor (Conservative) 
 
Cllr Danny Cook: Leader of Council and Conservative Group 
 
Cllr Chris Cooke: Independent Member 
 
Cllr John Faulkner: Leader of the (Labour) Opposition Group 
 
Cllr Richard McDermid: Deputy Leader of the (Labour) Opposition Group 
 
Cllr Rob Pritchard: Deputy Leader of Council and Conservative Group 
 
 

Written Submissions from Members 
 
Cllr Marion Couchman: Labour Member 
 
Cllr Maureen Gant:   Chair of Audit & Governance Committee (Conservative) 
 
Cllr Ken Norchi:  Labour Member 
 
Cllr Peter Seekings:  Labour Member        
 
 
 

Officers 
 
Jane Hackett: Solicitor to the Council and Monitoring Officer 
 
Lara Allman:  Democratic & Election Services Officer 
 
 

Page 204



Tamworth Borough Council  Independent Remuneration Panel 

 

 

Dr Declan Hall 

membersallowances.co.uk             

 
26

 

Appendix Two 
 

Information Received and Reviewed by the Panel Reviewed for Tamworth 

Borough Council – Member Allowances Review 2013 
 
1. Panels’ terms of reference 
 
2. Consolidated Guidance for panels re-issued 2006 by Department Of Local 

Government and Communities. 
 
3. 2012 Tamworth Borough Council Members’ Allowances scheme 
 
4. Copies of Allowances schemes (2012/13) paid in comparator authorities 
 
5. The Fourth Report by the Independent Remuneration Panel, December 

2008 
 
6. Summary of Members’ Attendance record, 26/08/2012 – 18/02/2013 
 
7. Schedule of meetings and list of Committees, including membership 

 

8. Written representations by Council Members 
 

Page 205



Tamworth Borough Council  Independent Remuneration Panel 

 

 

Dr Declan Hall 

membersallowances.co.uk                   

 
20

Appendix Three: Allowances paid the Staffordshire and Immediate Neighbour Districts 2012/13 
 
Authority Basic 

Allowanc

e 

Leader Leader 

Total 

Deputy 

Leader 

Cabinet or 

Policy Chairs 

Chair of 

Scrutiny 

Vice Chair 

Scrutiny 

Chair of 

Planning 

Chair of 

Licensing 

Opposition 

Leader 

East Staffs £4,540 £18,417 £22,957 £9,208 £9,208 £1,842 n/a £5,526 £5,526 £1,842 

Cannock Chase £5,339 £20,166 £25,505 £9,260 £8,025 £6,791 n/a £4,322 £1,853 £6,791 

Lichfield £2,990 £11,360 £14,350 £6,820 £6,250 £2,270 n/a £6,250 £2,270 £2,270 

North 

Warwickshire 

£4,942 £10,987 £15,929 £4,983 (3) n/a £4,983 n/a Included in 1 x 

Deputy Leader 
N/A £1,162 + 

£233 per 

member  

North West 

Leicestershire 

£3,662 £14,648 £18,310 £9,155 £5,493 £4,760   £4,760 £4,760 £3,662 

Newcastle 

Under Lyme 

£3,285 £13,590 £16,875 £9,510 £5,660 £2,830 £1,130 £4,230 £3,430 £1,130 

South 

Derbyshire 

£5,892 £17,940 £23,832 £9,860 £8,960 £8,960 £2,240 £8,960 £2,240 £8,960 

South Staffs £5,000 £10,000 £15,000 £5,000 £5,000 £2,500 n/a £2,500 £2,500 £2,500 

Stafford £3,630 £8,542 £12,172 £6,887 £5,232 £2,936 n/a £3,844 £1,441 £4,271 

Staffordshire 

Moorlands 

£2,902 £9,565 £12,467 £5,739 £4,783 (7) £3,348 (4) £1,913 £3,348 £3,348 £3,348 

Tamworth £5,120 £12,814 £17,934 £9,610 £8,329 £5,766 £1,193 £5,766 £5,766 £5,766 

Highest £5,892 £20,166 £25,505 £9,860 £9,208 £8,960   £8,960 £5,766 £8,960 

Lowest £2,902 £8,542 £12,172 £5,000 £5,000 £1,842   £2,500 £1,441 £1,130 

Mean £4,300 £13,457 £17,757 £8,105 £6,906 £4,364   £4,951 £3,313 £4,054 

Median £4,540 £12,814 £16,875 £9,182 £6,250 £3,848   £4,541 £2,924 £3,505 

P
age 206



 
  Other SRAs` Mileage Child Care Subsistence Rates 

East Staffs n/a HMRC No info B £5.66 L £7.80   T £3.10 EM 

£9.65 O/N £87.09 

Cannock Chase Chr Policy Development C'tee, Chr Aud & Gov, Chr 

Fundamental Service Review 

42.9p, 46.9p, 

58.7p 

Nat Min Wage B £5.75 L £7.91   T £3.21 EM 

£9.80 O/N £93.31 

Lichfield Ch Audit, Asst Cabinet Member, V Chr Planning, V Chr 

Lic, Chr Employment C'tee, Chr Parish Forum, Chr Arts 

Partnership, Chr Disability Partnership Panel 

No info County Social Services 

Department Payment 

Rate 

No info 

North 

Warwickshire 

Chairman of Area Forums, Appeals Panel Members, Lead 

Members (Portfolio Holders) 

42.9p, 46.9p, 

58.7p 

Nat Min Wage B £5.84 L£8.04 T£3.17 EM 

£9.94 O/N£95.26 

North West 

Leicestershire 

n/a No info £7.20ph No info 

Newcastle 

Under Lyme 

V-Chr Plan, Pub Prot, Audit & Risk, Licensing No info £5.15ph (or nat min 

wage) 

No info 

South 

Derbyshire 

Tele Allow  £300, V-Chr Policy C'tee & Plan 45p 1st 10km 25p 

over 

No info No info 

South Staffs Audit C'tee No info No info No info 

Stafford Aud&Gov, Public Appeals, Jnt Parking C'tee 52.2p £6.14 B £7.50 L £10.00 D £17.50 O/N 

£90 

Staffordshire 

Moorlands 

Vice Plan & Lic, Chr Constitution Review Working Party, 

Member Dev Champion, Chr & V-Chr Appeals Board 

42.9p, 47.7p, 

60.1p 

£10ph max £40 B £6 L £8 T £4 EM £15 O/N £90 

Tamworth Chair Audit& Gov £1,922 46.9p, 52.2p, 65p Carers over 22 £5.73ph, 

Carers 18-21 - £4.77ph 

  

 
 
 
 

P
age 207



Page 208

This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

 
COUNCIL 

 
19 March 2013 

 
REPORT OF THE SOLICITOR TO THE COUNCIL AND MONITORING OFFICER 

 
 

REVIEW OF MEMBERS ALLOWANCES 
 
Purpose of Report 
 
To advise Council of the recommendations of the Members Independent 
Remuneration Panel who have recently undertaken a review of Members Allowances 
in accordance with regulations. The report of the panel is attached at Appendix 1. 
  
Executive Summary 
 
Regulations came into force in May 2003 which requires the Council to review and 
adopt a scheme of allowances for members.   
 
All Councils are required to convene an Allowances Panel and seek its advice before 
they make any changes or amendments to their allowance scheme and they must 
“pay regard” to the Panel’s recommendations before setting a new or amended 
Members Allowances Scheme. 
 
The Members Remuneration Panel was convened on 28 February 2013.   
 
It is a statutory requirement that a summary of the remuneration panel 
recommendations are published in a local newspaper and this has to be undertaken.   
 
The recommended changes to be implemented from the date of the Annual Council 
meeting in 2013/14 can be summarised as follows: 
 

1. No increase to the basic allowance or to any Special Responsibility 
Allowances. Thus the proposed basic allowance remains £5,054.  

 

2. All of the current Allowances payable to Members be discounted by 10%. 
That the 10% discount is only paid to the Members who attend 75% of the 
scheduled meetings of the Committees that they are appointed to. The 
payment then takes the form of a lump sum paid retrospectively at the end of 
the municipal year. The meetings that count for Members attendance are 
those published in the attendance summary on the Council website. 

 

3. Post holders in receipt of Special Responsibility Allowance are subject to a 
double discount penalty.  

 

4. The panel reconvenes in 12 months time to review the Members Allowances 
Scheme with particular regard to assessing the success of the new 
performance related element of remuneration and refine accordingly. 

 

5. The SRA paid to the leader of £12,814 remains unaltered for 2013/14 subject 
to the aforesaid performance criteria being met.  

 

Agenda Item 7 

Page 209



 2 

6. The payment of SRA to Vice Chairs of Scrutiny be discontinued. 
 

7. The provision for a co-optee allowance of £311 be deleted from the Members 
Allowance Scheme and replaced by a remuneration of  £45 for each meeting 
under 4 hours duration, £90 for each meeting over four hours duration. 

 

8. Subsistence Allowance can no longer be claimed by Members attending 
approved duties within the Borough unless there are exceptional 
circumstances as defined by the person calling the meeting and approved by 
the Monitoring Officer.  

 

9. The current definition and scope of approved duties for which Members can 
claim travel allowances remains unaltered. With no change to allowances 
where Members travel by public transport, with all claims requiring to be 
backed up with receipts. 

 

10. Payments under the Dependents Careers Allowance Scheme remain 
unaltered. 

 

11. As previously recommended the panel considered all members should be 
eligible to join the Local Government Pension Scheme for another four years. 

 

12. That all the aforesaid Allowances and Subsistence rates are indexed 
accordingly.  

 
Costs for items 8, 9, 10 and 11 are not easily quantifiable given that they are 
dependent on the level of duties, the uptake of members joining the LGPS and 
claims in the year. Based on past experience the recommendations should not have 
a significant financial effect, it may in fact result in a small saving. 
 
Council is requested to consider the recommendation of the panel and either agree 
with the proposals or put forward reasonable alternatives. 
 
The amended scheme as approved following the Panel’s recommendations (or 
following Council Proposals) is to be adopted from the beginning of the Municipal 
Year 2013/14. 
 
This report does not seek a key decision, but Council is responsible for reviewing and 
adopting a scheme of allowances for members. 
 
Financial Implications  
 
In the next financial year 2013/14 the proposals would mean no increase in the 
budget. It is expected that this can be managed within existing budgets. 
 
The risk of not updating the allowance scheme is that the political management 
structure of the Council may not be accurately acknowledged in accordance with 
statutory and regularity requirements. 
 
Recommendation(s) 
 
Council is recommended to consider the Panels report and adopt one or a 
combination of the following: 
 

Page 210



 3 

a) Receive the recommendations in full 
b) Receive the recommendations in part. 
c) Put forward alternative recommendations in addition to or as 

opposed to those not accepted. 
d) Reject the recommendations. 

 
 
If Members would like further information or clarification prior to the meeting, please 
contact Jane Hackett on Ext. 258 
 

Background Papers:- Appendix 1 
 

 

Page 211



Page 212

This page is intentionally left blank



 

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

28 March 2013 
 

REPORT OF THE SOLICITOR TO THE COUNCIL AND MONITORING 
OFFICER 

 
 

REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT 2000 
 

 
 
Purpose 
 
The Council’s Code of Practice for carrying out surveillance under the 
Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) specifies that quarterly 
reports will be taken to Audit & Governance Committee to demonstrate to 
elected members that the Council is complying with its own Code of Practice 
when using RIPA. 
 
On 13 December 2012, the Council adopted a new RIPA policy and agreed 
that quarterly reports on the use of RIPA powers be submitted to Audit & 
Governance Committee. 
 
Recommendation 
 
That Audit and Governance Committee endorse the quarterly RIPA 
monitoring report. 
 
Background Information  
 
The RIPA Code of Practice produced by the Home Office in April 2010 
introduced the requirement to produce quarterly reports to elected members 
to demonstrate that the Council is using its RIPA powers appropriately and 
complying with its own Code of Practice when carrying out covert 
surveillance. This requirement relates to the use of directed surveillance and 
covert human intelligence sources (CHIS). 
 
The table below shows the Council’s use of directed surveillance in the 
current financial year to provide an indication of the level of use of covert 
surveillance at the Council. There have been no applications under RIPA in 
the quarterly period from 1 January 2013   to the date of this report.  
 
The table outlines the number of times RIPA has been used for directed 
surveillance, the month of use, the service authorising the surveillance and a 
general description of the reasons for the surveillance. Where and 
investigation is ongoing at the end of a quarterly period it will not be reported 
until the authorisation has been cancelled. At the end of the current quarterly 
period there are no outstanding authorisations.  
 

Agenda Item 12

Page 213



 

There have been no authorisations for the use of CHIS. 
 
 
 Financial year 2012/13  
 
Month            Service                    Reason                      
            
No applications 
 
Background papers 
 
None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dated 15 Mar. 13  “If Members would like further information or clarification prior to the meeting 
please contact Jane M Hackett Solicitor to the Council and Monitoring Officer on Ext.258” 
 

 

Page 214


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	4 The Audit Plan for Tamworth Borough Council
	5 Review of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement, Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement and Annual Investment Statement 2013/14
	Appendix 1 AG TMSSAIS For A&G

	6 Final Accounts 2012/13 - Action Plan
	7 Risk Management Update
	Enc. 1 for Risk Management Update

	8 Fraud and Corruption Update Report
	Appendix 1for Fraud and Corruption Update Report
	Appendix 2 for Fraud and Corruption Update Report

	9 Internal Audit Charter and Plan 2013/14
	Appendix 1 Internal Audit Charter and Plan 2013/14
	Appendix 2 Internal Audit Charter and Plan 2013/14

	10 Self Assessment - Measuring the Effectiveness of the Audit & Governance Committee
	Enc. 1 for Self Assessment - Measuring the Effectiveness of the Audit & Governance Committee

	11 Review of Members Allowance
	Appendix 1 Report of the Independent Remuneration Panel Dated March 2013
	Appendix 2 Report to Council Dated 19 March 2013

	12 Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

